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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaabking” statements within the meaning of SectioA 2T the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities ExchangefAt®34, including, without limitation, statememggarding future financial results and
performance, potential sales revenue, legal coatioigs and tax benefits, and the existence of ad\iigation and other risks, uncertainties
and factors set forth under Item 1A., entitled #R¥&actors”, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K anaur reports and documents filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). ¥aw identify these forward-looking statementsh®y use of words such as “outlook”,
“believes”, “expects”, “potential”, “continues”, “ay”, “will", “should”, “seeks”, “approximately”, “pedicts”, “intends”, “plans”, “estimates”,
“anticipates”or the negative version of these words or otherpgarable words. These statements are subject tougarisks, and uncertaintie
many of which are outside our control, including tavel of market demand for our services, comipetjpressure, the ability to achieve
reductions in operating costs and to continue tiegirate club acquisitions, environmental initiasivehe application of Federal and state tax
laws and regulations, and other specific factossuised herein and in other SEC filings by us. lie\e that all forward-looking statements
are based on reasonable assumptions when madeydrowe caution that it is impossible to predidiuat results or outcomes or the effects
of risks, uncertainties or other factors on anttdga results or outcomes and that, accordingly shoeld not place undue reliance on these
statements. Forwardoking statements speak only as of the date theg wiade, and we undertake no obligation to upgtlate statements
light of subsequent events or developments. Actmllts may differ materially from anticipated riéswr outcomes discussed in any forward-
looking statement.

PART |

Item 1. Business

In this Annual Report, unless otherwise statedherdontext otherwise indicates, references to ‘H@tings”, “Town Sports”, “TSI”,
“the Company”, “we”, “our” and similar referencesfer to Town Sports International Holdings, Incddtis subsidiaries and references to
“TSI, LLC" refer to Town Sports International, LL@ur wholly-owned operating subsidiary.

General

We are the largest owner and operator of fitnasisscin the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of thnited States and the third largest
fithess club owner and operator in the United Stateeach case based on the number of clubs. Beoémber 31, 2011, the Company,
through its subsidiaries, operated 160 fithessscluimer our four key regional brand names; “NewkY®ports Clubs” (NYSC), “Boston
Sports Clubs” (BSC), “Philadelphia Sports ClubsS(® and “Washington Sports Clubs” (WSC). As of Dmber 31, 2011, these clubs
collectively served approximately 523,000 membiexduding approximately 38,000 members under ocemdly introduced restricted-use
membership programs. We owned and operated aatol@8 clubs under the “New York Sports Clubs” litamame within a 120-mile radius
of New York City as of December 31, 2011, includBiglocations in Manhattan where we are the larfifestss club owner and operator. We
owned and operated 25 clubs in the Boston regigeuour “Boston Sports Clubs” brand name, 18 c(tlve of which are partly-owned) in
the Washington, D.C. region under our “Washingtpor& Clubs” brand name and six clubs in the Phijalda region under our
“Philadelphia Sports Clubs” brand name as of Decari, 2011. In addition, we owned and operateektistubs in Switzerland as of
December 31, 2011. We employ localized brand ndoresur clubs to create an image and atmosphersistent with the local community
and to foster recognition as a local network ofligyéitness clubs rather than a national chain.

We have developed and refined our fitness club irtbdeugh our clustering strategy, offering fithnessbs close to our members’
workplaces and homes. We target all individualdiritach of our regions who aspire to

1



Table of Contents

a healthy lifestyle. We believe that the majorityoar members are between the ages of 21 and 6Barehousehold income levels between
$50,000 and $150,000. We believe this is not dmyliroadest sector of the market, but also provtiegreatest growth opportunities. Our
goal is to be the most recognized health club nétivoeach of the four major metropolitan regiors serve. We believe that our strategy of
clustering clubs provides significant benefits to members and allows us to achieve strategic tipgradvantages. In each of our markets,
we have developed clusters by initially openingoquiring clubs located in the more central urbankats of the region and then expanding
our market coverage from these urban centers tarbatand neighboring communities.

We currently offer two principal types of membepshin our clubs: “Passport” and “Core.” There ave types of Passport
memberships. The first type allows access to ahin all four regions at any time. The seconatype Regional Passport membership, is
available in all regions other than the NYSC recaon allows a member access to all of our clubliwg single region. We had 227,000
Passport members as of December 31, 2011. Then@mrdership, consisting of 107,000 members as oééer 31, 2011, allows unlimit
access to a designated home club. Core memberpayay per visit fee of $9.50 (increased from $BMNovember 1, 2011) to use non-
home clubs at any hour. Members can elect to cotengitminimum contract period of one year in ordelbenefit from reduced dues and
joining fees. Alternatively, our memberships araiable on a mon-to-month basis. Prior to November 1, 2010, werefiea Gold
membership which allows unlimited access to a desgagd or “home” club at all times and access tofatiur other clubs during off-peak
hours. Members who held a Gold membership as oelider 1, 2010 are permitted to continue in this menship category. Gold members
may pay a per visit fee of $9.50 (increased frons@dn November 1, 2011) to use rnfwome clubs during peak hours. We had approximi
151,000 Gold members as of December 31, 2011.

As part of our efforts to better maximize profititigiby utilizing our clubs during ofpeak hours, in April 2010 we began offering a r
favorably-priced, restricted-use month-to-month rhership available to students. We also began offaestricted memberships to teachers
and first responders in April 2011 and Septemb@r2@espectively. In years prior to 2010, we offeaethree-month summer membership
targeted at students generally priced at $199.0théoentire summer. As of December 31, 2011, veeamproximately 38,000 restricted
members. Restricted members can choose to usediuing peak hours with an additional charge o6@%er visit.

In May 2011, we implemented a combined rate lockrgntee and maintenance fee of $29.00 for all nemlperships sold. This fee v
be collected annually in January for all membeisifg after May 2011, and will support average nmbntiues revenue per member in 2012
and beyond. In part, this fee is in lieu of a pokesfuture dues increase for these members. Inadara012, we collected approximately $3.5
million related to this new fee. This fee will becognized into revenue over the 12 month perioéhgndecember 31, 2012.

Over our 38-year history, we have developed aridedfour club formats, which allows us to cost-efifeely construct and efficiently
operate our fitness clubs in the different reahiesenvironments in which we operate. Our fitnady-olubs average approximately
20,000 square feet, while our multi-recreationabslaverage 40,000 square feet. The aggregategavaee of our clubs is approximately
26,000 square feet. Our clubs typically have amdijieess area to accommodate cardiovascular aadgth-training equipment, as well as
special purpose rooms for group fitness classesthad exercise programs. We seek to provide admaoay of high-quality exercise
programs and equipment that are popular and efisgtromoting a quality exercise experience forrmembers. When developing clubs, we
carefully examine the potential membership basetlhadikely demand for supplemental offerings sastswimming, basketball, children’s
programs, tennis or squash and, provided suit&aleastate is available, we will add one or morthe$e offerings to our fitness-only format.
For example, a multi-recreational club in a fanmitgrket may include Sports Clubs for Kids prograwisich can include swim lessons and
sports camps for children.
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Industry Overview

Total United States fitness club industry reverineseased at a compound annual growth rate of 5t8& $12.2 billion in 2001 to
$20.3 billion in 2010, according to the most redafiirmation released by the International HeaRhcquet and Sportsclub Association
(“IHRSA"). Total U.S. fitness club memberships iaased at a compound annual growth rate of 4.5% 3&/m million in 2001 to
50.2 million in 2010, with a 10.8% increase fronD2Qo 2010, which represents the largest membensbipase in several years in the
industry. The total number of fitness clubs incezhat a compound annual growth rate of 5.9% frof877in 2001 to 29,890 in 2010,
according to IHRSA.

Participation in health clubs has been growingditg@aver the past decade with 13.2% of the U.Sybation belonging to a health club
in 2001, while today nearly 18% of the total U.8pplation belongs to a health club, according ®ItHRSA, leaving room for possible
substantial growth in the industry. In 2010, healttb members visited clubs 97.5 days on averagendrom 102.4 days in 2009. However,
22.1 million, or 44% of members attended their slableast 100 times in 2010, an increase from #22009, according to IHRSA. From
2009 to 2010, the number of people attending a atubast six times per year decreased 5.2%; hawieen 2001 to 2010 the number has
increased by 4.0% from 34.9 million to 36.3 milliaocording to IHRSA.

According to the Centers for Disease Control are/&ntion, during the past 20 years, there has aelzamatic increase in obesity in
United States and rates remain high. In 2010, aie $tad a prevalence of obesity less than 20%tyFsix states had a prevalence of 25% or
more and 12 of these states had a prevalence ob80f6re. As healthcare costs rise in the UnitedeSt some of the focus in combating
obesity and other diseases is being directed &epti®n. Both government and medical research hawis that exercise and other physical
activity plays a critical role in preventing obgsénd other health conditions, thereby reducindtheare costs.

According to the IHRSA, demographic trends haveéeldrive the growth experienced by the fithessisiry over the past decade. The
industry has benefited from the aging “baby boonzerd “Eisenhower” generations as they place grestgrhasis on their health, including a
focus on fitness. In 2010, Members ages 45 to Sidled clubs an average of 100.8 days and those5ages64 visited clubs an average of
107.8 days, both well above the industry averagembkrs over the age of 55 increased from 8.5 milic2006 to 10.4 million in 2010.
Members under the age of 18 grew from 4.2 millmmapproximately 10% of total fithess club membgrsh 2006, to 6.1 million, or
approximately 12% of total fithess club membershig010.

As the focus on exercise and overall healthy Kfiestcontinue to impact the health club industrg,lvelieve that we are well positioned
to benefit from these dynamics as a large opewmitbrrecognized brand names, leading regional mathares and an established operating
history.

Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths imstrumental to our success:

Strong market position with leading brandsBased on number of clubs, we are the third larfigegtss club owner and operator in the
United States and the largest fitness club ownérogrerator in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regiaf the United States. We are the largest
fitness club owner and operator in the New YorkstBa and Washington, D.C. regions, and the thirgklst owner and operator in the
Philadelphia region. We attribute our positionshiese markets in part to the strength of our laedliowner and operator brand names, which
foster recognition as a local network of qualityéiss clubs.

Regional clustering strategy provides significaahbfits to members and corporationsBy operating a network of clubs in a
concentrated geographic area, the value of our raeships is enhanced by our ability to offer memlaexess to any of our clubs, which
provides the convenience of having fitness clulzs memember’s workplace and home. This is alsmafii¢o our corporate members, as
many corporations have
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employees that will take advantage of multiple dgoations. Approximately 227,000 of our membersehawassport Membership and
because these memberships offer enhanced privitagkgreater convenience, they generate higherhiyaiites than Core or Gold
Memberships in each respective region. Regionateting also allows us to provide special factitie all of our members within a local ai
such as swimming pools and squash, tennis and thadlkeourts, without offering them at every locstti In the year ended December 31,
2011, 38% of all club usage was by members visitings other than their home clubs.

Regional clustering strategy designed to enhaneenmaes and achieve economies of scal/e believe our regional clustering strati
allows us to enhance revenue and earnings growgndading high-quality, conveniently located fiseefacilities on a cost-effective basis.
Regional clustering is attractive to corporatioaslsng to promote a healthy lifestyle by providatigcounted group memberships to their
employees. Ralph Lauren, Con Edison, Viacom anith&ik are among just a few of the many corporattbasare currently enrolled in our
discounted corporate group memberships. We aldograwnith many groups that serve our communitiesluding the New York City Police
and Fire Departments in our New York Sports Cldggan, the Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportatisimority (SEPTA) in our
Philadelphia Sports Clubs region, and the Distifa@olumbia Government, including all city agenci@sour Washington Sports Clubs
region. We believe that potential new entrants waded to establish or acquire a large numberutifscin a market to compete effectively
with us. Our clustering strategy also enables wtoeve economies of scale with regard to salasketing, purchasing, general operations
and corporate administrative expenses and redugesapital spending needs. Regional clustering aewides the opportunity for members
who relocate within a region to remain memberswfaubs, thus aiding in member retention.

Expertise in site selection and development proceSfe believe that our expertise in site selection @enelopment provides an
advantage over our competitors given the complakastate markets in the metropolitan areas inhvhie operate and the relative scarcity of
suitable sites. Before opening or acquiring a nkely,ave undertake a rigorous process involving dgraohic and competitive analysis,
financial modeling, site selection and negotiatiétease and acquisition terms to ensure that @npiat location meets our criteria for a ma
club. We believe our flexible club formats are wslited to the challenging real estate environmientsir markets.

Expertise of senior managementWe believe that our senior management’s ingiuestpertise, particularly that of our Chief Exewati
Officer, Robert Giardina, provides us with a conitpat advantage. Mr. Giardina has extensive knogedf the fitness industry and 29 years
of experience with the Company. Mr. Giardina wagaipted President and Chief Executive Officer inrba2010. He originally joined the
Company in 1981 and served as President and Cpieffaing Officer from 1992 to 2001, and as Chieé&xive Officer from January 2002
through October 2007. We believe Mr. Giardina ighly talented and innovative executive who hasrsf strategic skills and leadership
capabilities to lead the Company.

Business Strategy
In the long-term, we seek to maximize our net mangbewth, revenues, earnings and cash flows usiadallowing strategies:

Retain members by focusing on the member experien@ar Company’s mission is “Improving Lives Througkecise.” We enact
our mission through our “Engage and Inspire” operet excellence platform which is designed to irsspmembers to embrace regular
exercise and achieve their fithess goals by segthiair loyalty through customer service and pringdstate-of-the-art facilities, programs
and services. We tailor the hours of each clulh¢oneeds of the specific member demographic utgiziach club; offer a variety of ancillary
services, including personal training, group clasSenall Group Training, Sports Clubs for Kids peogs, and the XpressLine program (a
high-intensity, efficient workout program). We aff@ variety of different sports facilities in eaggional cluster of clubs; offer modern,
varied and well-maintained exercise and fitnesspgent; and offer an assortment of additional atesincluding access to babysitting,
sports
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massage and pro-shops. Through hiring, developidgraining a qualified and diverse team that sspmate about fithess and health;
maintaining and enhancing our programs and servagescontinually increasing our attention to indisal member needs, we expect to
demonstrate our commitment to increase the qualitie member experience, and thereby increasmemtbership.

To further ensure the member experience remaiasagth quality, we provide member surveys to helglyre the areas we can impr
upon as well as the areas in which the membersadisfied overall. The results from these survegsuaed to measure management rewards
and bonus payments for certain club employees.

Drive comparable club revenue and profitability gt by implementing our business strategyOur near-term financial performance
will depend largely on the growth of revenue abelthat we have operated for more than 12 montlesd®ine comparable club revenue as
revenue at those clubs that were operated by uws/arl2 months and comparable club revenue grawtievenue for the 13th month and
thereafter as compared to the same period in fbeywar. Historically, comparable club revenuevgiftohas been a contributing factor in our
revenue growth with comparable club revenue grdaitiithe years ended December 31, 2007 and 200286 &nd 2.2%, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2009 and Decemb203Q, however, our comparable club revenue dechn@® and 4.3%, respectively. In
2009, in part as a result of the state of the eegnand the impact on consumer spending, we expexiehigher member attrition and,
therefore, a lower member base for most reportergpgds in the year ended December 31, 2010. Therlbeginning member counts in 2010
resulted in decreased revenue recognized througheytear. Although comparable club revenue coetino decline throughout the year
ended December 31, 2010 compared with the priar, yeasaw signs of recovery, which continued thiremg 2011. For each quarter in the
year ended December 31, 2011, we saw continuediraprent and for the entire year, comparable clubmae growth was 1.8%, with fou
quarter growth of 3.4%. For the year ending Decer8he2012, we currently anticipate that comparahle revenue will stabilize at or near
the level of the fourth quarter of 2011.

Provide state-of-the-art fithess equipment andisesr To help members develop and maintain a healthgtjife, train for athletic
events or lose weight, each of our clubs has & largay of cardiovascular machines and resistaaggng equipment and free weights.
Exercise equipment is positioned to allow for eamyement from machine to machine, facilitating avamient and efficient workout.
Equipment in these areas is arranged in long gralvs that are clearly labeled by muscle groumctvallows members to conveniently
customize their exercise programs and reduce doventiuring their workouts. We have technicians wdteise and maintain our equipment
on a timely basis. In addition, we have personamg television screens on most pieces of cardicwar equipment. Most clubs have
between one and three studios used for exerciseadaincluding at least one large studio usethfimt group exercise classes, a cycling
studio and a mind and body studio used for yogaRilades classes. We offer a large variety of griitmess classes at each club and these
classes generally are at no additional cost tavmmbers. The volume and variety of activities aheadub allow each member to enjoy the
club, whether customizing their own workout or g@Epiating in group activities and classes.

In addition, as part of our efforts to provide staf-the-art fitness equipment and services, aus &rmats are flexible and can easily
adapt and respond to the changing demands of storoers. This flexibility allows us to compete agiiprivate studios with unique
specialty offerings by adapting the space and ftgrmaour own clubs to match the offerings provitbgdhese private studios.

Grow ancillary and other non-membership revenue®Ve intend to grow our ancillary and other non-mersbip revenues through a
continued focus on increasing the additional vadded services that we provide to our members Assveapitalizing on the opportunities
for other non-membership revenues such as in-adubréising and retail sales. Non-membership revemage increased from $86.0 million,
or 18.2% of revenues for the year ended Decemhe2@®X, to $95.6 million, or 20.5% of revenuestfa year ended December 31, 2011. In
the year ending December 31, 2012, we plan to &sereur focus on our ancillary
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programs with continued improvements in training &iring and building on ancillary programs suchoas personal training membership
product introduced in June 2011 and our fee-basaall$roup Training programs. These sources ofllangiand other non-membership
revenues generate incremental profits with minioagital investment and assist in attracting anaimatg members.

Realize benefits from maturation of recently operietds. From January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011, we apeveclubs, both of
which were opened in the fourth quarter of 2011sd8bon our experience, a new club tends to ackigwnéficant increases in revenues during
its first three years of operation as the numbaneifmbers grows. Because there is relatively litibeemental cost associated with such
increasing revenues, there is a greater propot8dnarease in profitability. We believe that tlesenues and profitability of these two clubs
will improve as the clubs reach maturity.

Marketing

Our marketing campaign, which we believe has irswdawareness of our brand names, is directedryarketing department, which
directly reports to the Chief Executive Officer.iJteam develops advertising strategies to conaef ef our regionally branded networks as
the premier network of fithess clubs in its regi@ur marketing team'’s goal is to focus on growing membership base, achieving broad
awareness of our regional brand names and be ftopnal”. We are organized to enable close collabonabetween our marketing, sales,
fitness and operations staff, which helps to aéifforts around operational objectives and new pcodevelopment while ensuring a primary
focus on the member experience.

Brand awareness and preference is aided by a nuhlsetors, including visibility of multiple rethliocations and associated signage
across each region, our membership base of appatedyn523,000 as of December 31, 2011, which géeermord-of-mouth and referrals, a
38-year operating history and continual advertisimgstment. All of these factors provide a strémgndation for our ongoing marketing and
advertising efforts.

Our regional concentration and clustering strategates economies of scale in our marketing andréiding investments which
increase their overall efficiency and effectiven&3dsistering enables broader reach and higher émegyufor regional advertising campaigns
that typically include a mix of traditional mediaciuding radio, newspapers, magazines, out-of-h@specially transit-based) and some
television and getargeted and behaviorally targeted digital mediahsas paid search, email blasts, online bannersidro, as well as oth
emerging new media vehicles. These broader mafietsare bolstered by local marketing plans awdits, which include direct mail, local
sponsorships and co-promotions, community relatiomsoutreach and street-level lead generationites. Optimization of marketing mix
through measurement and modeling of the effectisgioé various media investments and formats coesina be a priority.

Our advertising and marketing message is designbditd our brand while creating an approachabtsgrelity that is attractive to
prospective members and allows them to feel comiftetwith our brand. In contrast to most healtbb@dvertising, we generally forego
depicting images of hard bodies, facilities and g@gunipment. Advertisements generally feature oreatiogans that use current events to
communicate the serious approach we take towaresftin a provocative and/or humorous tone. Werelihis approach is easily
communicated and understood and makes our produet approachable for all consumers regardlesseif tiealth club experience.

Promotional marketing campaigns will typically fes opportunities to participate in a variety ofusaadded services such as personal
training, Small Group Training and youth centerpdrts activities. We also may offer reduced joiniegs to encourage enroliment.
Additionally, we frequently sponsor member refeinglentive programs and other types of member ajmtien, acquisition activities and
internal promotions to enhance loyalty and to en@gel more members to take advantage of our ancdkawices.
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We also engage in public relations, sponsorshipgsspecial events to promote our brand image acnoiseetwork, regionally and in o
local communities. We have been featured in natibr@adcast channels and television shows, sudthes oday Show, Fox & Friends, the
Doctors, CNN, MSNBC, the CBS Early Show, MTV and }Hnajor newspapers, such as The New York Timeg, U&lay, Washington
Post, Boston Globe, and The Wall Street Journal Attsociated Press; and seen in magazines, sikitnass, Self, Shape, New York and
Marie Claire Magazines.

In addition, we participate in and sponsor evemsach of our regions. We are a seven-time sparigshe JPMorgan Chase Corporate
Challenge Series running event in both the New Yar#t Boston metropolitan regions. In 2011, thisydapannual event attracted
approximately 40,000 participants in New York arj0DO in Boston.

Our association with professional sports teams efdmnces our brands and their status in the coitisaiim which we operate. Boston
Sports Clubs is the official health club of the BwsRed Sox and Boston Celtics. New York Sportb€lshares the same designation witt
New York Jets Flight Crew, including programmingoiar clubs with appearances by the Flight Crewyelsas signage in Met Life Stadiul

Our philosophy of giving back to our communitieslides sponsoring company-wide and local charitafitats. Our club management
teams and staff are also encouraged to organizeragaje in charitable activities. These events bawvefited organizations such as the MS
Society, Family Research Foundation, American Ca8oeiety, the Muscular Dystrophy Association, $u6a Komen Race for the Cure,
Avon Walk for Breast Cancer, NYCares, Toys for Tas well as many smaller local and specific clerisuch as: National Multiple
Sclerosis Society, Tourette’s Syndrome Associatitentral Park Track Club, North Jersey Breast CaBesketball Challenge, North
Rockland Soccer Association, Verrazano Babe Ru#lyle and Help Our Military Heroes.

Our principal web site is www.mysportsclubs.collve are constantly working to improve the sitéatailitate its navigation,
functionality and usability and to enhance the mengxperience. Among these efforts include ourinairttg development of new template
pages that would allow for more flexibility andieféncy in disseminating content. In 2011, we madkeancements to the Sports Clubs for
Kids and Small Group Training sections of the wigb, svhich significantly improved lead generatiawveell as the overall appearance of
those sections of the site. The site provides médion about club locations, program offerings,reiee class schedules and sales promotions
The web site also allows our members to give usctifieedback about our service levels and enabtespective members to sign-up for our
popular 30 days for 30 dollars web trial membersiilgs has increased traffic in the clubs and techainy of these trial members joining as
full-time members. Prospective members can als@iaitheir full membership enroliment process tigto our web site. In addition, job
seekers can begin the employment application psatesugh the site and investors can access fiabinédbrmation and resources.

Sales

We sell our memberships primarily through threentieds; direct sales at the club level; throughamrporate and group sales division;
and through our outbound call center which we ohixed in September 2010 principally to reach odbtmer members. We are constantly
reviewing other possible opportunities to sell menships through the call center. We employ appraséhy 400 “in-club” membership
consultants who are responsible for new membesstigs in and around their designated club locati&ash club generally has either two or
three consultants. These consultants report dyrexthe club general manager, who, in turn, reptmrta district manager. We provide
additional incentive-based compensation in the fofmommissions and bonuses, contingent upon iddalj club and company-wide
enrollment goals. Membership consultants must ssfally complete an in-house training program tigtowhich they learn our sales
strategy and gain valuable hands-on experiencetréivéng program consists of three days of in-laem training followed by three weeks
of in-club training. In our New York, Boston and ¥¥éngton regions, these trainings occur in our
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three sales academies which were introduced in 21 1. All membership consultants hired and waykithin these regions attend these
training centers where a full time sales trainingnager is available to them. These academies atechwithin “working clubs” and the
membership consultants all have the opportunitgaon and experience the entire sales process (froapecting to after care) and product
knowledge in what we consider a live but supervisedronment. There are assessments throughotriaiheng and the membership
consultants must pass the course prior to beiregtsal and placed in a club. Both the in-houselil-@ind sales academy training allows us to
achieve consistency in our selling process. Sufidessmpletion of our training program allows eankmbership consultant to be
consistently trained and exit the training prognaitih a high level of brand standard selling skildyich will assist them in achieving their
targeted sales objectives.

Our corporate and group sales division consistgppfoximately 20 full-time employees located thiomgt our markets, who
concentrate on building long-term relationshipshiitcal and regional companies and large groupgp@ate and group members accounted
for approximately 17% of our total membership base®f December 31, 2011. We offer numerous progtameeet our corporate and group
clients’ needs including an online enroliment peogras well as a fully operational call center foroiment. We believe this focus on
relationship building, providing the corporate amser with options for enrollment and our clusteratgategy will continue to lead to new
group participation in the future. Corporate anolugr sales are typically sold at a discount to tamdard rates. Corporations frequently
subsidize the costs of memberships provided to gmployees.

We also sell individual memberships online for standard membership types. Our web site also enablé sell memberships for pre-
established corporate and group programs. The@géies channel offers a high degree of conveniemegistomers who know and trust our
brand and do not require up-front interaction veitmembership consultant to make their decisioadufition, selling online significantly
reduces our cost of sale. Members who joined ordage®unted for approximately 2.9% of membershipd is02011. We also offer a 30 days
for 30 dollars web trial membership for prospectivembers.

We believe that clustering clubs allows us to semberships based upon the opportunity for mentbarslize multiple club locations
near their workplace and their home. As of Decenie2011, our existing members were enrolled ufaartypes of memberships:

» The Passport Membership is our higher priced meshijgand entitles members to use any of our clulagy region at any time, or
any of our clubs within one region, other thanf¥SC region. These membership plans provide theeaaence of having fitness
clubs near a member’s workplace and home. The miuisé price of a commit Regional Passport andspad Memberships ranges
from $69 per month to $89 per month, excluding padsestricted members and corporate and groupbeemOur corporate and
group memberships are sold as Passport Membeshipaveraged approximately $62 per month for tkosin the year ended
December 31, 2011. The Passport Membership, imauslir passport restricted members, described helogvour corporate and
group members, was held by approximately 51% oft@tad members as of December 31, 2011. In additi@nhave a Passport
Premium Membership at two select clubs, which idekia greater array of member services and fasiliturrently listed at $105 to
$115 per montf

» The Core Membership was introduced on Novembe010Q2and enables members to use a specific clulyairae. The current list
price of a commit Core membership ranges from $&%ponth to $79 per month based on club speciéitiias and services, the
market area of enroliment and length of the menttygisontract. Core members can also elect to gaer @isit fee of $9.50 to use
non-home clubs. This membership, including our cestricted members, described below, was heldpyoximately 20% of our
members as of December 31, 2C

» The Restricted Membership is a favorably-pricedirieted-use month-to-month only membership. Inilig010, this membership
was introduced to students and we extended the esimnip to teachers and first responders in Aprdl28nd September 2011,
respectively. Usage fees of $9.50 per visit ardieg
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if a restricted member uses a club during peak$d\s of December 31, 2011, we had approximatel§EBrestricted members. T
restricted passport membership is currently liste®39 per month and restricted core membershgsiarently listed at $29 per
month.

» The Gold Membership, which was discontinued on Maver 1, 2010 and no longer offered to new memlesrahled members to L
a specific club at any time and any of our clubsrdpoff-peak times. Gold members can elect to paer visit fee of $9.50 to use
nor-home clubs during peak hours. This membership whstiy approximately 29% of our members as of Démam31, 2011

We offer both “month-to-month” and “commit” membbkiig payment plans. A member may cancel a monthdatmmembership at
any time with 30-days notice. Under the commit mMipdew members commit to a one year memberships&@ heemberships are priced at a
moderate discount to the month-to-month member$hip011 and 2010, 83% and 74% of our newly endatleembers opted for a commit
membership, respectively. As of December 31, 2@pproximately 19% of our members had originatedeuadmonth-to-month non-commit
membership and 81% had originated under a commitlmeeship. When the members’ commit period is otrery retain membership as a
month-to-month member until they choose to cankelof December 31, 2011, approximately 70% of otaltmembers were on a month-to-
month basis. We believe that members prefer to treesélexibility to choose between committing foreoyear or to join under the month-to-
month, non-commit membership.

In joining a club, a new member signs a memberabipement that typically obligates the member foqree-time joining fees, if
applicable, a rate lock guarantee and maintena&eahd monthly dues on an ongoing basis. Theiorejbining fees consist of initiation
fees and processing fees. In the third quarte£0682we had combined these fees. We promoted nemberships by discounting these fees
in 2008 and further discounting these fees in 20884lting in a low average joining fee per memife$20 in that year. In June 2010, we re-
introduced the onéime processing fee of between $19 and $29 per Galeently, our processing fee is $39 per salmidg fees collected fc
new monthly electronic funds transfer, or EFT, memstaveraged approximately $55 per member for ¢lae gnded December 31, 2011, an
increase of 175% over 2009. Monthly EFT of indivatimembership dues on a per-member basis, inclutmgffect of promotions and
memberships with reduced dues, averaged approXin®88 and $62 per month for the years ended Deee®ib, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Due to the popularity of our lowerepd Restricted Membership, our average per mexhbes decreased in the year ended
December 31, 2010 and in 2011, the popularity isfpghogram continued, decreasing average membedsieip further. 97.0% of our memk
pay their membership dues through EFT and EFT meshlperevenue constituted approximately 74.8% ofsctidated revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2011. Substantially all othenbseship dues are paid in full in advance. Our menstiip agreements call for monthly
dues to be collected by EFT based on credit caldink account debit authorization contained inatpeeement. During the first week of each
month, we receive the EFT dues for that month affteppayments are initiated by a third-party EFdcpsssor. Discrepancies and insufficient
funds incidents are researched and resolved bineduwsuse account services department.

We historically increased our existing member darasually by between 1% and 3% on average, in litie wcreases in the cost of
living. In 2011, the total membership dues incramas applied to approximately 40.0% of our membprbase resulting in an overall dues
increase of approximately 1.0% to 3.0%. In May 2044 implemented a combined rate lock guaranteevaidtenance fee of $29.00 for
which all members agree to at the time of enrolimé&his fee will be collected annually in Januaoy &Il members joining after the May 2C
implementation of the fee, and will support averagmthly dues revenue per member in 2012 and beyonghrt, this fee is in lieu of a
future dues increase for these members.

In January 2012, we collected $3.5 million of raigk guarantee and maintenance fees. These feldsewitcognized into revenue over
the 12 month period ended December 31, 2012. Tagge represents a $2.40 per member, per monttyHied would equate to an
approximate 4.0% increase in dues.
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Usage

Our suburban clubs are generally open 5:00 AM t6@®M on weekdays and 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM on wedkewhile our urban clubs
are generally open 5:00 AM to 11:00 PM on weekdays 8:00 AM to 9:00 PM on weekends. We have onle, elitnere member demand is
high, that remains open for 24 hours. We genecalhsider our peak usage times to be between 6:0@#d/B:30 AM and 4:00 PM and
8:30 PM on weekdays. Our hours of business aredb@seisage patterns at each individual club. Otat thub usage was 30.4 million and
30.0 million member visits for the years ended Delger 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, represemntibg% increase in total club usage
yearover-year basis. Usage per member has decreapeakapately 2.6% in the year ended December 311 2@Mmpared to 2010. In the
yea-ended December 31, 2011, approximately 38% of isiage or club visits was to members’ riamme clubs, indicating that our memkt
take advantage of our network of clubs. Our menttpssplans allow for club members to elect to paeavisit fee of $9.50 (increased from
$7.50 on November 1, 2011) to use non-home cluligest to peak and non-peak hourly restrictionsedelng on the membership type. In
the aggregate, approximately $2.0 million of ustgs were generated in 2011 and are reported inbeestmip dues in our consolidated
statements of operations.

Non-Membership Revenue

Over the past five years, we have expanded thesrahgncillary club services provided to our mensb&on-membership club revenue
has increased by 11.2% from 2007 to 2011 and ltasdred as a percentage of total revenue from 1i8.2%07 to 20.5% in 2011. Personal
training revenue, in particular, increased 11.2%rdhkis five-year period and increased as a peagentf total revenue from 11.9% in 2007 to
13.4% in 2011. In addition, we offer Sports ClubsKids and Small Group Training, both for an aitaitl fee, at select clubs. Consumer
confidence and consumer spending deteriorateckisdbond half of 2008 and throughout 2009 and b&geetover in 2010. Also in 2010,
recognized $2.7 million of personal training revemelated to unused and expired sessions in thireer gurisdictions, of which $570,000
related to expired sessions that would have bemogrezed in the year ended December 31, 2010. IBa 7 — Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations” for further information. In the yeardéamy December 31, 2012, we plan to
continue to focus on our ancillary programs withtirmued improvements in training and hiring andding on ancillary programs such as
personal training membership product introducedbline 2011 and our fee-based Small Group Trainiagrams which provide more focused
and typically more advanced classes such as Paatdsultiple types of functional training classes.

The table below presents non-membership revenup@oents as a percentage of total revenue for thesyaded December 31, 2007
through 2011.

For the Years Ended December 31, ($ in thousands)

2011 % 2010 % 2009 % 2008 % 2007 %

Total revenue $466,94. 100.(% $462,38° 100.(% $485,39: 100.% $506,70¢ 100.% $472,91! 100.(%
Non-Membership Revenue:
Personal training

revenue 62,39 13.4%  60,87: 13.2%  56,97: 11.7%  61,75: 12.2%  56,10¢ 11.9%
Other ancillary club

revenue(1)(2 28,29° 6.1% 24,68 5% 23,53t 4.8%  24,32¢ 4.8% 24,247 5.1%
Fees and Other

revenue(3 4,89( 1.C% 4,761 1.C% 4,661 1.C% 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2%
Total non-membership

revenue $ 95,58 20.5% $ 90,32( 19.5% §$ 85,16¢ 17.5% $ 92,11: 18.2% $ 85,96¢ 18.2%

(1) Other ancillary revenue primarily consists of Sn@albup Training, Sports Clubs for Kids, and raccgpairts.
10
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(2) Usage fees historically recorded in otherillng club revenue were reclassfied to membershigs revenue for 2011, 2010 and 2009 in
the amounts of $2.0 million, $1.7 million and $inillion, respectively

(3)Fees and other revenue primarily consist of rantaime, marketing revenue and management

Club Format and Locations

Our clubs are generally located in middle- or uppeome residential, commercial, urban and suburigghborhoods within major
metropolitan areas that are capable of supportiaglevelopment of a cluster of clubs. Our clubgchify have high visibility and are easily
accessible. In the New York metropolitan, Bostorashington, D.C. and Philadelphia markets, we hasated clusters of clubs in urban
areas and their commuter suburban areas alignédwitoperating strategy of offering our target rhens the convenience of multiple
locations close to where they live and work, reagat use privileges, and standardized facilitied sarvices.

Approximately 66% of our clubs are fithess-onlylidiand the remaining clubs are multi-recreatioalt. fithess-only clubs generally
range in size from 15,000 to 25,000 square feetlaardage approximately 20,000 square feet. Ourisradteational clubs generally range in
size from 25,000 to 65,000 square feet, with onb bleing 200,000 square feet. The average multeéational club size is approximately
40,000 square feet. Membership for each club gépesmges from 2,000 to 4,500 members at maturity.

We have experienced overall net growth over the fpgsyears primarily through developing and opgnnew club locations that we
have constructed, despite having only two club apemnin the past two years. In addition, we hawguaed existing, privately owned single
and multi€lub businesses. From January 1, 2007 to Decenih@031, we acquired one existing club, constru2&dew clubs and closed
relocated 19 clubs to increase our total clubs uogderation from 149 to 160. Currently, 51 of olubs, or approximately 32% of our existi
club base, were acquired. In the year ended DeaeBih@011, we opened two new clubs and closedctulus, keeping our total clubs under
operation at 160. In 2010 and 2011, we upgradedioegxisting clubs and plan to continue to dors@012.

To identify potential target areas for additionlalls, we engage in detailed site analyses andteeigmrocesses. Target areas are
identified based upon population demographics, pegaphics, traffic and commuting patterns, avditgtof sites and competitive market
information. We currently have identified approxieisgt 160 target areas in which we may add clubsuondr New York Sports Clubs,
Boston Sports Clubs, Washington Sports Clubs daBélphia Sports Clubs brand names. In additionhawes identified further growth
opportunities in secondary markets located neaerigting markets. In the future, we may explorpamsion opportunities in other market:
the United States that share similar demographacaatteristics to those in which we currently operéite currently do not have any signed
leases in place for club openings in 2012; howewerare targeting to open one club in the secoifh2012, three to six clubs in 2013 and
six to 12 clubs in 2014. We are focusing on oumarlmarkets with our fitness-only facility to fihése club opening targets. We expect these
clubs to cost approximately $2.5 million per clolbuild versus approximately $4.0 million investadeach of the two, larger, multi-
recreational clubs opened in 2011.

Our facilities include a mix of state-of-the-arrd@mvascular equipment, including AMT ellipticas,Spinners & Arc Trainers along
with bikes, steppers, treadmills and elliptical motmachines; free weight and strength equipmeantyuding Cybex, Nautilus, Techno Gym,
Strive, Precor, Star Trac and Hammer Strength eggiip; group exercise and cycling studios; the éaitenent system network; locker
rooms, including shower facilities, towel servigelaother amenities, such as saunas, babysittinbga amoshop. Each of our clubs is equipj
with automated external defibrillators (AEDs) fareuin cardiac arrest emergencies. Personal traggingces are offered at all locations for
additional charge. At certain locations, additiofaalilities are also offered, including swimmingot®and racquet and basketball courts. Also,
we have fee-based programming at many of our clabkiding Small Group Training, children’s progreynand other programs targeting
adult members. We also offer our Xpressline stiemgirkout at all of our clubs. Xpressline is anhtigtation total-body circuit workout
designed to be used in 22 minutes and to accommadidttness levels. This service is providedffee to our members.
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We have approximately 8,300 personal entertainmeits installed in our clubs. The units are tydicahounted on or near individual
pieces of cardiovascular equipment and are equipithca flat-panel color screen for television vieg. We believe our members prefer the
flexibility to view and listen to the programs digir choice during their cardiovascular workout. ¥erently have plans to transition from
analog television to a new digital system at 32wfNew York City clubs in 2012, offering membedsldional television channels.

In 2010, we began to roll out an expansion of fextwf the personal viewing screens on our cargiigpenent at select clubs using a
new entertainment system network. These additifzadlires include on-demand television and musad/iPhone compatibility and a club
information channel. We installed this new systemi2 of our Manhattan clubs in 2010 and in 10 aaldt clubs in 2011, for a total of 22
clubs installed as of December 31, 2011. We arsiderning on expanding the new system to additiohdds in Manhattan in 2012.

Club Services and Operations

Our clubs are structured to provide an enhancedbeesxperience through effective execution of querating plan. Our club and
support team members are the key to deliverinduedanember experience and our operations are izeghto maximize their overall
effectiveness. Our club operations include:

Management. We believe that our success is largely dependetti®selection and development of our team membans.
management structure is designed to strike the biglance between consistent execution of operatiexcellence and nurturing a leader’s
capacity for entrepreneurial decision making. @arhing and development system allows for all glositions to receive training on the key
elements of their role as well as development itngifor growth. We believe a critical componenbta growth is our ability to leverage
internally-developed management talent.

Our business is divided into regional operatingdinvith each reporting to a regional vice presideeporting to the regional vice
presidents are regionally-based functional supjearins as well as district managers who are redplerfeir executing the Company’s
operating plan within a group of clubs. Reportiadte district managers are the individual clubegahmanagers who are responsible for the
day-to-day management of each club. At each leiedsponsibility, compensation is structured taeimicdriving the member experience and
profitability.

Functional Support. Functional teams provide technical expertise ambstt designed to drive the member experience ewehue
growth in specific areas of our clubs’ servicesjuding sales and marketing, fithess and ancilfmogramming, learning and development as
well as facility management and member service.

Driving excellence in fitness and ancillary prograing is critical to our success. All of our fitnedabs offer one-on-one personal
training, which is sold in both single session amdti-session packages. Our fitness teams arectildim provide superior fithess solutions to
address member needs. We believe the qualificatibtie personal training staff help to ensure thambers receive a consistent level of
quality service throughout our clubs and that aenspnal training programs provide valuable guidanaaur members as well as a significant
source of incremental revenue for us. Our persivailers are grouped by professional certificatiod advanced specialty education.
Personal trainer compensation is based on professi@signation and the number of training sesgioe perform. We believe that memb
who patrticipate in personal training programs tgfichave a longer membership life.

Our commitment to providing a quality exercise axgrece to our members also includes group exepisgramming. Our instructors
teach a variety of classes including: aerobicslimgestrength conditioning, boxing, yoga, Pilatesl step aerobics classes. Instructors report
through local club management and are further suppdy regional directors responsible for ensudagsistency in class content,
scheduling, training and
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instruction. We also provide Small Group Trainirfiedngs to our members, which are fee-based progrtat have smaller groups, with a
maximum of four to eight members per class, andigeomore focused and typically more advanced eksBhese offerings include Pilates
and multiple functional training classes.

In addition to group exercise, we offer a varietyncillary programming for children under our Ssa€lubs for Kids brand. As of
December 31, 2011, Sports Clubs for Kids was beffeged in 33 locations throughout our New York 8pclubs, Boston Sports Clubs and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs regions. Our Sports Clab&ids programming positions our multi-recreati clubs as family clubs, which we
believe provides us with a competitive advantagegpdhding upon the facilities available at a loggt®ports Clubs for Kids programming «
include traditional youth offerings such as day pansports camps, swim lessons, hockey and sagagués, gymnastics, dance, and birthday
parties. It also can include non-competitive “letorplay” sports programs.

Functional and leadership skills development pkagsitical role in enabling our success. Team merdbeelopment occurs at both the
club level and in the classroom. Managers playtal vdle in the development of their teams andrartlosely with our learning and
development team to advance team member skilfufore growth. Our learning programs are consitadgsigned and focused on building
strong functional and leadership skills acrossafgnization. This also includes specialized fignasd group exercise training curriculum.

Our facilities and equipment management teams ededted to ensuring our clubs and fitness equip@enoperating at the highest
standard of performance for our members. Local seara deployed to provide on-site support to chgeeeded.

Our club support and member services groups agtcasrdinating point for all departments, suppgréxcellence in program executi
and ensuring consistency of policies and procedacesss the entire organization that support thebee experience.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

We provide performance-based incentives to our gemant. Senior management compensation, for exampled to our overall
performance. Departmental directors, district mansa@nd general managers can achieve bonuses fiedricial and member retention
targets. We offer our employees various benefithigding health, dental and disability insurance-tax healthcare, commuting and
dependent care accounts; and a 401(k) plan. Wevieethe availability of employee benefits providsswith a strategic advantage in
attracting and retaining quality managers, progiestructors and professional personal trainersthatlthis strategic advantage in turn
translates into a more consistent and higher-qualitrkout experience for those members who utdizeh services.

Centralized Information Systems

In 2011, we began the process of replacing oueotiproprietary club management system that is tesedll memberships, bill our
members, track and analyze sales and memberstigiista the frequency and timing of member workpetosselub utilization, member lift
value-added services and demographic profiles bylmee. We plan to replace the system over the megetyears to ensure we meet the
changing needs of our business and can adapt asige new business opportunities.

We have implemented significant new business prosapport in our existing club management systesnaa@ still updating and
modifying our current system.

The first phase of the transition supported outufoon member acquisition by implementing Oraclet@usr Relationship Manageme
on Demand. We configured this system to reflectredefined sales
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processes and integrated it back into the exigtinig management system ensuring the seamless fldat@ across the enterprise. We are
able to retire the member acquisition area of ddiisgstem and move onto the next phase. Phase itWimeus on replacing functionality
around registration and booking for group exereise Small Group Training classes as well as pdistile and club check-in. We will select
a strategic partner to deliver the software to supihese services and as in the first phase, Wdéully integrate the system to ensure a
seamless flow of data across the enterprise.

This program of change will continue until all failenality within the current club management systeas been replaced and enhanced
with new software programs that are integratedttogyeto behave as one single system. Conductingdhsition in phases allows for a more
managed approach to change ensuring that we rdorised on growing and developing our core busiaadsnot being distracted by the
impact of too much change.

Information Technology

We recognize the value of enhancing and extendiegises of information technology (“ITit) virtually every area of our business. (
IT strategy is aligned to support our businesgegsaand operating plans. We maintain an ongoimgprehensive multi-year program to
replace or upgrade key systems and to optimize pleeformance.

In 2011, we upgraded several business applicadinddT infrastructure components as well as uniirgea re-organization of the IT
department. This re-organization created clearasaof accountability and introduced single poarfitsontact for our internal customers.
Through these changes we wanted IT to become dasderbusiness with, reflect our customer seraitentation, bring more focus on a
critical area of IT and ensure that the team wdganore successful in delivery.

Our business intelligence tool and our budgetird)farecasting tool were upgraded creating a mollatoarative environment, far eas
accessibility as well as much improved capacity padormance. Many lifecycle upgrades were alséopered across the application
portfolio and a more robust planning process faliaption lifecycle management instituted.

Building on the successful move of our data cetttem AT&T co-location facility in 2011, we replatand expanded our existing
virtual server platform, storage and back up emriment that will allow us to consolidate more sesvend simplify IT operations. This key
platform will be the foundation for future IT seceis and will be continuously leveraged into therfet We already have plans in 2012 to
leverage this platform to implement “Single Sign*@uaross all key applications, simplifying the useperience and increasing our security
capabilities as well as an upgrade and expansionmoEmail services to include our group exercise @ersonal training employees at the
clubs.

We continuously implement infrastructure changeadmommodate growth, provide network redundancigebmanage
telecommunications and data costs, increase effi@s in operations and improve management ofatiponents of our technical
architecture, including disaster recovery. 201lugha significant change in the IT services delidei@ our business and set the scene for
many more enhancements to be delivered in the gpy@ars.

Intellectual Property

We have registered various trademarks and servackswvith the U.S. Patent and Trademark Officduitiog, NEW YORK SPORTS
CLUBS and NYSC, WASHINGTON SPORTS CLUBS and WSC BOSTON SPORTS CLUBS and BSG PHILADELPHIA SPORTS
CLUBS and PSC, SPORTS CLUBS FOR KIDSandCOMPANIESGETFIT.COM. We continue to register other trademarks and servic
marks. We believe that our rights to these propeiire adequately protected.
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Competition

The fitness club industry is highly competitive azahtinues to become more competitive. The numbbkealth clubs in the U.S. has
increased from 29,357 in 2006 to 29,890 in 2018edan the most recent information available. hea the markets in which we operate,
we compete with other fitness clubs, physical 8sand recreational facilities.

We consider the following groups to be our primemynpetitors in the health and fithess industry:

» commercial, multi-recreational and fitness-onlyioBaincluding, among others, Equinox Holdings,.ihdéfetime Fitness, Inc.,
Crunch, New York Health and Racquet, LA Fitnessimational LLC, 24 Hour Fitness Worldwide, Inc.|lga otal Fithess Holding
Corporation, Gol's Gym International, Inc., Retro Fitness, Snapdsisn Anytime Fitness and Planet Fitn

» the YMCA and similar no-profit organizations

» physical fithess and recreational facilities essdiad by local governments, hospitals and busiise

» exercise and small fithess clubs; racquet, tenmdsagher athletic club

 private studios offering cycling, yoga or Pilat

* amenity gyms in apartments and condominiu

» weight-reducing salons

 country clubs; ani

» the hom-use fitness equipment indust

The principal methods of competition include prigeind ease of payment, required level of memberstractual commitment, level

and quality of services, training and quality opstvisory staff, size and layout of facility ancheenience of location with respect to acce:
transportation and pedestrian traffic.

We consider our service offerings to be in the tied-of the value/service proposition and desigteedppeal to a large portion of the
population who utilize fitness facilities. The nuenlof competitor clubs that offer lower pricing amtbwer level of service have continued to
grow in our markets over the last few years. Thabgles have attracted, and may continue to attnaeimbers away from both our fitness-only
clubs and our multi-recreational clubs.

We also face competition from club operators offgriomparable or higher pricing with higher lev@iservice. The trend to larger
outer-suburban family fithess centers, in areasrevhaitable real estate is more likely to be atdélacould also compete effectively against
our suburban formats.

Competitive Position Measured by Number of Clubs

Number of
Market Clubs Position
Boston metropolitan 25 Leading owner and operat
New York metropolitar 10¢ Leading owner and operat
Philadelphia metropolita 6 # 3 owner and operator, #2 in urban ce
Washington, D.C. metropolite 18 Leading owner and operat
Switzerland 3 Local owner and operator on

We also compete with other entertainment and rbtesinesses for the discretionary income in ogetatiemographics. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete efféelgtivethe future in the markets in which we oper&@empetitors, who may include
companies that are larger and have greater resotirae us,
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may enter these markets to our detriment. Thesgebttive conditions may limit our ability to increa dues without a material loss in
membership, attract new members and attract aathrgtialified personnel. Additionally, consolidatim the fitness club industry could
result in increased competition among participgmasticularly large multi-facility operators thateaable to compete for attractive acquisition
candidates and/or newly constructed club locatidhss increased competition could increase ourscassociated with expansion through
both acquisitions and for real estate availabftitynewly constructed club locations.

We believe that our market leadership, experienckeoperating efficiencies enable us to providecibresumer with a superior produc
terms of convenience, quality service and afforiitgbWe believe that there are barriers to entrpir metropolitan areas, including
restrictive zoning laws, lengthy permit processes @ shortage of appropriate real estate, whickdatiscourage any large competitor from
attempting to open a chain of clubs in these markébwever, such a competitor could enter thes&etmmore easily through one, or a se
of, acquisitions. These barriers of entry are sigant in our four metropolitan regions, howevesytare not as challenging in our surrounding
suburban locations.

Seasonality of Business

Seasonal trends have a limited effect on our ovkuginess. Generally, we experience greater meshlegrowth at the beginning of
each year and experience an increased rate of mehipattrition during the summer months. In addifiduring the summer months, we
experience a slight increase in operating expetiseso our outdoor pool and summer camp operatgarserally matched by seasonal
revenue recognition from season pool membershigscamp revenue.

Government Regulation

Our operations and business practices are subjéederal, state and local government regulatidghénvarious jurisdictions in which
our clubs are located, including general rulesragdlations of the Federal Trade Commission, statelocal consumer protection agencies
and state statutes that prescribe certain formgendsions of membership contracts and that gottegradvertising, sale, financing and
collection of such memberships as well as statd@sa health regulations.

Statutes and regulations affecting the fithesssihgthave been enacted in jurisdictions in whichceeduct business and other states
into which we may expand in the future have adopteshay adopt similar legislation. Typically, thestatutes and regulations prescribe
certain forms and provisions of membership consraafford members the right to cancel the contratttin a specified time period after
signing or in certain circumstances, such as fadioa reasons or relocation to a certain distanma the nearest club, require an escrow of
funds received from pre-opening sales or the pgsifra bond or proof of financial responsibilitydamay establish maximum prices for
membership contracts and limitations on the termootracts. The specific procedures and reasortafarellation vary due to differing laws
in the respective jurisdictions, but in each ins&grihe canceling member is entitled to a refundneised prepaid amounts. In addition, se\
states have proposed legislation that would prottiei automatic rollover of membership once a metalm®mmitment period expires. We
are also subject to numerous other types of fededistate regulations governing the sale of meshiqes. These laws and regulations are
subject to varying interpretations by a numbenafesand federal enforcement agencies and cougsn¥#intain internal review procedures to
comply with these requirements and believe thatativities are in substantial compliance withagdplicable statutes, rules and decisions.

The tax treatment of membership dues varies bg.skime states in which we operate require satde tae collected on membership
dues and personal training sessions. Several adtetes in which we operate have proposed singilalegislation. These taxes have the effect
of increasing the payments by our members, whichdcionpede our ability to attract new members adiuice members to cancel their
membership.

Changes in any statutes, rules or regulations doave a material adverse effect on our financiabt@n and results of operations.
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Employees

At December 31, 2011, we had approximately 7,90pleyees, of whom approximately 3,100 were empldydidime. Approximately
390 of those employees were corporate and othbrstipport personnel. We are not a party to angctiVle bargaining agreement with our
employees. We have never experienced any signifiabor shortages or had any difficulty in obtagnedequate replacements for departing
employees. We consider our relations with our eygs to be good.

Available Information

We make available through our web sitevat/w.mysportsclubs.corim the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings” sectifiree of charge,
all reports and amendments to those reports fitddraished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(dhef$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), as soon as reasomabbticable after we electronically file such mmitlewith, or furnish it to, the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Occasionallymay use our web site as a channel of distribuifanaterial company information.
Financial and other material information regardimg Company is routinely posted on and accesstblgta://investor.mysportsclubs.com/
In addition, you may automatically receive emadirtd and other information about us by enrollingryemail by visiting the "E-mail Alerts”
section at http://investor.mysportsclubs.com/

The foregoing information regarding our website #@adontent is for convenience only. The contdriw website is not deemed to be
incorporated by reference into this report nor $thittbe deemed to have been filed with the SEC.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks dibsat below and all other information in this AnniRéport on Form 10-K. The risks
and uncertainties described below are not the onlgs that we face. Additional risks and uncertamtiot presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also impair our besis and operations. If any of the following risktually occur, our business, financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations cobé materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business
We may be unable to attract and retain members, ehhiould have a negative effect on our business.

The performance of our clubs is highly dependenbwmability to attract and retain members, andweg not be successful in these
efforts. Most of our members can cancel their chdmbership at any time under certain circumstarinesddition, there are numerous fac
that have in the past and could in the future teaaldecline in membership levels or that could/eng¢ us from increasing our membership,
including a decline in our ability to deliver quglservice at a competitive cost, the presencerettland indirect competition in the areas in
which the clubs are located, the public’s intemeditness clubs and general economic conditions.

Negative economic conditions, including increasedmployment levels and decreased consumer confidéage contributed and in
the future could lead to significant pressures @alines in economic growth, including reduced comsr spending. In a depressed economic
and consumer environment, consumers and businessepostpone spending in response to tighter ¢neelfative financial news and/or
declines in income or asset values, which couletematerial negative effect on the demand forsewrices and products and such declir
demand may continue as the economy continuesugglér and disposable income declines. Other fathatscould influence demand include
increases in fuel and other energy costs, conditioithe residential real estate and mortgage nwrlabdor and healthcare costs, access to
credit, consumer confidence and other macroecontantors affecting consumer spending behavior. dftalenges to the global economy
during the past several years have adversely effemir business and our revenues and profits amtthaong challenges will result in
additional adverse effects. As a result of thestofa, membership levels might not be adequatediotain our operations at current levels or
permit the expansion of our operations.
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In addition, to the extent our corporate clients adversely affected by negative economic condititlhey may decide, as part of
expense reduction strategies, to curtail or cacloél membership benefits provided to their respeamployees. Any reductions in corporate
memberships may lead to membership cancellatiomgasn not assure that employees of corporatermess will choose to continue their
memberships without employer subsidies. A decimmémbership levels may have a material adversetesh our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Low consumer confidence levels, increased compmtititnd decreased spending could negatively impartfmancial position and
result in club closures and fixed asset and goodviipairments.

In the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010losecctwo clubs and one club, respectively. Wendidrecognize any fixed asset
impairments in the year ended December 31, 201ile aHixed asset impairment charge of $3.3 millweais recognized in the year ended
December 31, 2010. While there were no goodwillampents in 2011 and 2010, we have in the pastrisqueed goodwill impairments, in
part due to decreased membership. Some of thesaretoand impairments were due, in large parhg¢@tonomic and consumer
environment, and increased competition in areaghich our clubs operate. If the economic and corsuenvironment were to deteriorate
further or if we are unable to improve the ovecalinpetitive position of our clubs, our operatingfpemance may experience declines anc
may need to recognize additional impairments oflong-lived assets and goodwill and may be comgétbeclose additional clubs. In
addition, we cannot ensure that we will be ableefdace any of the revenue lost from these clokdamsdrom our other club operations.

Our geographic concentration heightens our exposuoeadverse regional developments.

As of December 31, 2011, we operated 108 fitnagssah the New York metropolitan market, 25 fithekgs in the Boston market, 18
fitness clubs in the Washington, D.C. market, gixeks clubs in the Philadelphia market and thiteess clubs in Switzerland. Our
geographic concentration in the Northeast and Midntic regions and, in particular, the New Yorlktmopolitan area, heightens our expos
to adverse developments related to competitiomedisas economic and demographic changes in tleggerrs. Our geographic concentration
might result in a material adverse effect on owifess, financial condition, cash flows and respiltsperations in the future.

The level of competition in the fitness club indugtcould negatively impact our revenue growth andbfitability.

The fitness club industry is highly competitive azahtinues to become more competitive. In each@htarkets in which we operate,
we compete with other fitness clubs, physical 8sand recreational facilities established by lgcalernments, hospitals and businesses for
their employees, amenity and condominium clubsYtECA and similar organizations and, to a certaiteat, with racquet and tennis and
other athletic clubs, country clubs, weight redgcsalons and the home-use fitness equipment indW& also compete with other
entertainment and retail businesses for the discrety income in our target demographics. We migtitbe able to compete effectively in the
future in the markets in which we operate. Competitnclude companies that are larger and haveagressources than us and they may ¢
these markets to our detriment. These competitivelitions may limit our ability to increase dueghwiut a material loss in membership,
attract new members and attract and retain qualfiersonnel. Additionally, consolidation in thenéiss club industry could result in increased
competition among participants, particularly largelti-facility operators that are able to compete faraative acquisition candidates or ne
constructed club locations, thereby increasingscassociated with expansion through both acquisitamd lease negotiation and real estate
availability for newly constructed club locations.

The number of competitor clubs that offer lowercpg and a lower level of service continue to giowur markets. These clubs have
attracted, and may continue to attract, membery &oen both our fitness-only clubs and our multtneational clubs, particularly in the
current consumer environment. Furthermore, smatérless expensive weight loss facilities presemrapetitive alternative for consumers.
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We also face competition from competitors offeramgnparable or higher pricing with higher levelssefvice. The trend to larger outer-
suburban, multi-recreational family fitness cent@rsareas where suitable real estate is moreyliteebe available, also compete against our
suburban, fithess-only models.

In addition, large competitors could enter the arbaarkets in which we operate to open a chainuiin these markets through one
a series of, acquisitions.

Our trademarks and trade names may be infringedsappropriated or challenged by others.

We believe our brand names and related intellegiugderty are important to our continued success s@ek to protect our trademarks,
trade names and other intellectual property byasieig our rights under applicable trademark anulydght laws. If we were to fail to
successfully protect our intellectual property tggfor any reason, it could have an adverse effiecur business, results of operations and
financial condition. Any damage to our reputatiouid cause membership levels to decline and makeiie difficult to attract new membe

If we are unable to identify and acquire suitablées for new clubs, our revenue growth rate and fite may be negatively impacted.

To successfully expand our business over the leng,twe must identify and acquire sites that meetie selection criteria. In additi
to finding sites with the right geographical, demagghic and other measures we employ in our selegtiocess, we also need to evaluate the
penetration of our competitors in the market. W=faompetition from other health and fithess ceaparators for sites that meet our criteria
and as a result, we may lose those sites, our ditonsecould copy our format or we could be for¢egbay higher prices for those sites. If we
are unable to identify and acquire sites for navbglon attractive terms, our revenue, growth ratepofits may be negatively impacted.
Additionally, if our analysis of the suitability @f site is incorrect, we may not be able to recovercapital investment in developing and
building the new club.

The opening of new clubs by us in existing locat®may negatively impact our comparable club revemuewth and our operating
margins.

We currently operate clubs throughout the NorthaadtMid-Atlantic regions of the United States. Werently do not have signed
lease commitments in existing markets; howevermtam is to open one club in 2012. In the case dtielg markets, our experience has been
that opening new clubs may attract some membershipy from other clubs already operated by usaseimarkets and diminish their
revenues. In addition, as a result of new club opgenin existing markets and because older cluligegresent an increasing proportion of
our club base over time, our mature club revenaesses may be lower in future periods than irpass.

Another result of opening new clubs is that oubaperating margins may be lower than they have hésorically while the clubs
build a membership base. We expect both the addifigore-opening expenses and the lower revenuenas characteristic of newly opened
clubs to affect our club operating margins at these clubs.

We may experience prolonged periods of losses inreaently opened clubs.

Upon opening a club, we typically experience atiahperiod of club operating losses. Enrolimewnirpre-sold memberships typically
generates insufficient revenue for the club tdatiit generate positive cash flow. As a resultesvrtlub typically generates an operating loss
in its first full year of operations and substaltyifower margins in its second full year of opéoas than a club opened for more than
24 months. These operating losses and lower mangihsegatively impact our future results of op@was. This negative impact will be
increased by the initial expensing of pre-openiostg, which include legal and other costs
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associated with lease negotiations and permittimyzoning requirements, as well as depreciationsamartization expenses, which will
further negatively impact net income. We may, atdiscretion, accelerate or expand our plans tmomav clubs, which may temporarily
adversely affect results from operations. We hayened a total of two new club locations in the fiears ended December 31, 2011, both in
the fourth quarter of 2011.

We could be subject to claims related to healthsafety risks at our clubs.

Use of our clubs poses some potential health etysaisks to members or guests through physicattiexeand use of our services and
facilities, including exercise equipment. Claimghtibe asserted against us for injury sufferecobyleath of members or guests while
exercising at a club. We might not be able to sssftdly defend such claims. As a result, we migiitbe able to maintain our general liabi
insurance on acceptable terms in the future or taiaim level of insurance that would provide adégueaverage against potential claims.

Depending upon the outcome, these matters maydaaerial effect on our consolidated financialipms, results of operations and
cash flows.

Security and privacy breaches may expose us talitgtand cause us to lose customers.

Federal and state law requires us to safeguardumiomers’ financial information, including credérd information. Although we have
established security procedures and protocol, distucredit card industry compliance proceduregrtdect against identity theft and the tl
of our customers’ financial information, our setydnd testing measures may not prevent securiigdires and breaches of our customers’
privacy may occur, which could harm our business.d¢xample, a significant number of our users mlevis with credit card and other
confidential information and authorize us to Hileir credit card accounts directly for our produantsl services. Typically, we rely on
encryption and authentication technology licensethfthird parties to enhance transmission secuofigonfidential information. Advances in
computer capabilities, new discoveries in the figdryptography, inadequate facility security timer developments may result in a
compromise or breach of the technology used by psdtect customer data. Any compromise of our sgcoould harm our reputation or
financial condition and, therefore, our businessaddition, a party who is able to circumvent ceggity measures or exploit inadequacies in
our security measures, could, among other effetitgppropriate proprietary information, cause inetions in our operations or expose
customers to computer viruses or other disruptidictual or perceived vulnerabilities may lead tails against us. To the extent the
measures we have taken prove to be insufficieirtaztequate, we may become subject to litigatioadoninistrative sanctions, which could
result in significant fines, penalties or damaged laarm to our reputation.

Loss of key personnel and/or failure to attract anetain highly qualified personnel could make it medifficult for us to develop our
business and enhance our financial performance.

We are dependent on the continued services ofemioismanagement team, particularly our Chief ExigelOfficer, Robert Giardina.
We believe the loss of such key personnel coule lzamaterial adverse effect on us and our finapeiegbrmance. Currently, we do not have
any long-term employment agreements with our exeeuwifficers, and we may not be able to attract ratadin sufficient qualified personnel
to meet our business needs.

Terrorism and the uncertainty of armed conflicts mdave a material adverse effect on clubs and operating results.

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that ocdunr&lew York City and Washington, D.C. on Septemblk 2001, and other acts of
violence or war may affect the markets in whichoperate, our operating results or the market orclivbur common stock trades. Our
geographic concentration in the major cities in the
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Northeast and Mi-Atlantic regions and, in particular, the New Yd&ky and Washington, D.C. areas, heightens our &x@oto any such
future terrorist attacks, which may adversely affaa clubs and result in a decrease in our reventige potential near-term and long-term
effect these attacks may have for our membersntn&ets for our services and the market for ourrnom stock are uncertain; however, their
occurrence can be expected to further negativédctthe United States economy generally and sipatlif the regional markets in which we
operate. The consequences of any terrorist attacksy armed conflicts are unpredictable; and wg nw be able to foresee events that ¢
have an adverse effect on our business.

Disruptions and failures involving our informatiorsystems could cause customer dissatisfaction angeegkly affect our billing and
other administrative functions.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance ofinformation systems is critical to our success. We a fullyintegrated informatio
system to sell memberships, bill our members, teagkanalyze sales and membership statisticsyaljaéncy and timing of member
workouts, cross-club utilization, member life, vedadded services and demographic profiles by menibé system also assists us in
evaluating staffing needs and program offerings.b&leve that, without investing in enhancementis, $ystem is approaching the end of its
life cycle. In 2011, we began the process of reéptathis system and we plan to transition the regii@ent over the next three
years. Correcting any disruptions or failures fé¢cted our proprietary system could be diffictifhe-consuming and expensive because we
would need to use contracted consultants familiety eur system.

Any failure of our current system could also causé¢o lose members and adversely affect our busied results of operations. Our
members may become dissatisfied by any systemspdiign or failure that interrupts our ability togwide our services to them. Disruptions
failures that affect our billing and other admirasive functions could have an adverse affect aroperating results.

Infrastructure changes are being undertaken tonacmmlate our growth, provide network redundancytebebhanage
telecommunications and data costs, increase eftii@s in operations and improve management obatippnents of our technical
architecture. Fire, floods, earthquakes, power, fiedscommunications failures, break-ins, acteaforism and similar events could damage
our systems. In addition, computer viruses, eleitrbreak-ins or other similar disruptive problecosild also adversely affect our sites. Any
system disruption or failure, security breach ¢reotdamage that interrupts or delays our operation&l cause us to lose members, damage
our reputation, and adversely affect our businesisrasults of operations.

Our growth could place strains on our managementgoyees, information systems and internal controlhich may adversely impact
our business.

Over the past five years, we have experienced growbur business activities and operations, inolg@n increase in the number of
clubs. Future expansion will place increased demamdour administrative, operational, financial atiter resources. Any failure to manage
growth effectively could seriously harm our busmeBo be successful, we will need to continue tprome management information systems
and our operating, administrative, financial andoamnting systems and controls. We will also neetiaim new employees and maintain close
coordination among our executive, accounting, fagamarketing, sales and operations functions. & pescesses are time-consuming and
expensive, increase management responsibilitiesliaed management attention.

Our cash and cash equivalents are concentrated isnaall number of banks.

Our cash and cash equivalents are held, primamilg,small number of commercial banks. These dépasé not collateralized. In the
event these banks become insolvent, we would bleleima recover most of our cash and cash equivaldgposited at the banks. Cash and
cash equivalents held in a small number of comrakbzinks as of December 31, 2011 totaled $46 milluring 2011, in any one month,
this amount has been as high as approximately $fiérm
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Regulatory changes in the terms of credit and dedstd usage, including any existing or future recatbry requirements, could have an
adverse effect on our business.

Our business relies heavily on the use of creditdebit cards in sales transactions. Regulatorpgdsto existing rules or future
regulatory requirements affecting the use of cradd debit cards or the fees charged could impactonsumer and financial institutions who
provide card services. This may lead to an advierpact on our business if the regulatory changssltrén unfavorable terms to either the
consumer or the banking institutions.

Because of the capital-intensive nature of our bness, we may have to incur additional indebtednesgssue new equity securities and,
if we are not able to obtain additional capital, pability to operate or expand our business mayitmpaired and our results of
operations could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant levels of capddlnance the development of additional sitesnfexwv clubs and the construction of our
clubs. If cash from available sources is insuffitier unavailable due to restrictive credit marketsif cash is used for unanticipated needs,
we may require additional capital sooner than gted. In the event that we are required or chtmseaise additional funds, we may be
unable to do so on favorable terms or at all. Farrttore, the cost of debt financing could signifibamcrease, making it cost-prohibitive to
borrow, which could force us to issue new equityusities. If we issue new equity securities, erigtshareholders may experience additional
dilution or the new equity securities may have tsglpreferences or privileges senior to those ddtieng holders of common stock. If we
cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, we magenable to execute our current growth plans, talk@mtage of future opportunities or
respond to competitive pressures. Any inabilityaise additional capital when required could havadverse effect on our business plans
operating results.

We may incur rising costs related to constructiohreew clubs and maintaining our existing clubs. ¥e are not able to pass these cost
increases through to our members, our returns may ddversely affected.

Our clubs require significant upfront investmefibdr investment is higher than we had plannedmag need to outperform our
operational plan to achieve our targeted returrer@ve longer term, we believe that we can offsst increases by increasing our
membership dues and other fees and improving piulfity through cost efficiencies; however, higleests in certain regions where we are
opening new clubs during any period of time maylifécult to offset in the short-term.

We may be required to remit unclaimed property tates for unused, expired personal training sesson

We recognize revenue from personal training sessasrthe services are performed (i.e., when theoseis trained). Unused personal
training sessions expire after a set, disclosemgeaf time after purchase and are not refundabledeemable by the member for cash. The
State of New York has informed us that it is coasitg whether we are required to remit the amoec¢ived by us for unused, expired
personal training sessions to the State of New “asrkinclaimed property. As of December 31, 2011hadeapproximately $12.1 million of
unused and expired personal training session$iitahot been recognized as revenue and recordbzfexrsed revenue. We do not believe
that these amounts are subject to the escheatmahbtndoned property laws of any jurisdiction, uiihg the State of New York. However
is possible that one of these jurisdictions mayagsee with our position and may claim that we mestit all or a portion of these amounts to
such jurisdiction. For three of our jurisdictiomee concluded, based on opinions from outside cdutieg monies held by a company for
unused and expired personal training sessionsaressheatable. As a result, the Company has reiregygroximately $2.7 million from
deferred revenue, of which approximately $570,@08ted to expired sessions that would have beegnézed in the year ended
December 31, 2010 and recorded such amount asngétsaining revenue in the fourth quarter of 2010.
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Our growth and profitability could be negatively jpacted if we are unable to renew or replace our @nt club leases on favorable
terms, or at all, and we cannot find suitable altexte locations.

We currently lease substantially all of our fithe&sb locations pursuant to long-term leases (gulyet5 to 25 years, including option
periods). During the next five years, or the peffimin January 1, 2012 through December 31, 201&ave leases for 10 club locations that
are due to expire without any renewal options,dhofewhich expire in 2012, and 48 club locatioret thre due to expire with renewal options.
For leases with renewal options, several of theowige for our unilateral option to renew for adaiital rental periods at specific rental rates
(for example, based on the consumer price indestated renewal terms already set in the leasdss®d on the fair market rate at the
location. Our ability to negotiate favorable teramsan expiring lease or to negotiate favorable sesmleases with renewal options, or
conversely for a suitable alternate location, caldgend on conditions in the real estate marketpedition for desirable properties and our
relationships with current and prospective landtawd may depend on other factors that are not withir control. Any or all of these factors
and conditions could negatively impact our growtl arofitability.

Risks Related to Our Leverage and Our Indebtedness

On May 11, 2011, TSI, LLC entered into a $350 millisenior secured credit facility (“2011 Senior @tré&acility”). The 2011 Senior
Credit Facility consists of a $300 million term togacility (“2011 Term Loan Facility”), and a $50iliion revolving loan facility (“2011
Revolving Loan Facility”). The 2011 Term Loan Fagiimatures on May 11, 2018, and the 2011 Revoltiogn Facility matures on May 11,
2016.

We may be negatively affected by economic condgionthe United States and key international marget

We must maintain liquidity to fund our working ctgdj service our outstanding indebtedness and émamvestment opportunities.
Without sufficient liquidity, we could be forced tairtail our operations or we may not be able tspe new business opportunities. If our
current resources do not satisfy our liquidity riegjments, we may have to seek additional financiing principal sources of our liquidity are
funds generated from operating activities, avadlataish and cash equivalents and borrowings undé&5@u0 million 2011 Revolving Loan
Facility.

The capital and credit markets have been experignolatility and disruption in the recent past. #gesult, one or more of our current
lenders could experience financial difficulty, aagla result fail to provide the required lendingoants under our 2011 Senior Credit Facility.
If this should occur, we may need to seek additiinancing from other sources. The availabilityfiofancing will depend on a variety of
factors, such as economic and market conditiomsatailability of credit and our credit ratings,vesll as the possibility that lenders could
develop a negative perception of the prospectsioCmmpany or the fitness industry in general. W&y mot be able to successfully obtain
any necessary additional financing on favorablmseror financing altogether.

Economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, m@ffigct our financial performance. Prevailing ecmimconditions, including
unemployment levels, inflation, availability of dig energy costs and other macro-economic facésrsyell as uncertainty about future
economic conditions, adversely affect consumer dipgrand, consequently, our business and resutiperations.

Our leverage may impair our financial condition, @hwe may incur significant additional debt.

We currently have a substantial amount of debtofA3ecember 31, 2011, our total outstanding codatdid debt was $291.8 million.
Our substantial debt could have important consetpgenncluding:

» making it more difficult for us to satisfy our ofditions with respect to our outstanding indebtesi
 increasing our vulnerability to general adversenecoic and industry condition
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* limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expend#siy acquisitions of clubs and other
general corporate requiremer

* requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfroperations for the payment of interest on otat,dehich is variable on our 2011
Revolving Loan Facility and partially variable oar®2011 Term Loan Facility, and/or principal punsup excess cash flow
requirements and reducing our ability to use oshdéow to fund working capital, capital expendésrand acquisitions of new clubs
and general corporate requiremel

 increasing our vulnerability to interest rate flumtions in connection with borrowings under our P&knior Credit Facility which a
at variable interest rate

« limiting our ability to refinance our existing inbdi&dness on favorable terms, or at all;
« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhioh we operate

These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveragetpetitors.

In addition, as of December 31, 2011, we had $atlébn of unutilized borrowings under our 2011 Réxing Loan Facility. If new
debt is added to our and our subsidiaries’ curdebt levels, the related risks that we and theyeatily face could intensify.

The current debt under the 2011 Senior Credit Fatgilhas a floating interest rate and an increaseiimerest rates may negatively
impact our financial results.

Interest rates applicable to our debt are expdctéidctuate based on economic and market fact@tsare beyond our control. In
particular, all of the outstanding debt under 0dit 2 Senior Credit Facility will have a floating émést rate. Any significant increase in market
interest rates, and in particular the short-ternoHallar rates, would result in a significant ingse in interest expense on our debt, which
could negatively impact our net income and casivglo

The Company may be unsuccessful in its efforts tizetively hedge against interest rate changes am variable rate debt.

In its normal operations, the Company is exposeadddket risk relating to fluctuations in intereatas. In order to minimize the negat
impact of such fluctuations on the Company’s césivg, the Company may enter into derivative finahistruments, such as interest rate
swaps. The Compangcurrent interest rate swap arrangement is wighfiorancial institution. We are exposed to creiit if the counterpart
to the agreement is not able to perform on itsgathions. Additionally, a failure on our part toexfively hedge against interest rate changes
may adversely affect our financial condition anslutes of operations. We are required to recordeHtiesncial instruments at their fair value.
Changes in interest rates can significantly implaetvaluation of the instruments resulting in nastt changes to our financial position.

Covenant restrictions under our indebtedness mawitiour ability to operate our business and, in $uan event, we may not have
sufficient assets to settle our indebtedness.

The credit agreement with respect to our 2011 3ePiedit Facility and certain of our other agreetsergarding our indebtedness
contain, among other things, covenants that mayicesur ability to finance future operations @pital needs or to engage in other business
activities and that may impact our ability and &tdlity of our restricted subsidiaries to:

* borrow money
» pay dividends or make distributior
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* purchase or redeem stox

» make investments and extend cre

e engage in transactions with affiliate

e engage in sa-leaseback transactior

* consummate certain asset sa

» effect a consolidation or merger or sell, trandfegise or otherwise dispose of all or substantallipf our assets; ar

» create liens on our asse

In addition, the 2011 Senior Credit Facility regsithe Company, on a consolidated basis, to maiapacified financial ratios and
satisfy certain financial condition tests that meguire us to take action to reduce our debt @ctan a manner contrary to our business
objectives. The 2011 Senior Credit Facility reqgsitee Company, on a consolidated basis, to maiataiaximum total leverage ratio not
greater than 4.75:1.00 as of December 31, 201, avittep-down of 0.25 in the next quarter to 4.8@ br less, effective March 31, 2012 and
thereafter; an interest expense coverage ratio ¢¢ss than 2.00:1.00; and a covenant that linaistal expenditures to $40.0 million for the
four quarters ending in any quarter during whioh tital leverage ratio is greater than 3.00:1.@Dtar$50.0 million for the four quarters
ending in any quarter during which the total legeraatio is less than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00gbeater than 2.50:1.00. This covenant does
not limit capital expenditures if the total leveeagtio is less than or equal to 2.50:1.00. TSIClMas in compliance with these covenants as
of December 31, 2011 with a total leverage rati8.6f7:1.00 and an interest coverage ratio of 3.80:10ur total capital expenditures for full-
year 2011 were $30.9 millio

Events beyond our control, including changes iregaineconomic and business conditions, may affectbility to meet certain
financial ratios and financial condition tests. Way be unable to meet those tests and the lendsrslaetide not to waive any failure to meet
those tests. A breach of any of these covenantédwesult in a default under the 2011 Senior CrEditility. If an event of default under the
2011 Senior Credit Facility occurs, the lendersld@lect to declare all amounts outstanding thedeurtogether with accrued interest, to be
immediately due and payable. If any such eventlshoccur, we might not have sufficient assets tp @ar indebtedness and meet our other
obligations.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

We own our 151 East 86th Street location, whichsesia fitness club and a retail tenant that gesiggiproximately $2.0 million of
rental income for us for the year ended DecembgeR@11. We lease the remainder of our fitness ghulssuant to long-term leases (generally
15 to 25 years, including options). In the nexefixears, or the period from January 1, 2012 thrddetember 31, 2016, we have leases fc
club locations that are due to expire without agryewal options, three of which are due to expir2dh2, and 48 club locations that are due to
expire with renewal options. Renewal options ineltekms for rental increases based on the consomeerindex, fair market rates or stated
renewal terms already set in the lease agreemtatqlan to close one of the clubs without renevimiloms but endeavor to extend the leases
or relocate the clubs or its membership base if@pgate for the remaining clubs.

We lease approximately 26,400 square feet of offfrce in New York City and have smaller regioriites in Fairfax, VA and
Boston, MA, for administrative and general corpenatirposes. We closed one of our corporate loctioManhattan of approximately
10,000 square feet in March 2011 at the end ofgth®ge term and relocated those employees to atingxidanhattan location. We also lease
warehouse and commercial space in Brooklyn, NYsforage purposes.
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We lease approximately 82,000 square feet in ElrdsfdY for the operation of a centralized laundagifity for New York Sports Cluk
offering towel service, and for construction andipqent storage. This space also serves as cogpaffate space and replaced approxime
10,800 square feet of corporate office space inhdttan. Total square footage related to the laufaliity is 42,000 and total square foot:
related to the corporate office and warehouse sigat@,000.

The following table provides information regardiogr club locations:

Location

Address

Date Opened or Management
Assumed

New York Sports Clubs:

Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Manhattar
Bronx, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY

151 East 86th Stre:
61 West 62nd Stre:
614 Second Avenu
151 Reade Stre
1601 Broadway

349 East 76th Stre
248 West 80th Stre:
502 Park Avenur

117 Seventh Avenue SoL
303 Park Avenue Sou
30 Wall Stree

1635 Third Avenut
575 Lexington Avenu
278 Eighth Avenu
200 Madison Avenu
2162 Broadwa

633 Third Avenug
217 Broadway

23 West 73rd Stre
34 West 14th Stre
503-511 Broadway
1372 Broadwa!

300 West 125th Stre
19 West 44th Stret
128 Eighth Avenu
2527 Broadwa

3 Park Avenut

10 Irving Place

160 Water Stree

230 West 41st Stre
1221 Avenue of the Americ:
200 Park Avenu

232 Mercer Stree

225 Varick Stree

885 Second Avenu
301 West 145th Stre
1400 5th Avenur
1601 Bronxdale Avenu
110 Boerum Plac
1736 Shore Parkwe
179 Remsen Stre

26

January 197
July 1983

July 1986
January 199
September 199
April 1994

May 1994
February 199!
March 199t
December 199
May 1996
October 199¢
November 199t
December 199
February 199°
November 199
April 1998
March 199¢
April 1999

July 1999

July 1999
October 199¢
May 2000
August 200(
December 200
August 2001
August 2001
November 200:
November 200:
November 200:
January 200;
December 200
September 200
August 200¢
February 200°
October 200"
December 200
November 200
October 198t
June 199¢

May 2001
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management
Assumed

Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Staten Island, N
Scarsdale, NY
Mamaroneck, NY
Crotor-on-Hudson, NY
Larchmont, NY
Nanuet, NY
Great Neck, NY
East Meadow, N\
Commack, NY
Oceanside, N\
Long Beach, NY
Garden City, NY
Huntington, NY
Syosset, NY
West Nyack, NY
Woodmere, NY
Hartsdale, NY
Somers, NY

Port Jefferson Station, N
White Plains, NY
Hawthorne, NY
Dobbs Ferry, NY
Smithtown, NY
Carmel, NY
Hicksville, NY
New Rochelle, NY
Deer Park, NY
Garnerville, NY
Stamford, CT
Danbury, CT
Stamford, CT
Greenwich, C1
Westport, CT
West Hartford, C1
Princeton, N.
Matawan, N.
Marlboro, NJ
Ramsey, N.
Mahwah, N.
Springfield, NJ

324 Ninth Stree

1630 E 15th Stree¢

7118 Third Avenut

439 86th Stree

69-33 Austin Stree
153-67 A Cross Island Parkwe
285€-2861 Steinway Stre:
8000 Cooper Avenu
99-01 Queens Boulevai
39-01 Queens Blvi

300 West Service Ros
696 White Plains Roa
124 Palmer Avenu

420 South Riverside Driv
15 Madison Avenu

58 Demarest Mill Roa

15 Barstow Roa

625 Merrick Avenue

6136 Jericho Turnpik
2909 Lincoln Avenut

265 East Park Avent

833 Franklin Avenu

350 New York Avenut

49 Ira Roac

3656 Palisades Center Dri
158 Irving Stree

208 E. Hartsdale Avent
Somers Commons, 80 Routt
200 Wilson Stree

4 City Centel

24 Saw Mill River Roat
50 Livingstone Avenu

5 Browns Roat

1880 Route ¢

100 Duffy Avenue

Trump Plaza, Huguenot Stre
455 Commack Avenu

20 W. Ramapo Ros

106 Commerce Roe

38 Mill Plain Roac

1063 Hope Stree

6 Liberty Way

427 Post Road, Ea

65 Memorial Roac

301 North Harrison Stre:
450 Route 3«

34 Route 9 Nortl

1100 Route 17 Nort

7 Leighton Plact

215 Morris Avenue

27

August 200z
August 2007
May 2004

April 2008
April 1997
June 199¢
February 200:
March 2007
June 200°
December 200
June 199¢
October 199!
January 199
January 199
December 199
May 1998

July 1989
January 199
January 199
May 1999

July 1999

May 2000
February 200:
March 2001
February 200:
March 200z
September 200
February 200!
July 2005
September 200
January 200
June 200¢
December 200
July 2007
November 200t
March 200¢
March 200¢
October 201:
Reopened February 20
January 199
November 199t
May 1999
January 200:
November 200°
May 1997

April 1998
April 1998
June 199¢
June 199¢
August 199¢
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management
Assumed

Colonia, NJ
Somerset, N
Hoboken, N.
West Caldwell, N.
Jersey City, N.
Newark, NJ
Ridgewood, N.
Westwood, N.
Livingston, NJ
Princeton, N.
Hoboken, N.
Englewood, N.
Clifton, NJ
Montclair, NJ
Butler, NJ

East Brunswick, N.

Bayonne, N.

Boston Sports Clubs;

Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Allston, MA
Weymouth, MA
Wellesley, MA
Andover, MA
Lynnfield, MA
Lexington, MA
Franklin, MA
Cambridge, MA
West Newton, MA
Waltham, MA
Watertown, MA
Newton, MA
Somerville, MA
Medford, MA
Westborough, M£
Woburn, MA
Providence, R
Providence, R

Washington Sports Clubs:

Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C

1250 Route 2

120 Cedar Grove Lar
59 Newark Stree

913 Bloomfield Avenu

147 Two Harborside Financial Cen

1 Gateway Cente
129 S. Broad Stres
35 Jefferson Avenu
39 W. North Field Rd
4250 Route 1 Nort
210 14th Stree

34-36 South Dean Stre
202 Main Avenue

56 Church Stree
1481 Route 2.

300 State Route 1
550 Route 440 Nort

1 Bulfinch Place

201 Brookline Avenu
361 Newbury Stree
350 Washington Stre:
505 Boylston Stree
560 Harrison Avenu
695 Atlantic Avenue
15 Gorham Stree

553 Washington Stre:
140 Great Plain Avent
307 Lowell Stree

425 Walnut Stree

475 Bedford Avenu
750 Union Stree

625 Massachusetts Aven
1359 Washington Stre
840 Winter Stree

311 Arsenal Stree

135 Wells Avenut

1 Davis Squarn

70 Station Landini
1500 Union Stree

300 Presidential Wa
131 Pittman Stree

10 Dorrance Stre¢

214 D Street, S.

1835 Connecticut Avenue, N.'
2251 Wisconsin Avenue, N.\
1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.'
1345 F Street, N.V

5345 Wisconsin Ave., N.V

28

August 199¢
August 199¢
October 199¢
April 1999
June 200:
October 200:
June 200:
June 200«
February 200!
April 2005
December 200
December 200
March 2007
January 200:
January 200!
March 200¢
December 201

August 199¢
June 200(
November 200:
February 200:
January 200
February 200t
October 200¢
July 1997

May 1999

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000
January 200
November 200:
November 200:
January 200
August 200¢
December 200
December 200
September 200
December 200
December 200
January 200!

January 198
January 199
May 1994
July 2000
August 200z
February 200:
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Washington, D.C 1990 K Street, N.V February 200:
Washington, D.C 783 Seventh Street, N.' October 200:
Washington, D.C 3222 M Street, N.V February 200!
Washington, D.C 14th Street, N.V June 200¢
North Bethesda, MI 10400 Old Georgetown Ro: June 199¢
Germantown, ML 12623 Wisteria Driv¢ July 1998
Silver Spring, MD 8506 Fenton Strei November 200!
Bethesda, ML 6800 Wisconsin Avenu November 200°
Alexandria, VA 3654 King Stree June 199¢
Fairfax, VA 11001 Lee Highwa October 199¢
West Springfield, VA 8430 Old Keene Mil September 200
Clarendon, VA 2700 Clarendon Bouleva November 200:

Philadelphia Sports Clubs:

Philadelphia, P/
Philadelphia, P/
Chalfont, PA
Philadelphia, P/
Ardmore, PA
Radnor, PA

Swiss Sports Clubs:
Basel, Switzerlan
Zurich, Switzerlanc
Basel, Switzerlan

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

220 South 5th Stre:

2000 Hamilton Stree

One Highpoint Drive
1735 Market Stree

34 W. Lancaster Avent
555 East Lancaster Aven

St. Johanr-Vorstadt 41
Glarnischstrasse &
Gellerstrasse 23

January 199
July 1999
January 200
October 200(
March 200z
December 200

August 1987
August 1987
August 2001

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action stydah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International /afdew York Sports Clufplaintiffs
commenced a purported class action against TSI, ibltie Supreme Court, New York County, seekingaithpvages and alleging that TSI,
LLC violated various overtime provisions of the N&erk State Labor Law with respect to the paymdnwages to certain trainers and

assistant fitness managers. On or about June 08, &t same plaintiffs commenced a second pumbetéss action against TSI, LLC in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, New Yorkufty, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that TEC kiolated various wage payment
and overtime provisions of the New York State Labaw with respect to the payment of wages to alvN@rk purported hourly employees.
On September 17, 2010, TSI, LLC made motions tmidis the class action allegations of both lawdoitplaintiffs’ failure to timely file
motions to certify the class actions. Oral argunmnthe motions occurred on November 10, 2010. dsitan is still pending. While it is not
possible to estimate the likelihood of an unfavtealutcome or a range of loss in the case of aavaméible outcome to TSI, LLC at this tin
we intend to contest these cases vigorously. Dapgngpon the ultimate outcome, these matters mag hanaterial adverse effect on TSI,
LLC’s and the Company’s consolidated results ofrapens, financial condition or cash flows.

On September 22, 2009, in an action styled/n Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutioasjivision of Ajilon Professional Staffing
LLC (Supreme Court of the State of New York, New YoduGty, 602911-09), TSI, LLC brought an action ie Bupreme Court of the State
of New York, New York County, against Ajilon fordmch of contract, conversion and replevin, seelkdntpng other things, money damages
against Ajilon for breaching its agreement to desigd deliver to TSI, LLC a new sports club entisgpmanagement system known as Gl
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatiyoperly identified requirements
documents and other property owned and licensetiShyLLC. Subsequently, on October 14, 2009, Ajilmought a counterclaim against
TSI, LLC alleging breach of contract,
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alleging, among other things, failure to pay outdiag invoices in the amount of $2.9 million. Onda 3, 2011, Ajilon amended its
counterclaims to include additional claims for lmteaf contract and for unjust enrichment, includafgims for unspecified additional
damages for work allegedly performed by one ofitiscontractors. On March 7, 2011, TSI, LLC ameritedomplaint against Ajilon to add
new allegations and claims for fraudulent inducetneggligent misrepresentation, fraud, and bred¢heoimplied covenant of good faith a
fair dealing (the “additional claims”). On March,Z811, Ajilon moved to dismiss the additional olai The motion is still pending. On
February 3, 2012, TSI, LLC filed a motion for pattsummary judgment. The motion is pending. Othantthese pending motions, the
litigation is in the discovery phase. We believéhid time the likelihood of an unfavorable outcoim@ot probable. TSI, LLC intends to
prosecute vigorously its claims against Ajilon aledend against Ajilon’s counterclaims.

On February 7, 2007, in an action styl&thite Plains Plaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et, @he landlord of one of TSI, LLC’s former
health and fitness clubs filed a lawsuit in statert against it and two of its health club subsidmalleging, among other things, breach of
lease in connection with the decision to closectbb located in a building owned by the plaintificlleased to a subsidiary of TSI, LLC, and
take additional space in the nearby facility ledsg@nother subsidiary of TSI, LLC. The trial cogranted the landlord damages against its
tenant in the amount of approximately $700,000uiiag interest and costs (“Initial Award”). TSILC was held to be jointly liable with the
tenant for the amount of approximately $488,00@eura limited guarantee of the tenant’s lease atibgs. The landlord subsequently
appealed the trial court’s award of damages, anbamember 21, 2010, the appellate court reversguhiit, the trial court’s decision and
ordered the case remanded to the trial court fasaessment of additional damages, of approxim@#39,000 plus interest and costs (the
“Additional Award”). On February 7, 2011, the landd moved for re-argument of the appellate coul#sision, seeking additional damages
plus attorneys’ fees. On April 8, 2011, the apgeltzourt denied the landlosimotion. On August 29, 2011, the Additional Awéadhounting
to approximately $900,000), was entered againsteth@nt. TSI, LLC does not believe it is probablat TSI, LLC will be held liable to pay
for any amount of the Additional Award. Separatdlg], LLC is party to an agreement with a thirdtgateveloper, which by its terms
provides indemnification for the full amount of aligbility of any nature arising out of the leasesdribed above, including attorneys’ fees
incurred to enforce the indemnity. In connectiotihvthe Initial Award (and in furtherance of the @minification agreement), TSI, LLC and
the developer have entered into an agreement pitrsuwvhich the developer has agreed to pay theuatraf the Initial Award in installmen
over time. The indemnification agreement also cevike Additional Award. The developer to date hatspaid the amount of the Additional
Award to the landlord, and the landlord has comradracspecial proceeding in the Supreme Court obtate of New York, Westchester
County, to collect the Additional Award directlyoin the developer.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amdggedings incidental to the ordinary
course of business, including personal injury amgleyee relations claims. See Note 13 — Contingentm the consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. fidsailts of litigation are inherently unpredictabAay claims against us, whether
meritorious or not, could be time consuming, resuttostly litigation, require significant amourmdmanagement time and result in diversion
of significant resources. The results of theserdthesuits, claims and proceedings cannot be prediwith certainty.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Mattersdaissuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQWaldMarket, under the symbol CLUB. The followindgle sets forth, for each
quarterly period in the last two fiscal years, tigh and low sales prices (in dollars per shareusfcommon stock as quoted or reported on
The NASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

Year ended December 31, 20.

First Quarte! $5.4C $3.5¢

Second Quarte $7.8¢4 $3.47

Third Quartel $9.8¢ $6.47

Fourth Quarte $9.0C $6.4(
Year ended December 31, 20.

First Quartel $4.2( $2.1¢

Second Quarte $4.2¢ $2.21

Third Quartel $2.94 $1.8¢

Fourth Quarte $4.3¢ $2.6¢

Holders

As of February 22, 2012, there were approximat@ih@ders of record of our common stock. Thereaaditional holders who are not
“holders of record” but who beneficially own stoitkough nominee holders such as brokers and bgiafittrustees.

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, ta@fige the operation and expansion of our busineksvarcurrently do not have any plans
to pay cash dividends in the near future. Consdtyetockholders will need to sell shares of ooimenon stock to realize a return on their
investment, if any. No dividends were paid by th@mpany in the fiscal years ended December 31, 20812010.

The declaration and payment of dividends to holdésur common stock by us, if any, are subjed¢htodiscretion of our board of
directors. Our board of directors will take intaaant such matters as general economic and businesd#ions, our strategic plans, our
financial results and condition, contractual, legsadl regulatory restrictions on the payment ofabwids by us and our subsidiaries and such
other factors as our board of directors may comgmee relevant. We rely on dividends receivedfrbSl, LLC to generate the funds
necessary to pay dividends on our common stock cféait agreement of TSI, LLC restricts the abibfyTSI, LLC to pay cash dividends to
TSI Holdings in order for TSI Holdings to pay catilidends other than (a) in an amount up to $25lom plus an additional amount based
on excess cash flow, such additional amounts stutgj@mmpliance with a total leverage ratio of l#ssn 2.75:1.00, an interest expense
coverage ratio of more than 2.00:1.00 and a miniriguidity condition of $25.0 million of unrestrietl cash and revolver availability, as v
as certain other limitations, and (b) in an amaymto the lesser of $20.0 million or an amount Hase equity proceeds received by TSI
Holdings and contributed to TSI, LLC net of dividis) investments and prepayments of unsecured dabfrpm such equity proceeds,
subject to certain other limitations.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not purchase any equity securities durirgftiurth quarter ended December 31, 2011.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any securities during the year dridecember 31, 2011 that were not registered uhéebecurities Act of 1933, as

amended.

Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the annual pgerchange in our cumulative total stockholdarrrewith the cumulative total

return of the Russell 2000 and the NASDAQ compadaiti&ces.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®
Among Town Sports International Holdings. Ing, The NASDAQ Composite Index,
And The Russell 2000 Index
$120 -
5100
S80
S60

§40 4

520

50

—B8— Town Sports Intarnational Holdings, Inc
— # = NASDAQ Composite
- = 2 - ' Russell 2000
* $100invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index, includieqvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending Deaarh.

December 31,

12131706 12531707 12/31/08 12/31/09 123110 123111

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc 100.0( 58.01 19.3¢ 14.1¢ 24.6¢ 44.6(
NASDAQ Composite 100.0C 110.2¢ 65.6f8 95.1¢ 112.1( 110.8:

105.1« 100.7:

Russell 200( 100.0( 98.4: 65.1¢  82.8¢

Notes:
(1) The graph covers the period from December 31, 20@ecember 31, 201

(2) The graph assumes that $100 was invested atdhieet close on December 31, 2006 in our commmeksin the Russell 2000 and in

the NASDAQ composite indexes and that all dividewese reinvestec
(3) No cash dividends have been declared on our consteck in the period covere
(4) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthook be considered indicative of future stockhole¢urns.
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(5) We include a comparison against the Russeld 2@z ause there is no published industry or linbuginess index for our industry and
we do not have a readily definable peer groupithpuiblicly traded

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our previous or future filings under tBecurities Act of 1933, as amended,
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentatimight incorporate by reference this Annuap&eon Form 10-K or future filings
made by the Company under those statutes, the Betdrmance Graph is not deemed filed with theuSes and Exchange Commission, is
not deemed soliciting material and shall not berded incorporated by reference into any of thosergiiings or into any future filings made
by the Company under those statutes, except textieat that the Company specifically incorporateshsinformation by reference into a
previous or future filing, or specifically requeskat such information be treated as solicitmaterial, in each case under those statutes.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
(In thousands, except share, per share, club and mbership data)

The selected consolidated balance sheet dataeceinber 31, 2011 and 2010 and the selected cdatadi statement of operations
cash flow data for the years ended December 311, 20110 and 2009 have been derived from our auditedolidated financial statements
included elsewhere herein. The selected consotidzdéance sheet data as of December 31, 2009,82@D2007 and the selected consolid.
statement of operations and cash flow data foyé&aes ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 have beeadizom our audited consolidated
financial statements not included herein. Othea @aid club and membership data for all periodseptesl have been derived from our
unaudited books and records. Our historical resusot necessarily indicative of results for &rtyre period. You should read these
selected consolidated financial and other datathay with the accompanying notes, in conjunctigh the “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” section of this Annual Report and our cdidsted financial statements and the
related notes appearing at the end of this AnnegbR.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue! $466,94: $462,38° $485,39. $506,70¢ $472,91!
Operating expense
Payroll and related(? 177,52 185,58: 193,89: 193,58( 177,35
Club operating 176,46: 174,13! 178,85: 172,40¢ 156,66(
General and administrati\ 25,79¢ 28,77: 31,58 33,95: 35,09:
Depreciation and amortizatic 51,53¢ 52,20: 56,53 52,47¢ 45,96¢
Impairment of fixed asse — 3,25¢ 6,70¢ 3,861 —
Impairment of interniuse softwart — — 10,19¢ — —
Goodwill impairment(2 — — — 17,60¢ —
Operating incom: 35,61¢ 18,44( 7,62F 32,81% 57,84:
Loss on extinguishment of debt( 4,86¢ — — — 12,52:
Interest expense, net of interest incc 24,12% 21,01 20,96¢ 23,58 25,32¢
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime (2,397 (2,139 (1,876 (2,307%) (1,799
Net income (loss) before provision (benefit) forparate income
taxes(4) 9,01« (439 (11,46%) 11,54: 21,79:
Provision (benefit) for corporate income ta: 2,69¢ (144 (5,800 9,20/ 8,14
Net income (loss $ 6,31 $ (290 $ (5,668 $ 2,330 $ 13,64¢
Earnings (loss) per weighted average number okest
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ (00) $ (028 $ o0.0¢ $ 052
Diluted $ 0.2i $ (00) $ (0.2 $ o0.0¢ $ 0.51
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As of December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $ 47,88( $ 38,80« $ 10,75¢ $ 10,39¢ $ 5,46:
Working capital defici (38,339 (22,887 (46,627 (67,217) (73,480)
Total asset 449,54, 464,16t 467,46t 511,63t 488,76:
Long-term debt, including current
installments 288,99« 316,51: 318,36: 338,01( 316,02:
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 354 (6,94%) (8,239 772 18z
Net debt(5 243,87( 277,71( 307,60! 327,61: 310,55¢
Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating activitie: $ 74,88t $ 51,23¢ $ 76,24: $ 95,62: $ 82,74¢
Investing activities (30,907 (22,039 (49,277 (95,109 (97,230
Financing activitie: (35,349 (1,765) (26,767) 4,19¢ 12,93:
Other Data:
Non-cash rental expense, net of non-cas
rental income (3,669 (5,557) (2,499 (411 50¢
Non-cash compensation expense incurred
in connection with stock options and
common stock gran 1,417 1,33¢ 1,704 1,26¢ 91z
Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Club and Membership Data:
New clubs opene 2 — 4 9 14
Clubs acquiret — — — — 1
Clubs closed or relocate 2 @ 9) 4 ©)]
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of
period 15¢ 15¢ 15¢ 164 15¢
Total clubs operated at end of period 16C 16C 161 16€ 161
Total members at end of period 523,00( 493,00( 486,00( 510,00( 486,00(
Restricted members at end of perioc 38,00( 17,00( — — —
Comparable club revenue increase
(decrease)(¢ 1.8% (4.9% (5.6)% 2.2% 5.2%
Revenue per weighted average club
(in thousands)(1C $ 2,934 $ 2,881 $ 2,95 $ 3,14 $ 3,15t
Average revenue per member(. $ 91t $ 947 $ 96¢ $ 99C $ 1,00C
Average joining fees collected per member
(12) $ 55 $ 37 $ 19 $ 45 % 69
Annual attrition(13 39.% 41.%% 45.2% 40.2% 38.2%

(1) Inthe year ended December 31, 2009, Payrdllralated includes a correction of an accountimgreaf $751 related to deferred
membership costs which was previously disclosatiénCompany’s 2010 Annual Report. See Note 2 —eZtion of Accounting
Errors to the Compar's consolidated financial statements in the 2010u&hReport for further detail

(2) Goodwill impairment testing requires a compami®etween the carrying value and fair value oheagporting unit. If the carrying value
exceeds the fair value, goodwill is considered iimgza The amount of the impairment loss is measasethe difference between the
carrying value and the implied fair value of goolliwvhich is determined based on purchase priaeation.

(@) The Company performed an interim impairmeritassof December 31, 2008. As a result of the tieatas determined that all of
the goodwill in our Boston Sports Clubs region, amiing to $15,766, an
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(3)

(4)

()
(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

goodwill of $1,843 at two of our outlier clubs thditl not benefit from being part of a regional tdusvas impaired. A deferred tax
benefit of $1,755 was recorded in connection wisse impairment charge

The $12,521 loss on extinguishment of debtnaded for the year ended December 31, 2007 resfitietdthe repayment of the $169,999
remaining outstanding principal of the senior naetered into in 2003 with the proceeds from th@728enior Credit Facility obtained
on February 27, 2007. We incurred $8,759 of tepdemium and $215 of call premium together with $88%es and expenses related
to debt extinguished. Net deferred financing coststed to the Company’s previous senior secureadlving credit facility and the
senior notes, both entered into in 2003, totalipgreximately $3,212 were expensed in the first tarasf 2007

The $4,865 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2011 resulted fhendebt refinancing on May 1
2011. The proceeds from the 2011 Senior CreditliBagiere used to repay the remaining outstandirigcipal amount of the 2007
Senior Credit Facility of $164,000 and the remajninitstanding principal amount of the Senior Distddotes of $138,450. We
incurred $2,538 of call premium on the Senior Distd\otes together with the writeff of $2,327 of net deferred financing costs ret
to the debt extinguishment.

Corporate income taxes for the year ended DeceBihe2011 includes an income tax benefit totaling3&lated to the correction of
accounting error. See Note 2 — Correction of anofioting Error to the Company’s consolidated finahstatements in this Annual
Report for further detail

Net debt represents total Ic-term debt (excluding the unamortized portion of dhiginal issue discount), including current instants,
net of cash and cash equivalel

Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubsatdition, in 2008 through 2011 we managed fouvearsity fithess clubs in which we
did not have an equity interest. In 2007 we mandiyeduniversity fitness clubs in which we did d@ve an equity interes

Represents members at wh-owned and part-owned clubs

Restricted members include students, teactetdimst responders. This membership allows fobalsage at restricted times, at a
discount to other memberships offer

Total revenue for a club is included in comjéeaclub revenue increase beginning on the firgtafdhe thirteenth full calendar month
of the clul’s operation

Revenue per weighted average club is calaliia$eotal revenue divided by the product of thal taumber of clubs and their weighted
average months in operation as a percentage qfettied.

Average revenue per member is total reverara fwholly-owned clubs for the period divided by theerage number of memberships
from wholly-owned clubs for the period, includingstricted memberships, summer student and sumneénmmberships, where
average number of memberships for the period iseby dividing the sum of the total membershiptha end of each month during
the period by the total number of months in theqek!

Average joining fees per member is calcula®dbtal initiation and processing fees dividedh®/number of new members, excluding
pre-sold, summer student and summer pool membershipgaluding restricted memberships during eacheaetye year

Annual attrition is calculated as total memlosses for the year divided by the average monttdynber count over the year excluding
pre-sold, summer student and summer pool membearahigh including our restricted memberships thagbeg April 2010, during each
respective yea
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and anglgsour financial condition and consolidated réswf operations in conjunction
with the “Selected Consolidated Financial and OtBeta” section of this Annual Report and our condaled financial statements and the
related notes appearing at the end of this Annweddgt. In addition to historical information, thiiscussion and analysis contains forward-
looking statements that involve risks, uncertagiad assumptions (sedFORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS' discussion). Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticiphta these forwardeoking statements as a result of certain factorsluding, but not limitet
to, those set forth in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” bfg¢ Annual Report.

Overview

We are the largest owner and operator of fitnassscin the Northeast and Milantic regions of the United States. As of Decembl
2011, we operated 160 clubs that collectively sgiygproximately 523,000 members. We develop clsigtkeclubs to serve densely popula
major metropolitan regions and we service such |abioms by clustering clubs near the highest cottations of our target customers’ areas
of both employment and residence. Our clubs ar@dotfor maximum convenience to our members innudsasuburban areas, close to
transportation hubs or office or retail centerse Tajority of our members are between the age4 ah@l 60 and have an annual income of
between $50,000 and $150,000. We believe thatmhid-value” segment of the market is not only thedwlest but also the segment with the
greatest growth opportunities.

Our goal is to be the most recognized health cktlvark in each of the four major metropolitan regidhat we serve. We believe that
our strategy of clustering clubs provides significhenefits to our members and allows us to actsénegegic operating advantages. In eac
our markets, we have developed clusters by injtigtlening or acquiring clubs located in the monatieé urban markets of the region and
then branching out from these urban centers torbstand neighboring communities. Capitalizing de thustering of clubs, as of
December 31, 2011, approximately 51% of our memparscipated in our Passport membership whichaalanlimited access to all of our
clubs in our clusters within one, or all of, ougiens, respectively, for a higher monthly membgrghies. Approximately 29% of our
members participate in our previously offered Goleimbership which allows unlimited access to a dedag club and access to all other
clubs during off-peak hours and 20% of our membarsicipate in our Core membership, which allowBraited access to the member’s
home club.

We have executed our clustering strategy succégsfihe New York region, our most mature regithrpugh the network of fithess
clubs we operate under our New York Sports Clubsdmname. We are the largest fitness club opeiratdanhattan with 37 locations and
operated a total of 108 clubs under the New Yorér&pClubs brand name within a 120-mile radius efMNYork City as of December 31,
2011. As of December 31, 2011, we owned and op28elubs in the Boston region under our BostoorSpClubs brand name, 18 clubs
(two of which are partly-owned) in the WashingtBnC. region under our Washington Sports Clubs brearde, six clubs in the Philadelphia
region under our Philadelphia Sports Clubs bramdenand three clubs in Switzerland. We employ |laealibrand names for our clubs to
create an image and atmosphere consistent witlo¢hécommunity and to foster recognition as a laedwork of quality fitness clubs rather
than a national chain.

Revenue and Operating Expenses
We have two principal sources of revenue:

» Membership revenue: Our largest sources of revenue are dues and jofaggypaid by our members. In addition, we collesage
fees on a per visit basis subject to peak and edikghourly restrictions depending on membership.tfffnese dues and fees
comprised 79.5% of our total revenue for the yealeel December 31, 2011. We recognize revenue frembership dues in the
month when the servict
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are rendered. Approximately 97% of our memberstpaiy monthly dues by Electronic Funds Transfer=Bil, while the balance is
paid annually in advance. We recognize revenue foaning fees over the expected average life oftteenbership

» Ancillary club revenue: For the year ended December 31, 2011, we genetatdélo of our revenue from personal training and
6.1% of our revenue from other ancillary programd services consisting of programming for childi®mall Group Training and
other member activities, as well as sales of miaaebus sports produc

We also receive revenue (approximately 1.0% oftotal revenue for the year ended December 31, 20di) the rental of space in our
facilities to operators who offer wellness-relatéfirings, such as physical therapy and juice Haraddition, we sell in-club advertising and
sponsorships and generate management fees froamceltb facilities that we do not wholly own. Wefer to this revenue as Fees and Other
revenue.

Our performance is dependent on our ability to icomatly attract and retain members at our clubs.eéifgerience attrition at our clubs
and must attract new members in order to maintaimmeembership and revenue levels. In the yearsceBéeember 31 2011 and 2010, our
attrition rate, including restricted members, w936 and 41.9%, respectively. In 2009, our atmifievels increased partially as a result of
the recessionary economy. In 2011, attrition waslar to 2008 levels due to an improved member Bgpee, a more stabilized economy
increased retention programs. In 2011, attritiselle showed modest improvement over 2010.

Our operating and selling expenses are comprisedtbffixed and variable costs. Fixed costs inclcidé and supervisory and other
salary and related expenses, occupancy costsdinglmost elements of rent, utilities, housekeepind contracted maintenance expenses, a:
well as depreciation. Variable costs are primaehated to payroll associated with ancillary clelenue, membership sales compensation,
advertising, certain facility repairs and club shiggp

General and administrative expenses include cekting to our centralized support functions, sastaccounting, insurance,
information and communication systems, purchasimgmber relations, legal and consulting fees anldeistate development expenses.
Payroll and related expenses are included in argeplne item on the consolidated statement ofatjns and are not included in general
administrative expenses.

As clubs mature and increase their membership ffiaed, costs are typically spread over an incregsavenue base and operating
margins tend to improve. Conversely, when our mesitip base declines our operating margins are ivefjatmpacted. During 2011,
membership at our clubs opened over 24 monthsaserkapproximately 4.9%. These membership incrémsesimproved our operating
margins in 2011 compared to 2010.

Our primary capital expenditures relate to the tmesion or acquisition of new club facilities andgrading and expanding our existing
clubs. The construction and equipment costs vasgdban the costs of construction labor, as weteagplanned service offerings and size and
configuration of the facility. We perform routineprovements at our clubs and partial replacemetiteofitness equipment each year for
which we are currently budgeting approximately 312%6.0% of projected annual revenue. Expansiortein facilities are also performed
from time to time, when incremental space becomagable on acceptable terms and utilization andated for the facility dictate. In this
regard, facility remodeling is also considered vehappropriate.
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From 2010 to 2011, operating income increased 9&d&drom 2009 to 2010 operating income increagdd8o. In 2009, we
experienced an overall decrease of earnings argfiexygged considerable impairment charges relateditinternal-use software project and
on fixed assets at nine of our clubs. In 2010, Wendt incur impairment charges of this magnitudd an 2011, we did not incur any
impairment charges.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
($ amounts in thousands)
Operating incom: $35,61¢ $18,44( $ 7,62¢
Increase (decrease) over prior pet 93.1% 141.¢% (76.8%
Net income (loss $ 6,31f $ (290 $(5,66¢)
Increase (decrease) over prior pet 2,277.%% 94.%% (342.5%
Cash flows provided by operating activit $74,88: $51,23¢ $76,24:
Increase (decrease) over prior pet 46.2% (32.8% (20.9%

Historically, we have focused on building or acimgrclubs in areas where we believe the markenietserved or where new clubs are
intended to replace existing clubs at their leag@ration. Based on our experience, a new clubgeaaxperience a significant increase in
revenues during its first three years of operatisit reaches maturity. Because there is relatiittlly incremental cost associated with such
increasing revenue, there is a greater proportioingtrease in profitability. We believe that theeeues and operating income of our imme
clubs will increase as they mature. In contrasgrafing income margins may be negatively impaatettié near term by our new club
openings. In 2011, we closed two clubs. In mostsawe are able to transfer many of the memberkeéd clubs to other clubs thereby
enhancing overall profitability. We will continue bpportunistically pursue club relocations as wslclosing underperforming clubs. We
currently do not have any plans to close any cinl#012.

As of December 31, 2011, 158 of the existing fitnelsibs were wholly-owned by us and our consolifiteancial statements include
the operating results of all such clubs. Two lamadiin Washington, D.C. were partly-owned and deery us, with our profit sharing
percentages approximating 20% (after priority disttions) and 45%, respectively, and are treatashasnsolidated affiliates for which we
apply the equity method of accounting. In additive, provide management services at four fitnedsscloicated in colleges and universitie
which we have no equity interest.
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Comparable Club Revenue
We define comparable club revenue as revenue sg¢ ttlabs that were operated by us for over 12 nsoentkd comparable club revenue
increase (decrease) as revenue for the 13th madtthareafter as applicable as compared to the panm of the prior year.

Comparable Club Revenue
Increase (Decrease)

Full-
Quarter Year
2009
First Quarte! (2.)%
Second Quarte (6.9%
Third Quartel (7.0%
Fourth Quarte (7.)% (5.6%
2010
First Quarte! (6.0%
Second Quarte (4.2%
Third Quartel (5.0%
Fourth Quarte (1.7% (4.9%
2011
First Quarte! (0.5%
Second Quarte 1.5%
Third Quartel 3.C%
3.4% 1.8%

Fourth Quarte

Key determinants of comparable club revenue ine®édecreases) are new memberships, member retestis, pricing and ancillary
revenue increases (decreases).

Comparable club revenue had generally been trerdbiagnward since the first quarter of 2007 and tgto2009; however, beginning in
the first quarter of 2010 and through 2011, theeses began to improve modestly and by the sepaartier of 2011, comparable club
revenue was showing increases again. In the yemdeDecember 31, 2011, membership at our compachlids increased 4.9% as compsa
to 2010 and 2010 membership had increased 1.4%arechpo 2009. Further increases in membership,ledwpith an expected increase in
ancillary club revenue, will be contributing facddp the sustained positive comparable club reverpected in 2012. We currently anticip
that comparable club revenue in 2012 to be at ar tie level of the fourth quarter of 2011, whitlosld help to further drive improvements

in operating margins.

Historical Club Count

Year Ended
December 31,
2011 2010 2009

15¢ 15¢ 164

Wholly-owned clubs operated at beginning of period
New clubs opene

2 — 4
Clubs closed or relocate @ @ 09

Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 15¢ 15¢ 15¢
Partly-owned clubs operated at end of pet 2 2 2
Total clubs operated at end of period 16C  16C 161

(1) Includes wholly-owned and parttywned clubs. In addition, during these periodspvesmaged four university fitness clubs which we
not have an equity interest
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Revenues 100.(% 100.(% 100.0%
Operating expense

Payroll and relate 38.C 40.1 39.¢

Club operating 37.¢ 37.7 36.€

General and administrati 5.5 6.2 6.5

Depreciation and amortizatic 11.C 11.2 11.7

Impairment of fixed asse — 0.7 1.4

Impairment of interniuse softwart — — 2.1
Operating incom: 7.€ 4.C a8
Loss on extinguishment of de 1.C — —
Interest expens 5.2 4.€ 4.3
Interest incom (0.0 (0.0 (0.0)
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime (0.9 (0.9 0.9
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for corgterincome taxe 1.6 (0.7) (2.9
Provision (benefit) for corporate income ta: 0.€ — 1.2
Net income (loss 1.2% (0.2)% (1.2%

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year endedcember 31, 2010
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the follomg for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance

Membership dues $364,53t 78.1% $365,10( 79.(% (0.2)%
Joining fee: 6,82¢ 1.4% 6,967 1.5% (2.1)%
Membership revenu 371,36( 79.5% 372,06° 80.5% (0.2%
Personal training revent 62,39« 13.2% 60,87t 13.2% 2.5%
Other ancillary club revent 28,29 6.1% 24,68 5.2% 14.€%
Ancillary club revenue 90,69: 19.5% 85,55¢ 18.5% 6.C%
Fees and other reven 4,89( 1.C% 4,761 1.C% 2.7%
Total revenue $466,94. 100.(% $462,38° 100.(% 1.C%

Total revenue increased 1.0% in the year endedrbleee31, 2011 compared to the year ended Decenih@030. For the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended Dexe3ih2010, revenues increased $684,000 at theltbs opened or acquired
subsequent to December 31, 2009 (both opened iiotint quarter of 2011) and $8.4 million at owittd opened or acquired prior to
December 31, 2009. Revenue decreased $2.4 millitredhree clubs that were closed subsequent ¢ceier 31, 2009.

Personal training revenue increased $3.6 milliothéyear ended December 31, 2011 compared tcetireepded December 31, 2010,
excluding $2.1 million related to unused and exgpjersonal training sessions
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recognized in the year ended December 31, 2010¢lzed to previous years (see year ended Decedib@010 compared to year ended
December 31, 2009 — Revenue for further detailk)s increase was primarily due to increased mernmiberest in personal training sessions,
increases in products offered and improvementsdrselling process.

Joining fees collected in the year ended Decembge?@L1 were $12.9 million compared to $7.9 millinrihe year ended December 31,
2010. However, because joining fees are recogrized estimated average membership life, joining feeenue decreased due to the decline
in joining fees collected in 2009 and 2010 relativéees collected in prior periods.

Comparable club revenue increased 1.8% for theem@ded December 31, 2011 compared to the year édelmember 31, 2010. There
was a 2.8% increase due to an increase in mempestlia 1.7% increase due to a collective incrigaancillary club revenue, initiation fees
and other revenue. These increases were partifdigtdy a 2.7% decrease in the price of our duesfees.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprised tbfe following for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 201cC $ Variance % Variance
Payroll and relate $177,52¢ $185,58: $ (8,05%) (4.9%
Club operating 176,46: 174,13! 2,32¢ 1.2%
General and administrati 25,79¢ 28,77: (2,979 (20.9%
Depreciation and amortizatic 51,53¢ 52,20: (66€) (1.9%
Impairment of fixed asse — 3,254 (3,259 (200.0%
Operating expenst $431,32¢ $443,94° $(12,627) (2.99%

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@031, were impacted by a 0.8% decrease in thertoiaths of club operation from
1,902 to 1,886, the effects of which are includethie additional descriptions of changes in opegatixpenses below.

Payroll and related This change was primarily impacted by thedeihg factors:

» Payroll expense related to club staffing, excludimgmbership consultants, decreased $5.9 milliom taffing efficiencies realized
in the year ended December 31, 2011 compared t0.

» Payroll expense related to our membership condslt#ecreased $2.9 million. The amount of membershifsultant commissions
deferred over the prior two years had been dedimiith our decline in joining fees collected. Wiili the amount of payroll costs
that we defer to the amount of joining fees coldctThis resulted in a decrease in membership danseommissions expensed in
the year ended December 31, 2011, relating to dd$egstablished in prior periods. In the secorattgu of 2010, we began
increasing joining fees collected and, as a resuthe third and fourth quarters of 2011, we betpasee the effect of the increased
joining fees as an increase in membership condysayroll expense and we expect to see this comtimio 2012. Also contributin
to this decrease was an increase in the amourgyodlh costs deferred in the year ended Decembge?@®11 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2010 with the increase in jgifées collectec

» Payroll expense related to severance decreasedrfilidh in connection with employee reductionsglie year ended December 31,
2010.

» Payroll expense related to our management incehtimases was $535,000 higher in the year endednilene31, 2011 compared to
2010. In 2011, the Company’s results exceeded bamgets by a greater amount than in 2010, resyuiltira higher amount of
incentive compensation paid to management in 2didnveompared to 201
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» Personal training payroll expense increased $1ll®mdue to the increase in personal training rexeas well as an increase in
payroll related to personal training promotionsrgdaat attracting additional personal training riiéde.

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses decreased to 38.0% in the year endenber 31, 2011 from 40.1% in
the year ended December 31, 2010.

Club operating This change was primarily impacted by thedwihg factors:

* Rent and occupancy expenses increased $3.5 niitlitre year ended December 31, 2011 compared tgetirrended December 31,
2010. Rent and occupancy expenses increased $858,00r two clubs that opened after January 1120 decreased $758,000 at
our three clubs that were closed after Januar@1] 20ffsetting these decreases was an incregk& dMmillion at our clubs that
opened prior to January 1, 20:

« Utilities decreased $1.1 million in the year en@Etember 31, 2011 compared with December 31, 20&Qalbetter energy
management and lower energy supply re

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimgeses slightly increased to 37.8% in the yearceidEember 31, 2011 from 37.7%
in the year ended December 31, 2010.

General and administrative The decrease in general and administrativeresgs for the year ended December 31, 2011 when
compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 wasgadly attributable to a decrease in generdlility insurance expense due to a further
reduction in claims activity and a related reduttiio claims reserves as well as decreases in éeghielated fees for various litigations.

As a percentage of total revenue, general and ashnaitive expenses decreased to 5.5% in the yemdeDecember 31, 2011 from 6..
in the year ended December 31, 2010.

Depreciation and amortization In the year ended December 31, 2011 comparttetyear ended December 31, 2010, depreciation
and amortization decreased due to the closingreétblubs subsequent to December 31, 2009 as sviiieaCompany’s decrease in capital
expenditures over the past few years.

As a percentage of total revenue, depreciationaamartization expenses decreased to 11.0% in theeyeled December 31, 2011 from
11.3% in year ended December 31, 2010.

Impairment of fixed assets In the year ended December 31, 2010, we reddiided asset impairment charges totaling $3.8onil
representing $1.6 million of fixed assets at threderperforming clubs and $1.7 million relatedhe planned closure of one club prior to the
lease expiration date. There were no fixed assgdimment charges in the year ended December 31, 201

Provision (Benefit) for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a provision for corporate income tafek2.7 million for the year ended December 31,26dmpared to a benefit of
($144,000) for the year ended December 31, 2010e@ective tax rate was 30% in the year ended Béeg 31, 2011 compared to 33% in
the year ended December 31, 2010. The expecteditisein@m our captive insurance arrangement deeasir effective tax rate on our pre-
tax income in the year ended December 31, 2011remeased the benefit on the pre-tax loss in tlee gaded December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2011, we had net deferred tsgta®f $40.0 million. Quarterly, we assess theyltedf all available positive and
negative evidence to determine whether the netreféax asset is realizable. In 2010, we incuaatight loss, but returned to profitability
the year ended December 31, 2011. We have hidigrien a taxpayer and are in a three year cuimalatcome position, excluding non-
recurring items, as
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of December 31, 2011. In addition, based on rerentls, we project improved performance and fuiticeme sufficient to realize the
deferred tax assets during the periods when thpdeary tax deductible differences reverse. We Hegleral and state net operating loss
carry-forwards which we believe will be realizedhim the available carry-forward period, exceptdosmall net operating loss carry-forward
in Rhode Island due to the short carry-forwardqubin that state. Accordingly, we concluded thas inore likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will be realized. If actual results domeet our forecasts and we incur lower than e®geincome or losses in 2012 and beyond,
then a valuation allowance against the deferred$aets may be required in the future. In additidgth exception of the deductions related to
our captive insurance for state taxes, state taxabbme has been and is projected to be the saffieel@ral taxable income. Because we
expect the captive insurance company to be disuoed, the assessment of the realizability of theesteferred tax assets is consistent with
the federal tax analysis above with the exceptifah® aforementioned Rhode Island net operating ¢asry-forward. In 2012, we expect our
effective tax rate to approximate 40% to 43%.

The results for the year ended December 31, 20dada the correction of an accounting error thaulted in an increase in benefit for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefémrdd tax assets in the Company’s consolidatgdrsint of operations and consolidated
balance sheet, respectively. This adjustment it the recognition of an income tax benefit@12 of $343 that relates to calculation of
state net operating loss that arose in the yedd.Zllie Company does not believe that this errarection is material to the current or prior
reporting periods.

In 2011, the Company repatriated the accumulatedsSsarnings through 2010. In connection with tlivgdend, the Company will be
entitled to claim a foreign tax credit of $1.8 naiti for federal income tax purposes which, duéhedurrent year net operating loss carry-
forward, is reflected as a deferred tax asset.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year endedcember 31, 2009
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the follomg for the periods indicated:

Y ear Ended December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance

Membership dues $365,10( 79.(% $388,17¢ 80.(% (5.9%
Joining fee: 6,967 1.5% 12,04¢ 2.5% (42.29%
Membership revenu 372,06° 80.5% 400,22 82.5% (7.0%
Personal training revent 60,87¢ 13.2% 56,97 11.7% 6.S%
Other ancillary club revent 24,68¢ 5.2% 23,53¢ 4.8% 4.5%
Ancillary club revenue 85,55¢ 18.5% 80,50 16.5% 6.2%
Fees and other reven 4,761 1.C% 4,661 1.C% 2.1%
Total revenue $462,38 100.(% $485,39. 100.(% 4.7%

Revenue decreased 4.7% in the year ended Decerhp20B0 compared to the year ended December 39, F@® the year ended
December 31, 2010, revenues increased $2.4 mdocompared to the year ended December 31, 2QR8 fdur clubs opened or acquired
subsequent to December 31, 2008. For the year édeesimber 31, 2010, revenue decreased 4.6% or 8fitlidh at our clubs opened or
acquired prior to December 31, 2008 and $6.1 milbthe ten clubs that were closed subsequenetember 31, 2008.

Personal training revenue in the year ended Decefihe010 includes $2.7 million related to unuaad expired personal training
sessions. We recognize revenue from personalnigasgssions as the services are performed (i.en wie session is trained). Unused
personal training sessions expire after a setlatied

43



Table of Contents

period of time after purchase and are not refuredlabredeemable by the member for cash. The St&dew York has informed us that it is
considering whether we are required to remit thewmreceived by us for unused, expired personalitrg sessions to the State of New Y
as unclaimed property. We do not believe that tla@seunts are subject to the escheatment or abathgiwoperty laws of any jurisdiction,
including the State of New York. However, it is pilde that one of these jurisdictions may not agvitk our position and may claim that we
must remit all or a portion of these amounts tchgudsdiction. For three of our jurisdictions irhigh we operate, we concluded, based on
opinions from outside counsel, that monies heled lcpmpany for unused and expired personal trais@sgions are not escheatable. As a
result, the Company has removed approximately $@lion from deferred revenue, of which approximat®570,000 related to expired
sessions that would have been recognized the ypea@deDecember 31, 2010, and recorded such amopetrssnal training revenue in the
fourth quarter of 2010.

This 4.7% decrease in total revenue was drivenaiynby a decline in membership revenue resultingh the decrease in membership
trends. We began the years ended December 31,a2@1P009 with 486,000 and 510,000 members, respéctWhile over the course of
2009 we lost a net of 24,000 members and in 201Qaireed a net of 7,000 members, we averaged mamghers throughout 2009 compared
to 2010, resulting in the decrease in revenueearyttar ended December 31, 2010 compared to theepdad December 31, 2009. Average
EFT of individual membership dues on a per-membsid) including the effect of promotions and merabigs with reduced dues, decreased
from $64 per month in 2009 to $62 per month in 2010

Joining fees collected in the year ended Decembge?@L0 were $7.9 million compared to $4.0 milliorthe same period in 2009.
However, because joining fees are recognized astenated average member life, joining fee reveramahsed due to the decline in joining
fees collected in 2009 relative to fees collectegrior periods.

Effective April 1, 2010, the estimated average mership life changed from 28 months to 25 monthseffettive July 1, 2010 it
changed to 27 months. These changes resulteddahiaanease of $462,000 in joining fee revenuegatzed in the year ended December 31,
2010.

Comparable club revenue decreased 4.3% for theeymiad December 31, 2010 compared to the year édeleember 31, 2009. Of tt
4.3% decrease, 1.7% was due to a decrease in menhet.4% was due to a decrease in price and G:@8@ue to a collective decrease in
ancillary club revenue, initiation fees and otterenue.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprised tbfe following for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

201C 200¢ $ Variance % Variance

Payroll and relate $185,58: $193,89: $ (8,30¢) (4.9%
Club operating 174,13! 178,85« (4,719 (2.6)%
General and administrati 28,77: 31,58% (2,819 (8.9%
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,20: 56,53: (4,337 (7.1%
Impairment of fixed asse 3,254 6,70¢ (3,459 (51.9%
Impairment of interniuse softwart — 10,19¢ (10,199 (100.0%

Operating expenst $443,94° $477,76° $(33,82() (7.)%
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Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@030, were impacted by a 3.5% decrease in thertaiaths of club operation from
1,970 to 1,902, the effects of which are includethie additional descriptions of changes in opegatixpenses below.

Payroll and related. This change was primarily impacted by the fwollng factors:

» Payroll related to our membership consultants dese@ $9.1 million. The amount of membership coastitommissions deferred
over the prior two years had been declining withdecline in joining fees collected. We limit theaunt of payroll costs that we
defer to the amount of joining fees collected. Tesulted in a decrease in membership consultaninissions expensed in the year
ended December 31, 2010 relating to deferrals ksttal in prior years of $6.4 million. Also contuiting to this decrease was the
increase in the amount of payroll costs deferrettiényear ended December 31, 2010 compared tostireended December 31, 2009
of $1.6 million as joining fees collected increag@@010. The aforementioned decrease in payrolktof a $411,000 charge
reflecting the changes in the estimated averagelbmeship life from 28 months to 25 months effecthmil 1, 2010 and to 27 mont
effective July 1, 201(

» Payroll related to club staffing, excluding memlibgosconsultants, decreased $1.7 million from stafifficiencies realized in the
year ended December 31, 2010 compared to :

» Payroll related to our management incentive bonuses$1.6 million higher in the year ended Decen®ier2010 compared to 20(
We recorded our management incentive bonus paydito of target for the year ended December 310 20mpared to 50% in
the same period in 2009 due to meeting our bongetsfor 2010

» Personal training payroll increased $2.1 milliore do the increase in personal training revenueedisas an increase in payroll
related to personal training promotions gearedtedaing additional personal training cliente

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses increased to 40.1% in the year endeshiber 31, 2010 from 39.9% in
the year ended December 31, 2009.

Club operating. This change was primarily impacted by the feilog factors:

» Operating expenses relating to laundry and towetsehsed approximately $1.2 million primarily rethto the opening of our
laundry facility in ElImsford, NY in January 20C

« Utilities decreased $1.1 million in the year en@ettember 31, 2010 compared with 2009. Rent andpacmy expenses decreased
$285,000

» Rent and occupancy expenses decreased $1.7 naitlimur clubs that were closed after January 1, 200&ddition, we recorded
early lease termination costs of $1.3 million ie tfear ended December 31, 2009 at five clubs tkeg wlosed prior to the lease
expiration dates. We also recorded $700,000 in desyan June 2009 paid to a landlord of one of TIST's former health clubs.
Offsetting these decreases was an increase $3iémat our clubs that opened prior to January0D®and $322,000 at clubs that
opened after January 1, 20l

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimgeses increased to 37.7% in the year ended Dec&hp2010 from 36.9% in the
year ended December 31, 20

General and administrative. The decrease in general and administrativeresgeefor the year ended December 31, 2010 when
compared to the year ended December 31, 2009 waspgally attributable to a decrease in generdliliy insurance expense due to a
reduction in claims activity and therefore a redhrcof claims reserves. In addition, during theryeaded December 31, 2010, we benefited
from our cost reduction efforts within various gexlend administrative expense accounts includifigrmation and communication costs.
Partially offsetting these decreases were increiadegal and related fees for various litigatiasswell as costs related to our leadership
conference in March 2010.
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As a percentage of total revenue, general and ashnaitive expenses decreased to 6.2% in the yemdeDecember 31, 2010 from 6.!
in the year ended December 31, 2009.

Depreciation and amortization. In the year ended December 31, 2010 comparteetgear ended December 31, 2009, depreciation
and amortization decreased due to the accelera@@dation related to clubs closed prior to leaqa@ration dates in the year ended
December 31, 2009 and the closing of five clubssegbent to December 31, 2009. In addition, in & ¥nded December 31, 2009 and the
year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded fixeat mspairment charges, decreasing the balanceed fissets to be depreciat

As a percentage of total revenue, depreciationaamoitization expenses decreased to 11.3% in theeyeled December 31, 2010 from
11.7% in year ended December 31, 2009.

Impairment of fixed assets. In the year ended December 31, 2010, we reddided asset impairment charges totaling $3.3ioml
representing $1.6 million of fixed assets at thraderperforming clubs and $1.7 million relatedhe planned closure of one club prior to the
lease expiration date. In the year ended Decemhe2@®9, we recorded fixed asset impairment chaabng $6.7 million, which
represented the write-off of fixed assets at ningemperforming clubs.

Impairment of internal-use software. In the year ended December 31, 2009, we redamdpairment charges of $10.2 million relate
an internal-use software project. Although thewsafe project was not yet completed, we determihatlit is not probable that we will
continue in the development of this project dupeading litigation. See Note 5 — Fixed Assets aontkeN 4 — Contingencies to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements in Amaual Report for further details. There were notsimpairment charges in the year
ended December 31, 2010.

Benefit for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit for corporate income taxekld#,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010 amedpo a benefit of
$5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@ effective tax rate benefit was 33% in the yeraded December 31, 2010 compared to
51% in the year ended December 31, 2009. The esgbdenefits from our captive insurance arrangenmen¢ased our effective tax rate
benefit on our pre-tax loss in the year ended Déezr@1, 2010 and increased the benefit on thegxésss in the year ended December 31,
20009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have satisfied our liquidity neetisough cash generated from operations and vaborswing arrangements. Principal
liquidity needs have included the acquisition ardedopment of new clubs, debt service requiremandsother capital expenditures neces
to upgrade, expand and renovate existing clubs.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2011 was $74.9 million coslpa
$51.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2@b0ncrease of 46.2% or $23.6 million. This inseeavas driven by an increase in
earnings before the effects of depreciation anedfiasset impairments. The increase in deferredioevim 2011 generated a $6.5 million
increase in cash flow as compared to 2010, whichdvizen by an increase in joining fees collectte decrease in prepaid expenses and
other current assets generated a $6.0 million &blercash flow variance to 2010 principally duéiting differences in rent payments at the
end of 2011. The effect of income taxes increaseth dow by $6.6 million in 2011, as we had moreoime tax refunds, net of cash paid for
taxes, in 2011 compared to 2010. These increasasimflow were partially offset by an $8.8 millimtrease in cash paid for interest, and a
$4.2 million increase in deferred membership costapared to 2010.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tkaryended December 31, 2010 was $51.2 million coedpga $76.2 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of 32.8%d&bisase was related
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to the decrease in earnings, excluding depreciatimhamortization and impairments of $12.6 millidotal cash paid for interest increased
$7.4 million to $20.2 million. On February 1, 20@&yr Senior Discount Notes became fully accreteti ain outstanding balance of

$138.5 million. Semi-annual cash interest paymehy.6 million commenced on August 1, 2009. Inybar ended December 31, 2009, the
August 1, 2009 interest payment of $7.6 millionresgented a single semi-annual payment. In thegreded December 31, 2010, there were
two semi-annual payments totaling $15.2 milliorsuléng in an increase in cash paid for interesk@b million on our Senior Discount
Notes. In addition, our landlord contributions desed $4.7 million in 2010 when compared with &i&009 and prepaid rent increas
approximately $5.0 million; both reducing our 2Qdferating cash flows compared to 2009. The effetteochange in deferred revenue and
deferred membership costs increased cash $1.®millithe aggregate in the year ended Decembe2@0D, offsetting the decrease in cash.

Investing Activities. Investing activities in the year ended December2B1,1 consisted primarily of remodeling existingld and the
purchase of new fitness equipment. In the yearebirember 31, 2011, the Company also began catistion two clubs, both of which
opened in the fourth quarter of 2011. There weréuhare clubs under construction in the year eridedember 31, 2010. Net cash used in
investing activities decreased 40.3% to $30.9 arilin the year ended December 31, 2011 compareézt tpear ended December 31, 2010.
The 2011 amount includes approximately $7.6 millielated to the two club openings in the fourthrtgraof 2011, approximately
$16.8 million to continue to upgrade existing clatsl $3.1 million principally related to major ranations at clubs with recent lease rene\
and upgrading our in-club entertainment system agtwWe also invested $3.4 million to enhance oanagement information and
communication systems.

For the year ending December 31, 2012, we currglly to invest $25.0 million to $28.0 million iapital expenditures. This range is
compared to $30.9 million of capital expenditure2011. This amount includes approximately $2.3ionilto $3.0 million related to potenti
2012 and 2013 club openings, approximately $16l0omito $17.0 million to continue to upgrade ekist clubs and $4.0 million to $5.0
million principally related to major renovationsditibs with recent lease renewals and upgradingnediub entertainment system network.
We also expect to invest $2.5 million to $3.0 roiflito enhance our management information systeheselexpenditures will be funded by
cash flow provided by operations and available aashand.

Investing activities in the year ended December2810 consisted primarily of remodeling existingld and the purchase of new fitr
equipment. Net cash used in investing activitiegeesed 55.3% to $22.0 million in the year endeceber 31, 2010 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2009. During the year endedritle®e31, 2010, we spent $15.9 million to upgradstieg clubs, $4.9 million related to
major renovations at clubs with recent lease reiearad upgrading our in-club entertainment systetwark and $660,000 to enhance our
management information systems. The remainder 02010 capital expenditures was committed to bagdir expanding clubs. During the
year ended December 31, 2009, we spent $23.4 mithiapgrade existing clubs, $16.6 million for gtbveapital expenditures primari
related to clubs added in 2008 and 2009, $4.6anild enhance our management information systech§4u7 million for the construction of
corporate offices and the completion of our newiaral laundry facility in our New York Sports Clubzarket.

Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities increased &&dllion for the year ended December 31, 2011 gared to
the year ended December 31, 2010. In the year ebdeember 31, 2011, we made principal paymentd.4fi3million on the 2007 Term
Loan Facility and in the year ended December 3102@e made principal payments of $1.9 million witspect to that facility. On May 11,
2011, we refinanced our long-term debt. In conoectiith the refinancing, we repaid the remaininiggipal amounts of the 2007 Term Loan
Facility of $164.0 million and the Senior Discoltes of $138.5 million and received $297.0 milliomder the 2011 Term Loan Facility, |
of the original issue discount of $3.0 million.dannection with the refinancing, we paid $8.1 raillin debt issuance costs. In addition, in the
year ended December 31, 2011, we repaid $8.3 miltigrincipal on the 2011 Term Loan Facility. Wecareceived $479,000 related
proceeds from stock option exercises in the yede@mecember 31, 2011, while in the year ended iDbee 31, 2010 we received $85,000.
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Net cash used in financing activities was $26.8iomilin the year ended December 31, 2009. We paid fillion related to repurchas
of 2.1 million shares of our common stock and hedrapayments on the 2007 Revolving Loan Facilit$X®.0 million. Additionally, in July
2009, the Company incurred an aggregate of apprtein$615,000 in fees and expenses related ton@andment to the 2007 Senior Credit
Facility. In both years ended December 31, 20102009, we made principal payments of $1.9 millionoair 2007 Term Loan Facility.

2011 Senior Credit Facility

On May 11, 2011, TSI, LLC entered into the 2011i&e@redit Facility. The 2011 Senior Credit Fagiltonsists of the 2011 Term Lc
Facility and the 2011 Revolving Loan Facility. TA@11 Term Loan Facility was issued at an origisalie discount (“OID”) of 1.0%, or
$3.0 million. The proceeds were used to pay off mm® outstanding under the 2007 Senior Credit iégdib pay the redemption price for all
of our outstanding Senior Discount Notes, and torptated fees and expenses. None of the revofeititity was drawn as of the closing d:
but loans under the 2011 Revolving Loan Facilityyrha drawn from time to time pursuant to the teahthe 2011 Senior Credit Facility. T
2011 Term Loan Facility matures on May 11, 2018 #ne 2011 Revolving Loan Facility matures on Mdy 2016. The borrowings under
2011 Senior Credit Facility are guaranteed andreechy assets and pledges of capital stock by tmpgany, TSI, LLC and the wholly-
owned domestic subsidiaries of TSI, LLC.

The $3.0 million OID was recorded as a contra-ligbio “Long-term debt” on the accompanying condated balance sheet, and is
being amortized as interest expense using theteffeinterest method. The unamortized balance ®QlD as of December 31, 2011 was !
million.

As of December 31, 2011, there were no outstan2lrig Revolving Loan Facility borrowings and outstiaig letters of credit issued
totaled $9.6 million. The unutilized portion of tB811 Revolving Loan Facility as of December 311 RWas $40.4 million.

Borrowings under the 2011 Term Loan Facility, at,TT®C’s option, bear interest at either the adrsirative agent’s base rate plus
4.5% or its Eurodollar rate plus 5.5% (each asngefiin the 2011 Senior Credit Facility). The EultatdRrate has a floor of 1.50% and the
base rate a floor of 2.50% with respect to thetantting Term Loans. As of December 31, 2011, tteré@st rate was 7.0%. TSI, LLC is
required to pay 0.25% of principal, or $750,000 guearter. However, if, as of the last day of asgdil quarter of TSI Holdings (commencing
with the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2Gh#&)total leverage ratio is greater than 2.75:1T®), LLC is required to pay $3.75 million,
or 1.25% of principal per quarter. As of Decembgr11, TSI, LLC had a total leverage ratio 0f7/31000 and TSI, LLC will be required to
make a principal payment of $3.75 million on Ma&d 2012. As of December 31, 2011, we had maderBlidn in principal payments.

The terms of the 2011 Senior Credit Facility prevfdr financial covenants which require TSI, LLOntaintain a total leverage ratio (as
defined) of no greater than 4.75:1.00 as of DecerBbg2011, with a step-down of 0.25 in the nexartgr arriving at a total leverage ratio
requirement of 4.50:1.00 or less effective as ofdé81, 2012 and thereafter; an interest expengerage ratio of no less than 2.00:1.00; and
a covenant that limits capital expenditures to 8diion for the four quarters ending in any quadering which the total leverage ratio is
greater than 3.00:1.00 and to $50 million for therfquarters ending in any quarter during whichrdi® is less than or equal to 3.00:1.00 but
greater than 2.50:1.00. This covenant does not Gapital expenditures if the ratio is less thaegual to 2.50:1.00. TSI, LLC was in
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(@®l, with a total leverage ratio of 3.07:1.00 andreeerest coverage ratio of 3.80:1.00.

TSI, LLC may prepay the 2011 Term Loan Facility 28d1 Revolving Loan Facility without premium omadty in accordance with t
2011 Senior Credit Facility, except that a prepaynpeemium of 2.0% is payable prior to May 11, 2@t® a prepayment premium of 1.0%
is payable from May 11, 2012 to May 11, 2013. Maadaprepayments are required in certain circuntamelating to cash flow in exces:
certain
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expenditures, asset sales, insurance recoverynandénce of certain other debt. The 2011 Seniedi€Facility contains provisions that
require excess cash flow payments, as definecki2@11 Senior Credit Facility, to be applied againgstanding 2011 Term Loan Facility
balances. The excess cash flow is calculated Beoémber 31 and paid on March 31. The applicaldesxcash flow repayment percentage
is applied to the excess cash flow when determittisgexcess cash flow payment. Earnings, changseriking capital and capital
expenditure levels all impact the determinatiommy excess cash flows. The applicable excess tashdpayment percentage is 75% when
the total leverage ratio exceeds 3.00:1.00; 50%wthe total leverage ratio is greater than 2.50:biit less than or equal to 3.00:1.00; 25%
when the total leverage ratio is greater than 2.00: but less than or equal to 2.50:1.00 and 0%nwihe total leverage ratio is less than or
equal to 2.00:1.00. The calculation was performedfdDecember 31, 2011 and resulted in a payme$i®h million to be made with cash
on hand on March 31, 2012, which is recorded asatiportion of long-term debt on the December2fil,1 consolidated balance sheet.

As of December 31, 2011, the 2011 Term Loan Fgdikts a balance of $289.0 million, net of the unadized OID.

Debt issuance costs related to the 2011 SenioiitGradility were $8.1 million, of which, $7.3 midih is being amortized as interest
expense, and are included in “Other ass@tsfie accompanying consolidated balance sheetndriized loan costs of $1.6 million relatec
the 2007 Senior Credit Facility and the Senior Bistt Notes and $777,000 of costs related to thé S&hior Credit Facility were written off
on May 11, 2011 and are included in “Loss on extisigment of debt” in the accompanying consolidatatements of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Repayment of 2007 Senior Credit Facility

Contemporaneously with entering into the 2011 Se@redit Facility, TSI, LLC repaid the outstandipgncipal amount of the 2007
Term Loan Facility of $164.0 million. The 2007 Tetrman Facility was set to expire on the earlieFebruary 27, 2014 and August 1, 2013,
if the Senior Discount Notes were still outstandifibere were no outstanding amounts under the Re@dlving Loan Facility as of this da
The 2007 Term Loan Facility was repaid at face @gdlus accrued and unpaid interest of $447,000esslrelated to the letters of credit of
$27,000. The total cash paid in connection witk tepayment was $164.5 million as of May 11, 20ith wo early repayment penalty. We
determined that the 2011 Senior Credit Facility wassubstantially different than the 2007 Senioedt facility for certain lenders based on
the less than 10% difference in cash flows of #spective debt instruments. A portion of the tratisa was therefore accounted for as a
modification of the 2007 Senior Credit Facility amgortion was accounted for as an extinguishnfenof May 11, 2011, we recorded
refinancing charges of approximately $634,000,as@nting the write-off of the remaining unamortiziedbt costs related to the 2007 Senior
Credit Facility, which is included in “Loss on exguishment of debt” in the accompanying consolidatatements of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Redemption of Senior Discount Notes

A portion of the proceeds from the 2011 Senior @redcility was used to pay the remaining princigalount on the Senior Discount
Notes of $138.45 million plus a call premium of 3386 of the principal amount thereof totaling appmmately $2.5 million and accrue
interest of $5.5 million. The accrued interest imteld interest through May 11, 2011 of $4.2 milliplus 30 days of additional interest of
$1.3 million, representing the interest chargermyithe 30 day notification period. We determineat the 2011 Senior Credit Facility was
substantially different than the Senior Discountd$o As of May 11, 2011, we wrote-off unamortizediedred financing costs of
approximately $916,000 related to the redemptiotihefSenior Discount Notes, which is included irsdon extinguishment of debt in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatmrtbe year ended December 31, 2011.
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Financial Instruments

In our normal operations, we are exposed to maigles relating to fluctuations in interest ratesokder to minimize the negative imp
of such fluctuations on the Company’s cash flowsway enter into derivative financial instrumentddfivatives”), such as interest-rate
swaps. Any instruments are not entered into faliig purposes and we only use commonly tradedunsnts. Currently, we only enter into
derivatives relating to the variability of cashsfldrom interest rate fluctuations.

When a derivative is executed and hedge accouigtiagpropriate, it is designated as a cash flovgbebhterest rate swaps are
designated as cash flow hedges for accounting pagsince they are being used to transform variatdeest rate exposure to fixed interest
rate exposure on a recognized liability (debt).aBrongoing basis, we assess the hedge effectivehalisierivatives designated as hedge
accounting purposes to determine if they contioueet highly effective in offsetting changes in clslvs of the underlying hedged items. |
is determined that the hedge is not highly effegtihen hedge accounting will be discontinued protpely.

On July 1, 2011, we entered into an interest naspsarrangement which effectively converted $150,@® our variable-rate debt based
on a onemonth Eurodollar rate to a fixed rate of 1.983%adotal fixed rate of 7.483%, on this $150,000 wheluding the applicable 5.5C
margin. This swap matures on July 13, 2014. As fitzchby ASC 815Derivatives and Hedgingwe have designated this swap as a cash
flow hedge, the effects of which have been ref@ateour consolidated financial statements as dffanthe year ended December 31, 2011.
The objective of this hedge is to manage the véitiabf cash flows in the interest payments rethte the portion of the variable-rate debt
designated as being hedged.

Counterparties to our derivatives are major bankisttutions with credit ratings of investment desor better and no collateral is
required, and there are no significant risk corregions. We believe the risk of incurring lossegdenivative contracts related to credit risk is
unlikely.

As of December 31, 2011, we were in compliance withdebt covenants in the 2011 Senior Credit Faeihd given our operating
plans and expected performance for 2012, we expeetill continue to be in compliance during 2012e%e covenants may limit TSI, LLC’s
ability to incur additional debt. As of December, 2011, permitted borrowing capacity of $50.0 roifliwas not restricted by the covenants.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $47.9 million agficand cash equivalents. Financial instrumentspibizntially subject the Company
to concentrations of credit risk consist of castl eash equivalents. Although we deposit our cash more than one financial institution, as
of December 31, 2011, $30.0 million was held at fimencial institution. We have not experienced &sses on cash and cash equivalent
accounts to date and we do not believe that, bas¢le credit ratings of the aforementioned ingtins, we are exposed to any significant
credit risk related to cash at this time.

Consolidated Debt

As of December 31, 2011, our total consolidated defs $291.8 million. This substantial amount dbtdepuld have significant
consequences, including:

« making it more difficult to satisfy our obligatior
 increasing our vulnerability to general adversenecoic conditions

+ limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expend#siy acquisitions of new clubs and
other general corporate requiremel

* requiring cash flow from operations for the paymeininterest on our credit facility and the paymehprincipal pursuant to excess
cash flow requirements and reducing our abilituse our cash flow to fund working capital, capéapenditures, acquisitions of new
clubs and general corporate requirements;
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« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhioh we operate
These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveragetpetitors.

We believe that we have, or will be able to, obtigenerate sufficient funds to finance our curmgrerating and growth plans through
the end of 2012. Any material acceleration or expamof our plans through newly constructed clubaamuisitions (to the extent such
acquisitions include cash payments) may requir® psirsue additional sources of financing priotht® end of 2012. There can be no
assurance that such financing will be availablehat it will be available on acceptable terms.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The aggregate long-term debt and operating ledggatibns as of December 31, 2011 were as follows:

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt $ 291,75 $ 25,50% $ 6,00C $ 6,00C $254,24:
Interest payments on lo-term debt(1 121,31. 19,93¢ 37,43¢ 35,75! 28,18:
Operating lease obligations( 719,46: 83,38¢ 159,62: 145,22: 331,23(
Total contractual cash obligatio $1,132,52! $128,83: $203,06: $186,97: $613,65¢
Notes:

(1) Based on interest rates on the 2011 Term Loanityaad of December 31, 201

(2) Operating lease obligations include base raht €ertain leases provide for additional rentduzhsn real estate taxes, common area
maintenance and defined amounts based on the mgerasults of the lesse

The following longterm liabilities included on the consolidated baksheet are excluded from the table above: indares (including
uncertain tax positions), insurance accruals ahdraiccruals. The Company is unable to estimatértiieg of payments for these items.

In recent years, we have typically operated wittoaking capital deficit. We had a working capitafidit of $38.3 million at
December 31, 2011, as compared with $22.9 millidbexember 31, 2010. Major components of our waykiapital deficit on the current
liability side are deferred revenues, accrued egegiiincluding, among others, accrued construatigmogress and equipment, payroll and
occupancy costs) and the current portion of lomgrt@ebt. These current liabilities more than ofteet main current assets, which consist of
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivablegrapdid expenses and other current assets. Paymaierlying the current liability for
deferred revenue are generally not held as caskastdequivalents, but rather are used for the @axip business needs, including financ
and investing commitments, which use contributetheoworking capital deficit. The deferred revetiability relates to dues and services
paid-in-full in advance and joining fees paid & thme of enroliment and totaled $40.8 million &&5.1 million at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively. Joining fees vedeare deferred and amortized over the estimatexdhge membership life of a club
member. Since July 1, 2010, this estimated avaragabership life was 27 months. Effective as of Jylg011, the estimated average
membership life was increased to 28 months andcefe October 1, 2011, the estimated average mesimipdife was increased to 29
months. Prepaid dues are generally realized operiad of up to twelve months, while fees for piidervices normally are realized over a
period of one to nine months. In periods when veedase the number of clubs open
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and consequently increase the level of paymengswed in advance, we anticipate that we will comtino have deferred revenue balances at
levels similar to or greater than those currentiintained. By contrast, any decrease in demandupservices or reductions in joining fees
collected would have the effect of reducing defgémevenue balances, which would likely requireausety more heavily on other sources of
funding. The increase in joining fees and our dzaance has increased the working capital defitigither case, a significant portion of the
deferred revenue is not expected to constitutelaliy that must be funded with cash. At the timmember joins our club, we incur
enrollment costs, a portion of which are deferreerdhe estimated average membership life. Thests eme recorded as a lotegm asset ar

as such do not offset the working capital defMie expect to record a working capital deficit it periods and, as in the past, will fund
such deficit using cash flows from operations aoddwings under our 2011 Senior Credit Facility. Wédieve that these sources will be
sufficient to cover such deficit.

Recent Changes in or Recently Issued Accounting Stdards

For details of applicable new accounting standgitdsse, see Note 4 — Recent Accounting Pronounusmee our consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the findrst@ements and the reported amounts of revemgesxpenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Our most significant assumptions and estimateserétaestimated membership life, the allocation faidvalue ascribed to fixed and
intangible assets, the useful lives of long-tersess recoverability and impairment of fixed angingible assets, valuation of and expense
incurred in connection with stock options, valuataf interest-rate swap arrangements, legal coetioigs, estimated self-insurance reserves,
and valuation of deferred income taxes.

Estimated membership life. Our one-time member joining fees and a portioretdted direct expenses, up to the amount of deferre
joining fees, are deferred and recognized on &gsit-line basis in operations over the estimated mestijetife of 29 months. This estimated
membership life was the result of increases inaahembership retention experienced by us and diastad from 27 months to 28 months
in April 2011 and from 28 months to 29 months int@der 2011. This estimated membership life coutddase or decrease in future periods.
Consequently, deferred initiation fees and diregieeses would increase or decrease accordingly.

Fixed and intangible assets.Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatacgiaight-line basis over the estimated usafeslof
the assets, which are 30 years for building anddvgments, five years for club equipment, furnifdeures, flooring and computer
equipment and three to five years for computemgr. Leasehold improvements are amortized ovestibeter of their estimated useful liv
or the remaining period of the lease. Expenditimesnaintenance and repairs are charged to opegatis incurred. The cost and related
accumulated depreciation, or amortization of assgised or sold, are removed from the respectoeants and any gain or loss is recogn
in operations. The costs related to developing amllications, developing web pages and installiexptbped applications on the web sen
are capitalized and classified as computer softwalieb site hosting fees and maintenance costsxpensed as incurred.

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iriilngssets are reviewed for impairment when evantgcumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Estimatetissounted expected future cash flows are usedtermine if an asset group is impaired,
in which case the asset’s carrying value woulddukiced to its fair value, calculated using discedrdash flows. Projected cash flows are
based on internal
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budgets and forecasts through the end of eachatdgpéease. The most significant assumptions a@s¢hbudgets and forecasts relate to
estimated membership and ancillary revenue, attritaites, and maintenance capital expenditureshwdrie estimated at approximately 3%
total revenues. Actual cash flows realized couftedirom those estimated and could result in agsptirments in the future. See Note 5 —
Fixed Assets to our consolidated financial statamamthis Annual Report.

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudéraames: New York Sports Clubs
(“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washingtop@ts Clubs (“WSC") and Philadelphia Sports CIul3SC"), with certain more
remote clubs that do not benefit from a regionastr being considered single reporting units (f@uClubs”) and our three clubs located in
Switzerland (“SSC”). The Company has one OutliarGVith goodwill. The BSC, WSC and PSC regions dbhave any goodwill as of
December 31, 2011. The carrying value of goodwélbwallocated to the Company'’s reporting units pamsto FASB guidance.

As of February 28, 2011 and 2010, the Company peed its annual impairment test of goodwill. Théfery 28, 2011 and 2010
impairment tests supported the recorded goodwidiimes and as such no impairment of goodwill wgsired. The valuation of intangible
assets requires assumptions and estimates of miéingldactors, including revenue and market grtoyaperating cash flows and discount
rates. The Company may decide to complete an intevialuation of the goodwill by reporting unit dieethe existence of a triggering event.
The determination as to whether a triggering eeaitts that would warrant an interim review of gaildand whether a write-down of
goodwill is necessary involves significant judgmbeased on short-term and long-term projectionf@f@ompany.

Valuation of and expense incurred in connectiomwibck options. We recognize all share-based payments to emplagebe
financial statements based on their fair valuesgian option-pricing model at the date of grant. We a Black-Scholes option-pricing model
to calculate the fair value of options. This moagjuires various judgmental assumptions includiolgtility, forfeiture rate and expected
option life. If any of the assumptions used int@del change significantly, shabased compensation may differ materially in theretror
that recorded in the current period.

Valuation of interest-rate swap. In accordance with FASB fair value measurementajuié, we determine the fair value of our
interest-rate swap using observable current mamk&tmation such as the prevailing Eurodollar ietrrate and Eurodollar yield curve rates
and include consideration of counterparty cregit.r5ee Note 9 — Derivative Financial Instrumeateur consolidated financial statements
in this Annual Report.

Legal contingencies. In accordance with FASB guidance, we determine dreib disclose and accrue for loss contingencasgd on
an assessment of whether the risk of loss is remedisonably possible or probable. Our assessdet/eloped in consultation with our
outside counsel and other advisors and is baseah amalysis of possible outcomes under varioutesfies. Loss contingency assumptions
involve judgments that are inherently subjectivd aan involve matters that are in litigation, whibly its nature is unpredictable. We believe
that our assessment of the probability of lossingencies is reasonable, but because of the silifgétvolved and the unpredictable nature
of the subject matter at issue, our assessmenpnoag ultimately to be incorrect, which could méity impact the consolidated financial
statements.

Self-insurance reserves.We limit our exposure to casualty losses on instgastaims by maintaining liability coverage subijgxct
specific and aggregate liability deductibles. Sedfurance losses for claims filed and claims ineditout not reported are accrued based uj
number of factors including sales estimates foheasurance year, claim amounts, claim settlemamtisnumber of claims, our historical loss
experience and valuations provided by independhérdt-party consultants. To the extent that estithatf-insurance losses differ from actual
losses realized, our insurance reserves could diif@ificantly and may result in either higherawer insurance expense in future periods. In
the past year, our actual loss experience hasmetesr than expected overall.
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Deferred income taxes. As of December 31, 2011, our net deferred tax agstdled $40.0 million. These net assets represent
cumulative net “temporary differences” that wilktdt in tax deductions in future years. Quartethg Company assesses the weight of all
positive and negative evidence to determine whettenet deferred tax asset is realizable. In 20102009, the Company incurred losses
returned to profitability in 2011. The Company Ihéstorically been a taxpayer and projects thatlithe in a three year cumulative income
position, excluding non-recurring items, as of Deber 31, 2012. In addition, the Company, baseceoant trends, projects improved
performance and future income sufficient to realimedeferred tax assets during the periods whetethporary tax deductible differences
reverse. The Company has federal net operatingchorsg-forwards and some small net operating lessyeforwards which the Company
believes will be realized within the available gaforward period, except for a small state net apirg loss forward in Rhode Island due to
the short carry forward period in that state. Adiogly, the Company concluded that it is more §kilan not that the deferred tax assets will
be realized. If actual results do not meet the Camyjs forecasts and the Company incurs lossesi a6d beyond, a valuation allowance
against the deferred tax assets may be requirdmifuture. In addition, with exception of the detions related to the Company’s captive
insurance for state taxes, taxable income has &eeis projected to be the same as federal taxatidene. Because the captive insurance
company will be discontinued, the assessment dizedmlity of the state deferred tax assets is @iaat with the federal tax analysis above.

FASB guidance related to accounting for uncertaingositions prescribes a recognition thresholdraadsurement attribute for a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmetnd also provides guidance on de-recognitilassdication, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and titeors The Company recognizes interest and persadtgerued related to unrecognized tax
benefits in income tax expense.

Inflation

Although we cannot accurately anticipate the efééénhflation on our operations, we believe thdtdtion has not had a material impact
on our results of operations or financial conditiShould there be continuing periods of high indiatin the future, the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition would be exposethe effects of inflation, such as higher reotsdur leases under escalation terms based
on the consumer price index and higher interestes@ on our variable rate debt.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our debt consists of both fixed and variable ratethat we are exposed to market risks resultio finterest rate fluctuations. We
regularly evaluate our exposure to these riskstakel measures to mitigate these risks on our cilaget! financial results. We do not
participate in speculative derivative trading.

Borrowings for the 2011 Term Loan Facility are éoreimonth periods in the case of Eurodollar borrowir@gr exposure to market ri
for changes in interest rates relates to intergstese on variable rate debt. Effective July 13,12@ve had entered into an interest rate swap
with a notional amount totaling $150.0 million tedge one-half of our variable rate debt to a firetd. Changes in the fair value of these
derivatives will be recorded each period in accuated other comprehensive income (loss). Basedeartiount of our variable rate debt and
our interest rate swap agreement as of Decemb&@031, a hypothetical 100 basis point interestaase would not have affected interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 asitiadle rate debt contains a Eurodollar flool &%. As of December 31, 2011, we had
$291.8 million outstanding on the 2011 Term Loanilfg.

For additional information concerning the termsof 2011 Term Loan Facility, see Note 8 — Long-T&abt to our consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Financial Statements appear following the digreapage hereto, are incorporated herein by ne¢erand are listed in the index
appearing under Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéegnting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures:We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that
the information required to be disclosed by uhimreports filed or submitted by us under the ErgeaAct is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodi§ipe in the SEC’s rules and forms and such infation is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Chiethtree Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, ggpropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Any controls anctpdures, no matter how well designed and operasedprovide only reasonable assural
of achieving the desired controls.

As of December 31, 2011, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatibour management, including
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financficer, of the effectiveness of the design andration of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 18} Bhd 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based tipat evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer hasencluded that, as of December 31, 2011, our discéocontrols and procedures were
effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovétinancial Reporting:  Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as such term is defined in Rules 13€)Jand 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act). Under the supervision and with the participatof our management, including our Chief Exeai®fficer and Chief Financial Officer,
we assessed the effectiveness of our internal@amter financial reporting as of December 31, 20hImaking this assessment, our
management used the criteria set forth by the Cteendof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwam@éession (COSO) internal
Control — Integrated FrameworkBased on our management’s assessment usingdties&, our management concluded that, as of
December 31, 2011, we maintained effective intecoatrol over financial reporting.

Our internal control over financial reporting isstgned to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of consolidated financial states for external purposes in accordance withrgdigeaccepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regisfgublic accounting firm that audited the finahatatements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued its writitestation report on the effectiveness of the Guomgjs internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, as stated intgort included following the signature pagedter which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportgt  There have not been any changes in our internataaver financial
reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13d}Hs(d 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) duringdbarter ended December 31, 2011 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

On February 27, 2012, the Company announced thetirMa Annese, the Company’s Chief Operating @ffiavill be leaving, effective
May 11, 2012, to spend more time with his familyring the period through his departure date, Mmése will continue to perform his
duties and assist with the transition. The Compaitiyoe conducting a search for his replacement.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverre

The information with respect to directors, exeortdfficers and corporate governance of the Comjmimcorporated herein by
reference to the following sections of the Compardgfinitive Proxy Statement relating to the Comps2012 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12@slaf the Company’s fiscal year ended DecembeRB11 (the “Proxy Statement”):
“Matters to be Considered at Annual Meeting — Psapp@®ne — Election of Directors,” “Corporate Govenoe and Board Matters —

Corporate Governance Documents,

Corporate Govermand Board Matters — Committee Membership — Bf@dimmittee,” “Section 16

(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” ‘&outive Officers,” and “Deadline for Receipt of 8tholder Proposals.”

The following are the members of our Board of Dioes and our Executive Officers:

Board of Directors:
Robert Giardina

Keith E. Alessi
Paul N. Arnold

Bruce C. Bruckman
J. Rice Edmond
Thomas J. Galligan I
Kevin McCall

Executive Officers:
Robert Giardin:¢

Martin Annese
Paul Barror
Daniel Gallaghe
David M. Kastin
Scott Milford

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Chief Executive Officer and President, Town Spamternational Holdings,
Inc.

Chief Executive Officer and President, Westmorel@oadl Compan

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officgort Business Services,
Inc.

Managing Director, Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Qd?
Managing Director, Edmonds Capital, LI

Executive Chairman, Papa G’s Holdings Corp

Chief Executive Officer and President, ParadigmpBrtes, LLC

Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Chief Operations Office

Chief Information Officel

Chief Financial Office!

Senior Vice Presidel— General Counsel and Corporate Secre

Senior Vice Preside— Human Resource

The information with respect to executive compensais incorporated herein by reference to theofeihg sections of the Proxy
Statement: “Executive Compensation” and “Corpotadeernance and Board Matters — Compensation Commnititerlocks and Insider

Participation.”

The information with respect to compensation oécliors is incorporated herein by reference to dleviing section of the Proxy
Statement: “Corporate Governance and Board MatteBirectors’ Compensation for the 2011 Fiscal Year.
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ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners albBnagement and Related Stockholder Mattt
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information with regpéo compensation plans (including individual c@ngation arrangements) under
which our equity securities are authorized for égte to employees as of December 31, 2011:

Number of Securities

to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Number of Securities
Exercise of Exercise Price of Remaining Available for
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plan:
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights (Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column(a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved b
security holder: 2,008,701 $ 5.4C 613,98t
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holder — — —
Total 2,008,701 $ 5.4(C 613,98¢

The information with respect to security ownershiigertain beneficial owners and management isrjparated herein by reference to
the following section of the Proxy Statement: “Owstep of Securities.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information with respect to certain relatiopshand related transactions and director indepeedesrincorporated herein by
reference to the following sections of the Proxgt&mnent: “Certain Relationships and Related Traiwa’ and “Corporate Governance and
Board Matters — Director Independence.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information with respect to principal accouttiaes and services is incorporated herein by eefar to the following section of the

Proxy Statement: “Matters to be Considered at Ahhleeting — Proposal Two — Ratification of Independ Registered Public Accounting
Firm.”
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits And Financial Statements
(@) Financial Statements
(1) Financial statements filed as part of tljsart:

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar&pnternational Holdings, In:
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@12C410 F-3
Consolidated statements of operations for the yermded December 31, 2011, 2010 and = F-4
Consolidated statements of stockhol’ equity (deficit) for the years ended December 281111, 2010 and 20C F-5
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2z F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

(2) Financial Statements Schedules:

The schedules have been omitted because they eapplicable or the required information has bewfuided inthe financial statements
or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulat®+K

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference from the Index to Exhibitmiediately following page F-39 of
this Annual Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rtegig has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmy authorized, on February 27, 2012.

T owN S PORTSI NTERNATIONAL H OLDINGS, | NC.

By: /s/  ROBERTG IARDINA

Chief Executive Office
(principal executive officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title. Date
By: /s ROBERTG IARDINA Chief Executive Officer (principal executive offiePresident February 27, 2012
Robert Giardin: and Director
By: /s DANIEL G ALLAGHER Chief Financial Officer (principal financial andainting February 27, 2012
Daniel Gallaghe officer)
By: /s|  KEITH A LESSI Director February 27, 2012
Keith Alessi
By: /sl PAuL A RNOLD Director February 27, 2012
Paul Arnold
By: /s/  BRUCEB RUCKMANN Director February 27, 2012
Bruce Bruckmani
By: /s| RICE E DMONDS Director February 27, 2012
Rice Edmond:
By: /sl  THOMASJ. GALLIGAN llI Director February 27, 2012
Thomas J. Galligan I
By: /s/  KeviINM cCALL Director February 27, 2012
Kevin McCall
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar8pnternational Holdings, Inc
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm

Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@I12C410

Consolidated statements of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated statements of stockholders’ equit§icdefor the years ended December 31, 2011, 2812009
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated ba#asheets and the related consolidated statemfeopei@tions, stockholders’ equity
(deficit) and cash flows present fairly, in all maal respects, the financial position of Town Spdnternational Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 201d 2010, and the results of their operations aait ttash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011 inocariy with accounting principles generally accepite the United States of Americ
Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, inrafiterial respects, effective internal control degincial reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on criteria establishedniternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for these financial statementspfaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assesst of the effectiveness of internal control ofileancial reporting, included in
Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Gagponsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements and on the Compamgsal control over financial reporting basedowm integrated audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with the standards of thei@@admpany Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@hose standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonalderaace about whether the financial statementbegef material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udits of the financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made dgagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting includebtaining an understanding of internal control duggincial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaduthie design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaMeebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygsats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PRICEWATERHOUSEC OOPERSLLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2012
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventory
Prepaid corporate income ta»
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Fixed assets, n
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Deferred tax assets, r
Deferred membership cos
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Accrued interes
Deferred revenu
Total current liabilities
Long-term debr
Deferred lease liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies (Note 1¢
Stockholder' equity (deficit):

Common stock, $.001 par value; issued and outsigrz$,040,881 and 22,667,650 shares at December

2011 and December 31, 2010, respecti
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Retained earning

Total stockholdel' equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity (deficit)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2011

2010

(All figures in thousands
except share data)

$ 47,88  $ 38,80:
5,857 5,25¢
29C 217

73 7,34%
10,59¢ 13,21
64,69¢ 64,83:
286,04 309,37:
32,79¢ 32,79«
— 44
40,00 41,88:
10,11° 5,93/
15,88¢ 9,307
$44954.  $464,16
$ 25,507  $ 14,55(
9,18( 4,00¢
26,57t 27 47"
95( 6,57¢
40,82: 35,10¢
103,03« 87,72
263,48 301,96:
65,11¢ 67,18
5,33¢ 3,16¢
12,21( 11,08:
449,18t 471,11
23 23
(19,939 (21,789
1,251 2,121
19,01 12,69¢
354 (6,94%)
$44954.  $464,16
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Revenues:
Club operation:
Fees and othe

Operating Expenses:;
Payroll and relate
Club operating
General and administrati\
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of fixed asse
Impairment of interniuse softwart

Operating incom:
Loss on extinguishment of de
Interest expens
Interest incom
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for corgterincome taxe
Provision (benefit) for corporate income ta:

Net income (loss

Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares used in caleglatirnings (loss)
per share
Basic
Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-4

$

2011

2010

2009

(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

462,05:
4,89(

466,94:

177,52
176,46:
25,79¢
51,53¢

431,32t

35,61¢
4,86¢
24,274
(147)

(2,399

$

9,014
2,69¢

6,31¢

0.2¢
0.27

22,828,03
23,423,79

$ 457,62
4,761
462,38

185,58
174,13!
28,77
52,20:
3,25¢
443,94°
18,44(

21,15¢
(145)

(2,139

(434)

(144)

$ 290)

$  (0.00)
$ (0.0

22,634,23
22,634,23

$ 480,73
4,661
485,39:

193,89:
178,85:
31,587
56,53
6,70¢
10,19¢
477,76°
7,62%

20,97:
3

(1,876)
(11,46¢)
(5,800)

$ (5,669

$  (0.29
$ (0.2

22,720,93
22,720,93
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Balance at January 1, 200!

Repurchase of common sta

Stock option exercise

Common stock gran

Restricted stock gran

Compensation related to stock options and
restricted stock gran

Tax benefit from stock option exercis

Other comprehensive los

Net loss

Foreign currency translation adjustm
Total comprehensive ot

Balance at December 31, 20C

Stock option exercise

Common stock gran

Cancellation of option

Forfeiture of restricted stoc

Compensation related to stock options and
restricted stock gran

Tax shortfall from stock option exercis

Other comprehensive incomr

Net loss

Foreign currency translation adjustm
Total comprehensive incon

Balance at December 31, 201

Stock option exercise

Common stock gran

Restricted stock gran

Cancellation of option

Forfeiture of restricted stoc

Compensation related to stock options and
restricted stock gran

Other comprehensive incorr

Net income

Derivative financial instrumen

Foreign currency translation adjustm
Total comprehensive incon

Balance at December 31, 201

Common Stock

Accumulated

($.001 par) Additonal Comgrtgﬁénsive Retained
Total
Paid-in Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Equity (Deficit)
(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

24,627,77 25 (18,980 1,07C 18,657 172
(2,095,61) ) (5,357 — — (5,355)
22,40( — 36 — — 36
25,13 — 70 — — 70
23,50( — — — — —

_ — 1,63¢ — — 1,63¢

- - 21 - - 21
— — — — (5,66¢) (5,66¢)

— — — 257 — 257
(5,41))
22,603,19 23 (22,577) 1,327 12,98¢ (8,239
40,24 — 85 — — 85
26,70¢ — 85 — — 85
- - (621) - - (621)

(2,500) — — — — —

— — 1,251 — — 1,251
— — (16) — — (16)
— — — — (290) (290)

— — — 794 — 794

504
22,667,65 23 (21,789 2,121 12,69¢ (6,945
164,43! — 47¢ — — 47¢
27,291 — 151 — — 151
188,99¢ — — — — —
— — 37 — — (37)

(7,500) — — — — —

— — 1,261 — — 1,261

— — — — 6,31 6,31¢
— — — (747) — (747)
— — — (129) — (129)

5,44¢

23,040,88 23 (19,939 1,251 19,01 354

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reeshcprovided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of fixed asse
Impairment of interni-use softwar¢
Loss on extinguishment of de
Call premium on redemption of Senior Discount N¢
Amortization of debt discour
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Non-cash interest expense on Senior Discount N
Write-off of deferred financing cos
Noncash rental expense, net of -cash rental incom
Compensation expense incurred in connection witbkstptions and common stock gra
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax a
Net change in certain operating assets and lisds
(Increase) decrease in deferred membership
Landlord contributions to tenant improveme
(Decrease) increase in insurance rese
Other
Total adjustment
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from 2011 Senior Credit Facility, netrigioal issue discour
Debt issuance cos
Repayment of 2007 Term Loan Facil
Repayment of Senior Discount No
Principal payments on 2011 Term Loan Faci
Proceeds from borrowings on Revolving Loan Fac
Repayment of borrowings on Revolving Loan Faci
Costs related to deferred financi
Repurchase of common sta
Proceeds from stock option exerci:
Tax benefit from stock option exercis
Net cash used in financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents end of pe

Summary of the change in certain operating assetsd liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receiv

(Increase) decrease in inventt

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and athent asset

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrymhses and accrued inter
Change in prepaid corporate income taxes and cat@arcome taxes payat
Increase (decrease) in deferred reve

Net change in certain working capital compong

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IARIES
2011 2010 2009
(All figures in thousands)

$ 6,31F $ (290 $ (5,66¢
51,53¢ 52,20: 56,53:
— 3,25¢ 6,70¢

— — 10,19«
4,86t — —
(2,53¢) — —
244 — —
1,123 1,011 89¢€

— — 1,20¢

— — 10C
(3,66%) (5,55%) (2,499
1,412 1,33¢ 1,704
1,88¢ 8,64: (8,31%)
19,12¢ (8,243 3,26:
(4,187 14t 8,38:
711 10C 4,817
(1,679 (1,119 601
(277) (249) (1,687)
68,57( 51,52¢ 81,90¢
74,88t 51,23¢ 76,24:
(30,907 (22,03%) (49,27)
(30,907 (22,03%) (49,27)
297,00( — —
(8,068) — —
(178,062 (1,850 (1,85()
(138,45() — —
(8,250) — —
— — 86,00(
— — (105,001)

— — (61E

— — (5,35¢

47¢ 85 36

— — 21
(35,349 (1,765 (26,767)
44¢€ 607 15¢
9,077 28,04¢ 35¢
38,80: 10,75¢ 10,39¢
$ 47,88( $ 38,80 $ 10,75¢
$  (59]) $ (95]) $ 22z
(74) 9 (80)
3,49: (2,537) 2,26(
864 (419 2,13t
7,32( (6,01€) 6,89t
8,117 1,66¢ (8,170)

$ 19,12¢ $ (8,249 $ 3,267
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation

As of December 31, 2011, Town Sports Internatidi@tings, Inc. (the “Company” or “TSI Holdings"hiough its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Town Sports International, LLC (“TSL.C"), operated 160 fitness clubs (“clubs”) compds® 108 clubs in the New York
metropolitan market under the “New York Sports Glubrand name, 25 clubs in the Boston market utteefBoston Sports Clubs” brand
name, 18 clubs (two of which are partly-owned)ia Washington, D.C. market under the “WashingtoorSpClubs” brand name, six clubs
in the Philadelphia market under the “Philadel@erts Clubs” brand name and three clubs in Swétadr The Company’s operating
segments are New York Sports Clubs, Boston SpduissCPhiladelphia Sports Clubs, Washington Sgoltbs and Swiss Sports Clubs. The
Company has determined that our operating segrhents similar economic characteristics and meettieria which permit them to be
aggregated into one reportable segment.

Certain reclassifications were made to the repatadunts for the years ended December 31, 201@aoember 31, 2009 to conform
to the presentation for the years ended Decemhe2(@D and 2011.

2. Correction of an Accounting Error

The results for the year ended December 31, 20dada the correction of an accounting error thaulted in an increase in benefit for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefémrdd tax assets in the Company’s consolidatgdrsint of operations and consolidated
balance sheet, respectively. This adjustment it the recognition of an income tax benefit@12 of $343 that relates to calculation of
state net operating loss that arose in the yearceB@cember 31, 2010. The Company does not belage¢his error correction is material to
the current or prior reporting periods.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of TSI Holdings and all whallyned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally receives one-time non-refoledaining fees and monthly dues from its memb&he& Company’s members
have the option to join on a month-to-month basi®a@ommit to a one- or two-year membership. Meigtimonth members can cancel their
membership at any time with 30 days notice. Menhprdues for members who pay annual dues upfrenaanortized on a straighihe basi:
over a 12-month period commencing with the firsnthoof the new member contract. Membership duemifembers who pay monthly are
recognized in the period in which access to thbe @urovided.

Joining fees and related direct and incrementa¢eges of membership acquisition, which includessatenmissions, bonuses and
related taxes and benefits, which are direct aogkmental costs related to the sale of new memipsisire currently deferred and recogni
on a straightine basis, in operations over an estimated merhigeli$e of 29 months. During the year ended Decengii, 2009 the estimat
member life decreased from 30 months to 24 montlesta unfavorable trends in membership retentitesrand therefore considerable
increases in membership attrition rates. Thesesrenimarily resulted from pressures and declinensumer
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

confidence and economic growth. In the seconddfé2D10, the economy began to recover and consoardidence stabilized. The Comp:
began to see improvement in membership retentimhjraJuly 2010 the Company increased its estimatechber life to 27 months where it
remained for the duration of the year. In the ymated December 31, 2011, the economy stabilizedefuand favorable membership
retention rates continued. As a result, the Comsaestimated average membership life increased todiths in July 2011, and to 29 mor
in October 2011. In particular, the membershipnide trend for the Company’s pool of members fbated over the last 15 to 24 months
has increased. The Company will continue to morittition trends on a quarterly basis and adjuistestimated average membership life
accordingly.

The Company tracks the estimated membership lifesificted members separately from regular memhssl the fourth quarter of
2011, there was a lack of sufficient historicaledtt statistically determine an estimated averagmbership life for these restricted members
and therefore the Company was using the same estimaerage membership life for this populatiothas of our regular members. Our
restricted membership base currently includes situgiemberships introduced in April 2010, teachemiperships introduced in April 2011
and first responder memberships introduced in $epte 2011. The Company now believes the estimatechge membership life of a
restricted student member is 24 months using héstiodata from April 2010 through December 31, 200ie Company will continue to
monitor attrition trends of students on a quartbdgis and adjust this estimated average membdifghgzcordingly.

Prior to October 1, 2009, the Company was alsordefpa percentage of salaries and related berpgsitable to membership consulte
over the estimated membership life (See Note 2 +dCtion of Accounting Errors previously disclosadhe Company’s 2010 Annual
Report). Deferred membership costs were $10,11 %8884 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectiVhly amount of costs deferred
does not exceed the related deferred revenuedgrdtiods presented and therefore the decreasddanred joining fee revenue resulted in a
decrease in related deferred membership costs.

Dues that are received in advance are recognizedpoorata basis over the periods in which services@betprovided. Revenues frc
ancillary services, such as personal training sassiare recognized as services are performed.ddmersonal training sessions expire after a
set, disclosed period of time after purchase aadat refundable or redeemable by the member &ir.cehe State of New York has informed
the Company that it is considering whether the Camygs required to remit the amount collected foused, expired personal training
sessions to the State of New York as unclaimedestppAs of December 31, 2011 the Company had appately $12,068 of unused and
expired personal training sessions. We have nogrgzed any revenue from these sessions and hewelesl the amounts as deferred
revenue. The Company does not believe that thesemtsiare subject to the escheatment or abandoopdrpy laws of any jurisdiction,
including the State of New York. However, it is pilide that one of these jurisdictions may not agvitk the Company’s position and may
claim that the Company must remit all or a portddhese amounts to such jurisdiction. For threewfjurisdictions, the Company
concluded, based on opinions from outside coutisal,monies held by a company for unused and eXjpieesonal training sessions are not
escheatable. As a result, the Company removed sippaitely $2,697 from deferred revenue, of whichragjpmately $570 related to expired
sessions that would have been recognized the ypea@deDecember 31, 2010, and recorded such amopetrssnal training revenue in the
fourth quarter of 2010.

The Company charges Core members $9.50 per vigggmon-home clubs at any hour. Prior to Noverib2011, the Company
charged $7.50 per visit. Gold members can elepajothis fee to use non-home clubs during peakshand restricted members can elect to
pay this fee if using a club during peak hours. &w®e related to this fee is recognized immediaelZlub operations revenue on the
consolidated statement of operations. In the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Companymzeaig$2.0 million and $1.7 million
in revenue related to these fees, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Management fees earned for services rendered @gniged at the time the related services are pagd.

When a revenue agreement involves multiple elemsnth as sales of both memberships and serviae®iarrangement or potentially
multiple arrangements, the entire fee from thersyement is allocated to each respective elemeetdbas its relative fair value and
recognized when the revenue recognition critenigeézh element is met.

The Company recognizes revenue from merchandise sabn delivery to the member.

In connection with advance receipts of fees or gdiesCompany was required to maintain bonds twa#i3,590 and $3,540 as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, purdoararious state consumer protection laws.

Advertising and Club Pre-opening Costs

Advertising costs and club papening costs are charged to operations duringehied in which they are incurred, except for prctehn
costs related to television and radio advertisemevhich are expensed when the related commeamrialfrst aired. Total advertising costs
incurred by the Company for the years ended Decethe2011, 2010 and 2009 totaled $5,999, $6,68083664, respectively and are
included in club operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsch have original maturities of three monthdems when acquired to be cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in tidarite sheets for cash and cash equivalents apptexiair value. The Company owns i
operates a captive insurance company in the St&ew York. Under the insurance laws of the StdtNl@w York, this captive insurance
company is required to maintain a cash balance lefat $250. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $2¢2sh related to this wholly-owned
subsidiary was included in cash and cash equivalent

Deferred Lease Liabilities, Non-cash Rental Experessed Additional Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense for leagbssahieduled rent increases and inclusive of remtatessions, on the straight-line
basis over the life of the lease beginning uporctimamencement date of the lease. Rent concesgiomsgrily received in the form of free
rental periods, are also deferred and amortizea stnaight-line basis over the life of the lease.

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeaticmal facilities and certain equipment under-nancelable operating leases. In
addition to base rent, the facility leases genggibvide for additional rent to cover common amegintenance charges incurred and to pass
along increases in real estate taxes. The Compamyes for any unpaid common area maintenance ehany real estate taxes on a club-by-
club basis.

Upon entering into certain leases, the Companyiveseonstruction allowances from the landlord. Seheonstruction allowances are
recorded as deferred lease liability credits oncthresolidated balance sheet when the requirementedse allowances are met as stated i
respective lease and are amortized as a redudti@mioexpense over the term of the lease. Amditimaf deferred construction allowances
were $2,791 and $2,838 as of December 31, 201Dandmber 31, 2010, respectively.
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Certain leases provide for contingent rent basexh @efined formulas of revenue, cash flows or djigaesults for the respective
facilities. These contingent rent payments typicadll for additional rent payments calculated @&ecentage of the respective club’s revenue
or a percentage of revenue in excess of defineakhpeints during a specified year. The Companyna@scgontingent rent expense over the
related contingent rental period at the time tlspeetive contingent targets are probable of beiaty m

Lease termination penalties are recognized usiagitidiscounted cash flow method. In the year efmember 31, 2009, the
Company recorded approximately $1,305 in leaseitetion penalties. The Company did not incur amgéetermination penalties recorde
the years ended December 31, 2011 or 2010.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acots

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due fra@bmpany’s membership base and was $8,297 angd3a;®ecember 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively, before allowance for dadl@€counts. The Company maintains allowancesdobtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of the Company’s memb# make required payments. The Company considetsrs such as: historical
collection experience, the age of the receivablartz® and general economic conditions that maya#fenember’s ability to pay.

Following are the changes in the allowance for dimlilaccounts for the years December 31, 2011, 201D2009:

Balance Beginnin¢

Write -offs Net o' Balance at

of the Year Additions Recoveries End of Year

December 31, 2011 $2,565 $6,698 $(6,823) $2,440
December 31, 201 $2,410 $5,923 $(5,768) $2,565
December 31, 20C $3,001 $6,273 $(6,864) $2,410

Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, headsets for thb ehtertainment system and clothing for sale tmbers. Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market by the first-in, first-omiethod.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadwaight-line basis over the estimated usefetlof the assets, which are 30 years
for building and improvements, five years for ckduipment, furniture, fixtures and computer equiptand three to five years for computer
software. Leasehold improvements are amortized thneshorter of their estimated useful lives orrémaining period of the related lease.
Payroll costs directly related to the constructiorexpansion of the Company’s club base are cégsthlvith leasehold improvements.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are cdameperations as incurred. The cost and relatedraulated depreciation of assets retired
or sold is removed from the respective accountsaaydgain or loss is recognized in operations. ddsts related to developing web
applications, developing web pages and installienpetbped applications on the web servers are dizpitband classified as computer
software. Web site hosting fees and maintenands eos expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets and Debt Issuance Costs

Intangible assets consist of membership lists,netical lease and covenants-not-to-compete. Thesets are stated at cost and are
being amortized by the straight-line method oveirtestimated lives. Membership lists
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are amortized over the estimated membership lif@4do 30 months historically, and covenants-wetdémpete are amortized over the
contractual life, generally one to five years. Demeficial lease is being amortized over the remgitife of the underlying club lease. All
membership lists and the beneficial lease werg authortized as of December 31, 2011.

Debt issuance costs are classified within othestasmd are being amortized as additional intengstnse over the life of the underly
debt, five to ten years, using the interest metlAodortization of debt issue costs was $1,127, $1 &id $896, for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsxd Goodwiill

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iribngssets are reviewed for impairment when evantgcumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Estimatatissounted expected future cash flows are usedtarmiine if an asset is impaired in
which case the asset’s carrying value would beaedto fair value calculated using discounted émsts, which is based on internal budgets
and forecasts through the end of each respectge & he most significant assumptions in those étsdand forecasts relate to estimated
membership and ancillary revenue, attrition raé@sl maintenance capital expenditures, which ammatgd at approximately 3% of total
revenues.

Gooduwill represents the excess of consideratiod peér the fair value of the net identifiable besia assets acquired in the acquisition
of a club or group of clubs. Financial Accountingi®lards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Caaifion (“ASC") 350-20, Intangibles
— Goodwill and Other, requires goodwill to be testedimpairment on an annual basis and betweenalnasts in certain circumstances, and
written down when impaired. The Company’s impairtmeview process compares the fair value of thentam unit in which the goodwill
resides to its carrying value.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proc&gp 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’s reporting units to their
carrying amounts. If the fair value of the repagtimit is greater than its carrying amount, therea impairment. If the reporting unit’s
carrying amount is greater than the fair value ss®ond step must be completed to measure the amifiumpairment, if any. Step 2
calculates the implied fair value of goodwill byddieting the fair value of all tangible and intarigibssets, excluding goodwill, of the
reporting unit from the fair value of the reportingit as determined in Step 1. The implied faiueabf goodwill determined in this step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igaing value of goodwill, an impairment loss
is recognized equal to the difference. The Compgmarforms this analysis annually as of the lastafdyebruary.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for sigmifiexposures as well as those risks required tosoeed by law or contract. The
Company retains a portion of risk internally rethte general liability losses. Where the Compangins risk, provisions are recorded based
upon the Company’s estimates of its ultimate expoar claims. The provisions are estimated usitgaxial analysis based on claims
experience, an estimate of claims incurred butyebteported and other relevant factors. In thisneetion, under the provision of the
deductible agreement related to the payment andnéstration of the Company’s insurance claims, weergquired to maintain irrevocable
letters of credit, totaling $5,000 as of Decemher2)11.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the reported
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amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosu@afingent assets and liabilities at the datdhefinancial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqréiriods. Actual results could differ from th@stimates.

The most significant assumptions and estimateserédethe allocation and fair value ascribed tetsacquired in connection with the
acquisition of clubs under the purchase methodobanting, the useful lives of long-term assetspverability and impairment of fixed and
intangible assets, deferred income tax valuatiaiyation of and expense incurred in connection wfititk options, valuation of interest-rate
swap arrangements, insurance reserves, legal gentires and the average estimated membership life.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of etkathave been included in the
financial statements or tax returns. Under thishoet deferred tax liabilities and assets are detexthon the basis of the difference between
the financial statement and tax basis of assetdianitities (“temporary differences”) at enactek rates in effect for the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse.ldatian allowance is recorded to reduce deferrgassets to the amount that is more likely
than not to be realized. FASB guidance relatecctmanting for uncertain tax positions prescribesagnition threshold and measurement
attribute for a tax position taken or expecteddddken in a tax return and also provides guidamcgerecognition, classification, interest ¢
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The Company recognizes interegipanalties accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expensBdeember 2009, the Company decided that the ctiveilgarnings of the Swiss clubs
could be invested in the United States. Accordingiyaccordance with ASC 740-30, Income TaxesQbmpany has recognized deferred tax
liabilities since 2009 in relation to the U.S. taxan the total cumulative earnings of the Swisbglu

Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash paic

Interest (net of amounts capitalize $28,95: $20,15" $12,797

Income taxe: $ 617 $ 3,311 $ 6,007
Noncash investing and financing activit

Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountgaide and accrued expen $ 1,64 $ 4,392 $ 2,047

See Note 8 for additional noncash financing adts

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income is defirsetthe change in equity of a business enterpriseglarperiod from transactions
and other events and circumstances from non-ovmecss, including changes in the fair value of@eenpany’s derivative financial
instrument and foreign currency translation adjestte. The Company presents accumulated other cbemsizre income in its consolidated
statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit).

The Company uses a derivative financial instrumieniimit exposure to changes in interest ratethe?2011 Term Loan Facility. The
derivative financial instrument is recorded at faifue on the balance sheet and
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changes in the fair value are either recognizextoumulated other comprehensive income (a compafahiareholders’ equity) or net
income depending on the nature of the underlyirmpswre, whether the hedge is formally designatedteesige, and if designated, the extent
to which the hedge is effective. The Company’s\agive financial instrument has been designatesl H30% effective cash flow hedge. See
Note 9— Derivatives for more information on the Compang&k management program and derivatives.

At December 31, 2011, the Company owned three Ssids, which use the Swiss Franc, their localeney, as their functional
currency. Assets and liabilities are translated IBtS. dollars at year-end exchange rates, whilemme and expense items are translated into
U.S. dollars at the average exchange rate foreéhegh For all periods presented foreign exchanggstction gains and losses were not
material. Adjustments resulting from the translatid foreign functional currency financial staterteeimto U.S. dollars are included in the
currency translation adjustment in stockholdersiigg(deficit). The effect of foreign exchange tstation adjustments was ($129), $794 and
$257 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 204 @@®09, respectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consistash and cash equivalents and the
interest rate swap. Although the Company depdsitsaish with more than one financial institutiompdDecember 31, 2011, $29,794 of the
cash balance of $47,880 was held at one finanwiéitution. The Company has not experienced arsesn cash and cash equivalent
accounts to date, and the Company believes the¢dban the credit ratings of these financial instins, it is not exposed to any significant
credit risk related to cash at this time.

The counterparties to the Company'’s interest nagpss a major banking institution with a creditimgs of investment grade or better
and no collateral is required, and there are noifségnt risk concentrations. The Company belietesrisk of incurring losses on derivative
contracts related to credit risk is unlikely.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed bylidiginet income applicable to common stockholdgrihb weighted average numbers
of shares of common stock outstanding during thig@eDiluted earnings per share is computed silyit® basic earnings per share, except
that the denominator is increased for the assumextise of dilutive stock options and unvestedrigtsid stock calculated using the treasury
stock method.

The following table summarizes the weighted avex@gamon shares for basic and diluted earningstmreq“EPS”) computations.

For The Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Weighted average number of common share outstardibgsic 22,828,03 22,634,23 22,720,93
Effect of diluted stock optior 595,76¢ — —
Weighted average number of common shares outsig— diluted 23,423,79 22,634,23 22,720,93
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ (0.0 $ (0.25)
Diluted $ 0.27 $ (0.07) $ (0.25)
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For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ary 2@0did not include options and restricted stasfards totaling 672,589,
2,164,485 and 1,880,798 shares of the Compacynmon stock, respectively, in the calculatiohdiloted EPS because the exercise prict
those options were greater than the average mpiriketand their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008, wees no effect of diluted stock options and retetd common stock on the
calculation of diluted earnings per share as the@my had a net loss for these periods.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaacordance with ASC 718, Compensation — Stock gamsation (“ASC 718!
ASC 718 requires that the cost resulting from ladire-based payment transactions be treated as nsatfmn and recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. We record shased payment awards at fair value on the graetafahe awards, based on the estimated
number of awards that are expected to vest. Thedhie of stock options is determined using thecBiScholes option-pricing model. The
fair value of the restricted stock awards is bazethe closing price of the Company’s common statithe date of the grant.

In December 2007, the SEC issued guidance regatidéingse of a “simplified” method, as discussegdrigvious guidance in developing
an estimate of expected term of “plain vanilla” rghaptions. In particular, the staff indicatedhe previous guidance that it will accept a
company’s election to use the simplified methodardless of whether the company has sufficientrinégion to make more refined estimates
of expected term. At the time this was issued sta believed that more detailed external infoiipragbout employee exercise behavior (¢
employee exercise patterns by industry and/or athergories of companies) would, over time, becoadily available to companies.
Therefore, the staff stated that it would not expecompany to use the simplified method for slugtéon grants after December 31, 2007.
The staff understood that such detailed informasibaut employee exercise behavior may not be wialedylable by December 31, 2007.
Accordingly, the staff would continue to acceptdancertain circumstances, the use of the simglifiethod beyond December 31, 2007.
Company continued to use the simplified methodsfare options and warrants as all options issuex she Company’s Initial Public
Offering (“IPO”) in June of 2006 can be considetplhin vanilla” options and through the year enditember 31, 2011.

The fair value of the awards was determined usindified Black-Scholes methodology using the fwilog weighted average
assumptions:

Expectec
Fair Value
Risk-Free Expectec Expectec Dividend
Interest at Date of
Common Rate Life Volatility Yield Grant
2009 Grant: 2.5% 6 year: 84% — $1.58
2010 Grant: 2.0% 6 year: 81% — $2.03
2011 Grant: 2.6% 6 year: 79% — $2.74

The weighted average expected option term reftbetapplication of the simplified method set outtia FASB ASC 718-10-S99, topic
14 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commi¢&s&C"”), which defines the term as the averagghefcontractual term of the options
and the weighted average vesting period for albopiranches. Expected volatility percentages fangyears 2009, 2010 and 2011 were
based on the daily historical volatility of the Cpamy’s stock price. The risk-free rate for periadthin the contractual life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury implied yield at thetahgrant.
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4. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2009, the FASB issued new accountiidagce related to the revenue recognition of mplaltelement arrangements. The
new guidance states that if vendor specific objectividence or third party evidence for deliverabiean arrangement cannot be determined,
companies will be required to develop a best eséroathe selling price to separate deliverablesallocate arrangement consideration using
the relative selling price method. The accountinglgnce became effective during the first quarfe0d 1. This accounting guidance did not
have a material impact on our financial positiomesults of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB amended its authoritativdagice on the presentation of comprehensive inctinder the amendment, an
entity will have the option to present the totatofmprehensive income, the components of net incamthe components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continaement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmatt consecutive statements. This
amendment, therefore, eliminates the currentlylalvla option to present the components of othergretrensive income as part of the
statement of changes in stockholders’ equity. Theraiment does not change the items that must beteen other comprehensive income
or when an item of other comprehensive income meseclassified to net income. The Company willdbis amended guidance for the
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2012. As this god® relates to presentation only, the adoptighisfguidance will not have any other effect
on the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued updated guidaimeing the use of a qualitative approach to ¢estdwill for impairment. The
updated guidance would permit companies to firsiope a qualitative assessment to determine whétliemore likely than not that the fair
value of one of their reporting units is less tiitarcarrying value. If the Company concludes thét is the case, it is then necessary to per
the currently prescribed two-step goodwill impaimhtest. Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairnist is not required. The updated
guidance is effective for annual and interim godbiwipairment tests performed for fiscal years Ioegig after December 15, 2011 with e:
adoption permitted. The update is not expectedt@ lan impact on the Company’s financial statements

5. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 31, 2011 and 201havensat cost, less accumulated depreciation andtemation and are summarized
below:

December 31,

2011 2010
Leasehold improvements $ 499,90° $ 488,18
Club equipmen 96,01+ 95,95(
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipm 52,09: 48,51(
Computer softwar 15,26: 13,55(
Building and improvement 4,99t 4,99t
Land 98¢ 98¢
Construction in progres 4,792 7,744
674,04t 659,91!

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (388,00 (350,54)

$ 286,04: $ 309,37:

Depreciation and leasehold amortization expensthfoyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2@39$51,491, $52,097 and
$56,271, respectively.
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In February, 2008, the FASB released a statemdimimig fair value, establishing a framework in geadly accepted accounting
principles for measuring fair value and expandirsgldsures about fair value measurements. The atdrestablishes a hierarchy of inputs
employed to determine fair value measurements, thite levels. Level 1 inputs, are quoted pricesctive markets for identical assets and
liabilities, are considered to be the most reliabl@ence of fair value and should be used whenavaitable. Level 2 inputs are observable
prices that are not quoted on active exchange®ll3inputs are unobservable inputs employed faisueng the fair value of assets or
liabilities.

Fixed assets are evaluated for impairment peritidisdnenever events or changes in circumstancdsatel that related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable from undiscountsk flaws in accordance with FASB released guidamhe.Company’s long-lived assets
and liabilities are grouped at the individual clateel which is the lowest level for which therddentifiable cash flow. To the extent that
estimated future undiscounted net cash flows atfaitle to the assets are less than the carryingiastinan impairment charge equal to the
difference between the carrying value of such amseétits fair value, calculated using discounteshdéows, is recognized. In the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company tested 18 underpenig clubs and no impairments were found. TheltiBshad an aggregate of $30,604
of net leasehold improvements and furniture antlifes remaining as of December 31, 2011. The Coyneated 18 clubs during the year
ended December 31, 2011, and as memberships amdgsacontinued to improve across the Companyntmaber of clubs requiring testing
declined during the year with six clubs being tdstethe quarter ended December 31, 2011. The Coynpdl continue to monitor the results
and changes in expectations of these clubs clas¢he year ending December 31, 2012 to deternfifieeld asset impairment is necessary
the year ended December 31, 2010, the Companydettar total of $1,570 of impairment charges atetiotabs.

In addition, in the year ended December 31, 2di®company recorded impairment charges of $1,88teckto the planned closure ¢
club prior to its lease expiration date.

In 2008, the Company entered into an agreementawtbndor to develop a new enterprise manageméntase system, GIMS which
was planned to be implemented in 2010. The Compadycapitalized $10,194 for costs incurred relédethis project in accordance with
ASC 350-40, Internal-Use Software. In Septembe©2€@e Company commenced litigation against thiglee, alleging, among other things,
breach of contract. In connection with this litigat development of this software project ceaseathdithe third quarter of 2009. It was
determined that it was not probable that the Compasuld continue with the development of this s@fte: As a result, in accordance with
ASC 350-40, the Company impaired the balance optbgect as of December 31, 2009 of $10,194 torfdied fair value of zero.

The fair values of fixed assets evaluated for impant were calculated using Level 3 inputs usirsgalinted cash flows, which are
based on internal budgets and forecasts througérttief each respective lease. The most signifiessimptions in those budgets and
forecasts relate to estimated membership and anciévenue, attrition rates, and maintenance @agipenditures, which are estimated at
approximately 3% of total revenues.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudéraames: New York Sports Clubs
(“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washingtop@ts Clubs (“WSC") and Philadelphia Sports CIul3SC"), with certain more
remote clubs that do not benefit from a regionasidr being considered single reporting units (GuClubs”) and our three clubs located in
Switzerland being considered a single reporting (I8ISC”). The Company has one Outlier Club with goodwill. &December 31, 2011, t
BSC, WSC and PSC regions do not have goodwill loaln
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As of February, 28 2011 and 2010, the Company paed its annual impairment test. The February B812and 2010 impairment te
supported the recorded goodwill balances and dssoiémpairment of goodwill was required. The véilom of reporting units requires
assumptions and estimates of many critical factochiding revenue and market growth, operatindidlsvs and discount rates.

Fair value was determined by using a weighted coatlin of two market-based approaches (weighted 8€h) and an income
approach (weighted 50%), as this combination wasngel to be the most indicative of the Companyisvaiue in an orderly transaction
between market participants. Under the market-bappdoaches, the Company utilized information reig@rthe Company, the Company’s
industry as well as publicly available industrydmhation to determine earnings multiples and salekiples that are used to value the
Company’s reporting units. Under the income appnptite Company determined fair value based on astinfuture cash flows of each
reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weiglategrage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdeakl of inherent risk of a reporting unit
and the rate of return an outside investor woulakekto earn. Determining the fair value of a réipgrunit is judgmental in nature and
requires the use of significant estimates and agsans, including revenue growth rates and opegatiargins, discount rates and future
market conditions, among others.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculations described above relategioomdwill impairment testing, the
Company made the following assumptions. The Comawgloped longange financial forecasts (five years or longer)dibreporting units
The Company used discount rates ranging betwed/dand 18.2%, compounded annual revenue growthingufigm (0.7%) to 5.4% and
terminal growth rates ranging between 1% and 3%s&tassumptions are calculated separately forrepohting unit.

If the Company’s assumptions regarding forecastgdrue or margin growth rates of certain reportinigs are not achieved, the
Company may be required to record additional gobdmvpairment charges in future periods, whethecannection with the Company’s next
annual impairment testing as of February 29, 201sibsequent to that, if any such change constituteiggering event outside the quarter
when the annual goodwill impairment test is perfedmlt is not possible at this time to determinan§ such future impairment charge would
result. There were no events triggering a reviegaafdwill as of December 31, 2011. The February2P8,1 impairment tests supported the
recorded goodwill balances and as such no impatrofegoodwill was required. As of February 28, 20ttle estimated fair value of NYSC
was 49% greater than book value and the estimateddlue of SSC was 79% greater than book value.
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill fréemuary 1, 2010 through December 31, 2011 ardetkta the charts below.

NYSC BSC SSC Outlier Clubs Total
Balance as of January 1, 2010
Goodwill $31,40: $ 15,76¢ $1,09¢ $ 3,98 $ 52,247
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,766) — (3,84%) (19,619
31,40: — 1,09¢ 137 32,63¢
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rateugtioins — 15¢€ — 15¢
Balance as of December 31, 2010
Goodwill 31,40: 15,76¢ 1,25¢ 3,98: 52,40t
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,766) — (3,845 (19,619
31,40: — 1,254 137 32,79:
Balance as of December 31, 20:
Goodwill 31,40: 15,76¢ 1,25¢ 3,98: 52,40t
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,76¢6) — (3,845 (19,617
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rateugtioins — — 5 — 5
$31,40: $ — $1,25¢ $ 137 $ 32,79¢

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2@18s follows:

As of December 31, 2011

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Covenants-not-to-compete $1,50¢ $ (1,509 $ =
As of December 31, 2010
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Covenants-not-to-compete $1,50¢ $ (1,469 $ 44

Amortization expense of intangible assets for tharg ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 wa$$@38 and $262, respectively.
F-18



Table of Contents

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

7. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2011 and 20Hdsted of the following:

December 31,

2011 2010
Accrued payroll $ 9,77: $ 8,95-
Accrued construction in progress and equipn 1,471 4,18¢
Accrued occupancy cos 5,65¢€ 4,76¢€
Accrued insurance clain 3,67% 3,371
Accrued othe 6,002 6,20(

$26,57¢ $27,47:

8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2018isted of the following:

December 31,

2011 2010
2011 Term Loan Facility $291,75( $ —
2007 Term Loan Facilit — 178,06:
Senior Discount Note — 138,45(
291,75( 316,51:
Less: Unamortized discou (2,75€) —
Less: Current portion due within one yi (25,507 (14,55()
Long-term portion $263,48° $301,96.
The aggregate long-term debt obligations maturingng the next five years and thereafter are devia!:
Amount Due
Year Ending December 31,
2012 $ 25,50°
2013 3,00(
2014 3,00(
2015 3,00(
2016 3,00(
Thereafte 254,24
$ 291,75(

2011 Senior Credit Facility

On May 11, 2011, TSI, LLC entered into a $350,080iar secured credit facility (“2011 Senior Crefcility”). The 2011 Senior
Credit Facility consists of a $300,000 term loacilfiy (“2011 Term Loan Facility”), and a $50,008volving loan facility (“2011 Revolving
Loan Facility”). The 2011 Term Loan Facility wasued at an original issue discount (“OID”) of 1.0%$3,000. The proceeds were used to
pay off amounts outstanding under the 2007 SeniediCFacility, to pay the redemption price for a@lthe Company’s outstanding 11%
senior discount notes due in 2014 (the “Senior @ist Notes”), and to pay related fees and expehsmse of
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the revolving facility was drawn upon as of thesitg date, but loans under the 2011 Revolving Leacility may be drawn from time to tir
pursuant to the terms of the 2011 Senior CredilliBacThe 2011 Term Loan Facility matures on Mal, 2018, and the 2011 Revolving Loan
Facility matures on May 11, 2016. The borrowingdemhe 2011 Senior Credit Facility are guaranta®tisecured by assets and pledges of
capital stock by the Company, TSI, LLC and the Wwholvned domestic subsidiaries of TSI, LLC.

The $3,000 OID is recorded as a contra-liability.tmg-Term debt on the accompanying consolidatéanioa sheet as of December 31,
2011, and is being amortized as interest experiag tie effective interest method. The unamortizaldnce of the OID as of December 31,
2011 is $2,756.

As of December 31, 2011, there were no outstan2lrid Revolving Loan Facility borrowings and outstiaig letters of credit issued
totaled $9,587. The unutilized portion of the 2®evolving Loan Facility as of December 31, 2011 %48,413.

Borrowings under the 2011 Term Loan Facility, at,TT$C’s option, bear interest at either the adrsirative agent’s base rate plus
4.5% or its Eurodollar rate plus 5.5%, each asneéefin the 2011 Senior Credit Facility. The Eur¢atoRate has a floor of 1.50% and the &
rate a floor of 2.50% with respect to the outstagdierm Loans. As of December 31, 2011, the inteeds was 7.0%. TSI, LLC is required
pay 0.25% of principal, or $750 per quarter andai@principal of $750 on December 31, 2011 accalginf, as of the last day of any fiscal
quarter of TSI Holdings (commencing with the fisqakrter ending September 30, 2011), the totatégeeratio is greater than 2.75:1.00, -
LLC is required to pay $3,750, or 1.25% of printipar quarter. As of December 31, 2011, TSI, LL@ haotal leverage ratio of 3.07:1.00
and TSI, LLC will be required to make a principayment of $3,750 on March 31, 2012. As of Decenddei2011, the Company had paid
$8,250 of the outstanding principal on the 201InTeban Facility.

The terms of the 2011 Senior Credit Facility pravidr financial covenants which require TSI, LLOaintain a total leverage ratio, as
defined, of no greater than 4.75:1.00 as of Decer@bgeg2011, with a step-down of 0.25 in the quaetaling March 31, 2012, arriving at a
total leverage ratio requirement of 4.50:1.00 ssleffective March 31, 2012 and thereafter; anmésteexpense coverage ratio of no less than
2.00:1.00; and a covenant that limits capital exitenes to $40,000 for the four quarters endingng quarter during which the total leverage
ratio is greater than 3.00:1.00 and to $50,00@Herfour quarters ending in any quarter during Whke ratio is less than or equal to 3.00 to
1.00 but greater than 2.50:1.00. This covenant doefmit capital expenditures if the ratio issaban or equal to 2.50:1.00. TSI, LLC was in
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(@®Il, with a total leverage ratio of 3.07:1.00 andreeerest coverage ratio of 3.80:1.00.

TSI, LLC may prepay the 2011 Term Loan Facility 28d1 Revolving Loan Facility without premium omadty in accordance with tl
2011 Senior Credit Facility, except that a prepaynpeemium of 2.0% is payable prior to May 11, 2@t® a prepayment premium of 1.0%
is payable from May 11, 2012 to May 11, 2013. Maadaprepayments are required in certain circuntamelating to cash flow in exces:
certain expenditures, asset sales, insurance ngcawd incurrence of certain other debt. The 2044i@& Credit Facility contains provisions
that require excess cash flow payments, as definte 2011 Senior Credit Facility, to be applig@iast outstanding 2011 Term Loan
Facility balances. The excess cash flow is caledlas of December 31 and paid on March 31. Thacaié excess cash flow repayment
percentage is applied to the excess cash flow whtarmining the excess cash flow payment. Earnictgages in working capital and cap
expenditure levels all impact the determinatiommy excess cash flows. The applicable excess tashdpayment percentage is 75% when
the total leverage ratio, as defined in the 201di@eCredit Facility, exceeds 3.00:1.00; 50% whigs tbtal leverage ratio is greater than
2.50:1.00 but less than or equal to 3.00:1.00; 25%
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when the total leverage ratio is greater than 2.00:but less than or equal to 2.50:1.00 and 0%nwihe total leverage ratio is less than or
equal to 2.00:1.00. The calculation was performedfdDecember 31, 2011 and as a result a prinpgyahent of $16,507 will be made with
cash on hand on March 31, 2012. As of Decembe2®11, the 2011 Term Loan Facility has a balanck288,994, net of the unamortized
OID.

Debt issuance costs related to the 2011 SenioritCradility were $8,065, of which, $7,288 is bemgortized as interest expense, and
are included in “Other assets” in the accompanipialance sheets. Unamortized loan costs of $1,3&f&deto the 2007 Senior Credit Facility
and the Senior Discount Notes and $777 of costédelto the 2011 Senior Credit Facility were wnittdf in the three months ended June 30,
2011 and are included in “Loss on extinguishmerdeaift” in the accompanying statements of operations

Repayment of 2007 Senior Credit Facility

Contemporaneously with entry into the 2011 Seni@d@ Facility, TSI, LLC repaid the outstandingrpripal amount of the 2007 Term
Loan Facility of $164,001. The 2007 Term Loan Rgcivas set to expire on the earlier of FebruaryZi4, or August 1, 2013, if the Senior
Discount Notes were still outstanding. There wey@utstanding amounts under the 2007 Revolving Lkeaility as of this date. The 2007
Term Loan Facility was repaid at face value plusaed and unpaid interest of $447 and fees retatéluke letters of credit of $27. The total
cash paid in connection with this repayment wasi$léb as of May 11, 2011 with no early repaymemnigitg. The Company determined that
the 2011 Senior Credit Facility was not substalytidifferent than the 2007 Senior Credit Facility tertain lenders based on the less than
10% difference in cash flows of the respective diektruments. A portion of the transaction was ¢fiae accounted for as a modification of
the 2007 Senior Credit Facility and a portion wesoainted for as an extinguishment. In the threethzoended June 30, 2011, the Company
recorded refinancing charges of approximately $68dresenting the write-off of the remaining unatized debt costs related to the 2007
Senior Credit Facility, which is included in loss extinguishment of debt in the accompanying cadat#d statements of operations.

Redemption of Senior Discount Notes

A portion of the proceeds from the 2011 Senior @redcility were also used to pay the remainingngipal amount on the Senior
Discount Notes of $138,450 plus a call premium.883% of the principal amount thereof totaling apgmately $2,538 and accrued interest
of $5,457. The accrued interest included intelestigh May 11, 2011 of $4,188, plus 30 days of @mitl interest of $1,269, representing
the interest charge during the 30 day notificaperiod. The Company determined that the 2011 S&riedit Facility was substantially
different than the Senior Discount Notes. In the¢hmonths ended June 30, 2011, the Company wfbteamortized deferred financing
costs of approximately $916 related to the redemnpdif the Senior Discount Notes, which is includtetloss on extinguishment of debt” in
the accompanying consolidated statements of opesati

Fair Market Value

Based on quoted market prices, the 2011 SenioritGradility had a fair value of approximately $2883 at December 31, 2011. The
Senior Discount Notes and the 2007 Term Loan Fatikd a fair value of approximately $137,066 ah@8270, respectively at
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2011 and,2B&fe was no outstanding 2011 Revolving Loanlféaor 2007 Revolving Loan
Facility borrowings.

In July 2011, we entered into an interest rate sagapement effectively converting the variable mtéhalf of our long-term borrowings to a
three-year fixed rate. See Note 9 — Derivative Rai@ Instruments.
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Interest Expense

The Company’s interest expense and capitalizeddsteelated to funds borrowed to finance clublitées under construction for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 wdod@ws:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Interest costs expensed $24,27¢ $21,15¢ $20,97:
Interest costs capitaliz¢ 17¢€ 16 73
Total interest expense and amounts capital $24,45( $21,17¢ $21,04¢

9. Derivative Financial Instruments

In its normal operations, the Company is exposadddket risks relating to fluctuations in interesties. In order to minimize the
negative impact of such fluctuations on the comfmogsh flows the Company may enter into derivatinancial instruments (“derivatives”),
such as interest-rate swaps. Any instruments aremntered into for trading purposes and the Compauty uses commonly traded
instruments. Currently, the Company only enters ddrivatives relating to the variability of cadbvf from interest rate fluctuations.

When a derivative is executed and hedge accouistiagpropriate, it is designated as a cash flovgaebhterest rate swaps are
designated as cash flow hedges for accounting gagpsince they are being used to transform variat#deest rate exposure to fixed interest
rate exposure on a recognized liability (debt).aDrongoing basis, the Company assesses the hddgavehess of all derivatives designated
as hedges for accounting purposes to determiheyf¢ontinue to be highly effective in offsettinganges in cash flows of the underlying
hedged items. If it is determined that the hedgetshighly effective, then hedge accounting wéldiscontinued prospectively.

On July 1, 2011, the Company entered into an isteate swap arrangement which effectively conge#E50,000, of its variable-rate
debt based on a one-month Eurodollar rate to a fiate of 1.983%, or a total fixed rate of 7.483#bthis $150,000 when including the
applicable 5.50% margin. This swap matures on I18/)2014. As permitted by ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingthe Company has
designated this swap as a cash flow hedge, thetefi¢ which have been reflected in the Compangissolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2011. The tlgeaf this hedge is to manage the variabilitcash flows in the interest payments
related to the portion of the variable-rate delsigleated as being hedged.

Accounting guidance on fair value measurementsigea hierarchy of valuation techniques basedvbather the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobserv@iilservable inputs reflect market data obtainedhfindependent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptidhsse two types of inputs create the following ¥ailue hierarchy:

» Level 1— Quoted prices faidenticalinstruments in active marke:

» Level 2 — Quoted prices faimilar instruments in active markets; quoted prices fentital or similar instruments in markets that
are not active; and model-derived valuations incltall significant inputs and significant valuewdnis are observable in active
markets.

» Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techreg in which one or more significant inputs or gigant value drivers are
unobservabl.

This hierarchy requires us to use observable mai&tet, when available, and to minimize the usenobgervable inputs when
determining fair value.
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The fair value for the Company’s interest rate swgagietermined using observable current marketinéion such as the prevailing
Eurodollar interest rate and Eurodollar yield curaees and include consideration of counterpamygitrisk. The following table presents the
aggregate fair value of the Company’s derivativaricial instruments:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
Observable Unobservable
for Identical
Total Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Interest rate swap liability as of December 31,2201 $ 1,342 $ — $ 1,34C $ —

No ineffectiveness was experienced in the aboveehoash flow hedge during the year ended Decenth@@@ 1. The swap contract
liability of $1,342 was recorded as a componerttbér liabilities with the offset to accumulatedthet comprehensive income ($741, net of
taxes) on the accompanying consolidated balance siseof December 31, 2011.

The Company does not expect that any derivativeelcluded in accumulated other comprehensiveriacat December 31, 2011 v
be reclassified into earnings within the next 1hths.

10. Leases

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeaticmal facilities and certain equipment under-nancelable operating leases. In
addition to base rent, the facility leases genggibvide for additional rent based on operatirguhes, increases in real estate taxes and other
costs. Certain leases provide for additional reseld upon defined formulas of revenue, cash floaperating results of the respective
facilities. Under the provisions of certain of thdsases, the Company is required to maintainooable letters of credit, which amounted to
$2,187 as of December 31, 2011.

The leases expire at various times through Nover®0e2029 and certain leases may be extended &dimpany’s option. Escalation
terms on these leases generally include fixedescdlations, escalations based on an inflatiorxisdeh as CPI, and fair market value
adjustments. In the next five years, or the pefioth January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2016Ctrapany has leases for 10 club
locations that are due to expire without any refi@ptons, three of which will expire in 2012, a#8 club locations that are up for renewal
option consideration.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compaayded early lease termination costs of $1,305edlto five club closures prior to
their lease expiration dates. There were no eadyd termination costs in the years ended Dece3db@011 or 2010.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelapdeating leases are as follows:
Minimum

Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31,

2012 $ 83,38¢
2013 81,11¢
2014 78,507
2015 75,231
2016 69,98¢
Aggregate thereafte 331,23(
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Rent expense, including the effect of deferredddibilities, for the years ended December 31,12@010 and 2009 was $112,055,
$111,150 and $109,209, respectively. Such amoooksde non-base rent items of $20,788, $20,86%20¢459, respectively.

The Company, as landlord, leases space to thitg fErants under nocancelable operating leases and licenses. In addidibase ren
certain leases provide for additional rent basethoreases in real estate taxes, indexation,iesilind defined amounts based on the opel
results of the lessee. The leases expire at vatimes through March 31, 2028. Future minimum risntaceivable under noncancelable lei
are as follows:

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31,

2012 $ 3,74¢
2013 2,55¢
2014 2,29¢
2015 2,24¢
2016 2,097
Aggregate thereaftt 25,91«

Rental income, including non-cash rental incomettie years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and\288%4,612, $4,718 and
$4,740, respectively. Such amounts include additicental charges above the base rent of $488, 86d4474, respectively. We own the
building at one of our club locations which houaeental tenant that generated $1,968, $1,968 &/8¥® of rental income for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respsactivel

11. Stockholders Equity (Deficit)
a. Capitalization

The Company'’s certificate of incorporation adoptedonnection with the IPO provides for 105,000,80ares of capital stock,
consisting of 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stpekyalue $0.001 per share (the “Preferred Stomht) 100,000,000 shares of Common
Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Commonk3toc

b. Common Stock Options

Grants vest in full at various dates between Jura®10 and November 1, 2014. The vesting of cegeamts will be accelerated in the
event that certain defined events occur includieggale of the Company. The term of each grargneiglly ten years.

As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, a tota|180,004, 908,857 and 719,923 Common Stock opti@ne exercisable,
respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had 89,320 &1P1386 stock options outstanding under its 2004lSOption Plan and 2006
Stock Incentive Plan, respectively. The total conga¢ion expense related to options, classifiedimjpayroll and related on the consolidated
statements of income, related to these plans wd2%$1$1,220 and $1,562 for the years ended Dece®ih@011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and the related tax benefit was $8581 and $670 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, as ameadddestated (the “2006 Plan”), authorizes the gamy to issue up to 3,000,000
shares of Common Stock to employees, non-employeetdrs and consultants pursuant to awards oksiptions, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, in payment of performance sharegher stock-based awards. An amendment to t86 Pan to increase the aggregate
number of shares issuable under the plan by 50&Bakks to 3,000,000 shares was unanimously adbptée Board of Directors on
March 1, 2011, and approved by stockholders aAthreial Meeting of Stockholders on May 12, 2011. &inithe 2006 Plan, stock options
must be granted at a price not less than the faiket value of the stock on the date the optiagramted, generally are not subject to re-
pricing, and will not be exercisable more thanyears after the date of grant. As of December 8112there were 613,988 shares available
to be issued under the 2006 Plan.

The following table summarizes the stock optionvitgtfor the years ended December 31, 2009, 201D2011:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Common Price

Balance at January 1, 2009 1,881,56I $ 8.3¢
Granted 759,25( 2.17
Exercisec (22,400 1.61
Cancellec (75,440 11.3¢
Forfeited (259,29) 8.97
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,283,67. 6.27
Granted 429,50( 2.8¢
Exercisec (40,249 2.12
Cancellec (236,189 10.62
Forfeited (196,489 6.24
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,240,25 5.2C
Granted 7,50( 4.1¢€
Exercisec (164,435 2.91
Cancellec (15,039 11.4(
Forfeited (59,589 2.5¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,008,70I $ 5.4C

F-25



Table of Contents

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table summarizes stock option infotima as of December 31, 2011:

Options Outstanding

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Qutstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
Common

2003 grant: 4,48( 22 month $ 10.2¢ 4,48( $ 10.2¢
2004 amended and repriced 2003 gr: 41,72( 19 months 6.54 33,18( 6.54
2005 grant: 26,32( 40 months 6.54 9,10( 6.54
2006 grant: 207,00( 50 months 11.72 188,80( 12.11
2007 grant: 141,50( 67 months 17.9( 141,50( 17.9(
2008 grant: 564,87- 80 months 5.07 413,000 5.1€
2009 grant: 586,81. 95 months 2.17 278,31. 2.1¢
2010 grant: 428,50( 104 month 2.8¢ 111,62! 2.8¢
2011 grant: 7,50( 109 month 4.1¢ — —
Total Grants 2,008,70! 84 months $ 5.4C 1,180,00. $ 6.9t

Options granted during the year ended Decembe2(®l], to employees of the Company and members c@dinepany’s Board of
Directors were as follows:

Free Expectec
Number Black- Date Interest
of Exercise Scholes Aggregate Amount Dividend Term
Date Options Price Valuation Fair Value Expensed Volatility Yield Rate (Years)
February 1
2011 7,50(C $4.1¢ $2.7¢ $21 $4.7 79.17% —% 2.6(% 6.2¢

Options granted under the 2004 Stock Option Plareigdly qualify as “incentive stock options” undke U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
Options granted under the 2006 Stock Option Planeiglly qualify as “non-qualified stock optiongider the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
The exercise price of a stock option is generailyat to the fair market value of the Company’s CamrfStock on the option grant date.

The fair value of share-based payment awards wasatsd using the Black-Scholes option pricing madéh the following weighted
average fair values as follows as of December G112

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Average Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Term Value
Shares Price (years) (thousands
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,008,70i $ 5.4C 7.C $ 6,66(
Vested at December 31, 20 1,180,00. $ 6.9t 6.5 $ 3,13¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,180,00. $ 6.9t 6.5 $ 3,13¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pttex intrinsic value (the difference between thénested fair value
of the Company’s common stock and the exercise pniwltiplied by the number of in-the-money optiptisat would have been received by
the option holders had all option holders
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exercised their options on December 31, 2011. fitmmsic value is based on the fair market valuthefCompany’s stock and therefore

changes as the fair market value of the stock mhemges. The total intrinsic value of options ejsed was $660 for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, a total of $697 unrecaghmmpensation cost related to stock optionspee&rd to be recognized,
depending upon the likelihood that acceleratedivgsargets are met in future periods, over a weidtaverage period of 2.3 years.

c. Common Stock Grants
Restricted Stock Grants
The following restricted stock grants were issuedrnployees of the Company in the year ended Deeeg1h 2011.

Number of Exercise Grant Date

Date Shares Price Fair Value
March 1, 2011 64,00( $ 4.57 $ 292
October 31, 201 124,99¢ $ 8.6¢ 1,08¢
Total 188,99¢ $ 1,37

The total compensation expense, classified withiyrgll and related on the consolidated statemeperations, related to restricted
stock grants was $138 and $31 for the years enéedrBber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and thedstax benefit was $52 and $13 for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, rasgecThe shares contain vesting restrictions eest 25% per year over four years or
anniversary date of the grants. There were noictsdrstock grants issued in the years ended Dese&ih 2010 or 2009.

The total unrecognized compensation expense oB3lslexpected to be recognized through OctobeRG15.

Non-Restricted Stock Grants

For each of the quarters ended March 31, 2011, 3002011, September 30, 2011 and December 31, #84 Company issued non-
restricted common stock grants to the Company’sdo&Directors. The total fair value of the shaiestied was expensed upon the grant
dates. Total shares issued were:

Number of Exercise Grant Date

Date Shares Price Fair Value
January 19, 2011 10,83¢ $ 4.1¢ $ 45
March 25, 201: 5,342 $ 4.6¢ 25
June 24, 201 3,71« $ 7.0C 26
September 26, 201 3,61¢ $ 7.6C 27
December 23, 201 3,78¢ $ 7.2¢ 28
Total 27,29, $ 151

d. Common Stock Repurchases

On April 29, 2008, the Board of Directors approweeplan to repurchase up to an aggregate of $2%000mmon Stock. The
repurchase program continued through December@®IB.Z'he Company did not repurchase Common Stockglthe years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

F-27



Table of Contents

12.

(1)
(2)

13.

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coyngourchased 2,095,613 shares of common stock@dtaf $5,355.

Revenue from Club Operations
Revenues from club operations for the years endmmtidber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are summarizedbelo

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Membership dues $364,53t $363,42! $387,12:
Joining fee: 6,82¢ 6,967 12,04¢
Personal training revent 62,39 60,87¢ 56,97
Other club ancillary revenue( 28,29" 26,35t 24,58¢
Total club revenu 462,05: 457,62t 480,73:
Fees and other revenue 4,89( 4,761 4,661
Total revenue $466,94: $462,38° $485,39.
Other club ancillary revenue primarily consistsSofiall Group Training, Sports Clubs for Kids andgwet sports
Fees and other revenue primarily consists of rent@me, marketing revenue and management
Corporate Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thageended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 cahsistke following:
Year Ended December 31, 2011
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $ — $ 541 $ 187 $ 72¢
Deferred 2,34¢ — (377) 1,971
$ 2,34¢ $ 541 $ (190 $ 2,69¢
Year Ended December 31, 2010
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $(7,81¢ $ 17¢ $ (479 $(8,119)
Deferred 8,53¢ 1 (562) 7,97¢
$ 717 $ 18C $(1,04)) $ (149
Year Ended December 31, 2009
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $2,17¢ $ 192 $ 144 $ 2,51t
Deferred (4,579 — (3,740 8,31t
$(2,39)) $ 192 $(3,596) $(5,800)
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The components of deferred tax assets, net carfdisé following items:

December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset:

Deferred lease liabilitie $14,59: $14,56¢
Deferred revenu 10,93% 8,36¢
Deferred compensation expense incurred in conrrestith stock option: 2,211 1,76
Federal and state net operating loss «forwards 28,39¢t 4,87¢
Interest accretio — 27,22¢
Accruals, reserves and ott 7,10¢ 6,00~

$63,24: $62,80¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets and intangible as $18,70" $16,62"
Deferred cost 4,35: 2,56:
Undistributed foreign earnings and otl 10C 1,29(

$23,16( $20,48(
Gross deferred tax ass 40,08: 42,32¢
Valuation allowanct (82 (44%)
Deferred tax assets, r $40,00( $41,88:

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has net @eféax assets of $40,000. Quarterly, the Compasssass the weight of all positive and
negative evidence to determine whether the netridef¢ax asset is realizable. In 2011, the Compatwyned to profitability while in 2010

and 2009, the Company incurred losses. The Comgegpscts to be profitable in 2012 and beyond. The@my has historically been a
taxpayer and projects that it will be in a threaryeumulative income position, excluding non-reitiitems, as of December 31, 2012. In
addition, the Company, based on recent trendsegiojmproved performance and future income sefficio realize the deferred tax assets
during the periods when the temporary tax dedwtiifferences reverse. The Company has federastael net operating loss carry-forwards
which the Company believes will be realized witthie available carry-forward period, except for abrstate net operating loss cafgrward

in Rhode Island due to the short carry-forwardqubin that state. Accordingly, the Company conctuthet it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets will be realized. If actualiitesdo not meet the Company’s forecasts and thepg@ay incurs losses in 2012 and beyond, a
valuation allowance against the deferred tax assatsbe required in the future. In addition, witle e£xception of the deductions related tc
Company’s captive insurance for state taxes, t@alglome has been and is projected to be the safiegl@ral. Because the captive insurance
company will be discontinued, the assessment dikzedmlity of the state deferred tax assets is @iaat with the federal tax analysis above.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a fedetalperating loss carry-forward of $54,914. Punst@ ASC 718-740-25-10, the
Company has not recorded the tax benefit and celigéerred tax asset for the windfall portion afcét compensation tax deductions that
either create a net operating loss carry-forwardenease a net operating loss carry-forward. Ahsthe amount of net operating loss carry-
forwards for which a tax benefit would be recorde@dditional paid-in capital when the tax benefitealized is approximately $450 as of
December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, Federal wage credit camyards of $3,159, pre-apportioned state net djpgrdoss carry-forwards of
$467,325 and post-apportioned state net operaisgydarry-forwards of $37,072. Such
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amounts expire between December 31, 2014 and Dexeditb2031. The Company has concluded that ibierikely than not that the net
deferred tax asset balance as of December 31,®illlde realized with the exception of the aforerie@med Rhode Island net operating loss.

The Company’s foreign pre-tax earnings relatediéoSwiss entity were $910, $767 and $829 for tleesyended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively and the related cuteemnprovisions were $541, $179 and $193, respelgtiin 2011, the Company repatriated
Swiss earnings through 2010. In connection with tividend, the Company will be entitled to clairfoeeign tax credit of $1,769 for federal
income tax purposes which, due to the current getioperating loss carfprward is reflected as a deferred tax asset. to@ance with ASt
740-30, the Company had recognized a deferredahitity of $776 for the United States taxes on thial cumulative earnings of the Swiss
clubs for the period 2010 and prior. That defeteedliability was utilized and a new deferred tabllity of $100 has been recognized on the
total cumulative earnings on the Swiss clubs ferythars after 2010.

The results for the year ended December 31, 20dada the correction of an accounting error thatlted in an increase in benefit for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefémrdd tax assets in the Company’s consolidatedrstent of operations and consolidated
balance sheet, respectively. In the fourth quarft@011, the Company identified that the valuatidiowance that was created for the Rhode
Island net operating loss as of December 31, 2@ @at include the effect of federal tax benefit$56. Also, the Company’deferred taxe
associated for New York State MTA taxes was adflstehe current year to properly include the effeaf New York State and New York
City income taxes and this amounted to a $187. fhegethese two items created an income tax benie$i843. This adjustment resulted in
the recognition of an income tax benefit in 2015843 that relates to the calculation of federmalienefits from state net operating losses
arose in the year 2010. The Company does not leetieat this error correction is material to therent or prior reporting periods.

The differences between the United States Fedetaltsry income tax rate and the Company’s effectax rate were as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and :

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 200¢
Federal statutory tax rate 35% (35)% (35)%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefie 8 9) 9)
Change in state effective income tax 1 4 11¢€ 2
State tax benefit related to insurance premi (12) (310 (11)
State tax valuation allowan — 10C —
Correction of an errc 4) 80 —
Foreign rate differentic — — Q)
Provision for undistributed earnings of 1-U.S. subsidiarie — — 6
Other permanent differenc ) 23 1

_30% 3d%  (5)%

The 2011 effective tax rate of 30% on our pre-teooime was less than the United States federaletatincome tax rate primarily due
to the state tax benefit related to insurance pramsiand interest paid to the captive insurance eomp

The 2010 effective tax rate benefit of 33% on awr-fax loss was higher than the United States & datutory income tax rate
primarily due to the State tax benefit relatedngurance premiums and interest paid to the captstgance company.
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The 2009 effective tax rate benefit of 51% on a@rfax loss was higher than the United States &dgatutory income tax rate
primarily due to the State tax benefit relatedngurance premiums and interest paid to the captstgance company.

As of December 31, 2011, $751 represented the anodumrecognized tax benefits that, if recogniaeduld affect the Company’s
effective tax rate in any future periods. For eatthe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and Bfiefest expense on unrecognized tax
benefits was $53. The Company recognizes bothesterccrued related to unrecognized tax benefitpanalties in income tax expenses.
The Company had accruals for interest or penaest December 31, 2011 and 2010 of $249 and $&Sp@ectively. In 2012, $751 of
unrecognized tax benefits could be realized byQbmpany since the income tax returns may no lohgeubject to audit during 2012.

The Company files federal income tax returns, aifpr jurisdiction return and multiple state anddlgarisdiction tax returns. The
Company is no longer subject to examinations diiteral income tax returns by the Internal Reve®emvice for years 2009 and prior.

The following state and local jurisdictions areremtly examining the Company’s respective retuonghie years indicated: New York
State (2006, 2007), and New York City (2006, 208X8). The Company has not been notified of angiffigs regarding any of these
examinations.

14. Contingencies

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action styedah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International /afdew York Sports Clufplaintiffs
commenced a purported class action against TSI, ihltie Supreme Court, New York County, seekingaithpvages and alleging that TSI,
LLC violated various overtime provisions of the N&erk State Labor Law with respect to the paymdnwages to certain trainers and
assistant fitness managers. On or about June 08, &t same plaintiffs commenced a second pumbetéss action against TSI, LLC in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, New Yorkufty, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that TEC kiolated various wage payment
and overtime provisions of the New York State Labaw with respect to the payment of wages to alvN@rk purported hourly employees.
On September 17, 2010, TSI, LLC made motions tmidis the class action allegations of both lawdoitplaintiffs’ failure to timely file
motions to certify the class actions. Oral argunmnthe motions occurred on November 10, 2010. dsitan is still pending. While it is not
possible to estimate the likelihood of an unfavtealutcome or a range of loss in the case of aavaméble outcome to TSI, LLC at this tin
the Company intends to contest these cases viggraspending upon the ultimate outcome, theseermthay have a material adverse e
on TSI, LLC’s and the Company’s consolidated resaftoperations, financial condition or cash flows.

On September 22, 2009, in an action styled/n Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutigres division of Ajilon Professional Staffil
LLC (Supreme Court of the State of New York, New YoduGty, 602911-09), TSI, LLC brought an action ie Bupreme Court of the State
of New York, New York County, against Ajilon fordmch of contract, conversion and replevin, seeldntpng other things, money damages
against Ajilon for breaching its agreement to desigd deliver to TSI, LLC a new sports club entisgpmanagement system known as Gl
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatmoperly identified requirements
documents and other property owned and licensetiShyLLC. Subsequently, on October 14, 2009, Ajilmought a counterclaim against
TSI, LLC alleging breach of contract, alleging, argather things, failure to pay outstanding inveigethe amount of $2,900. On March 3,
2011, Ajilon amended its counterclaims to includdiional claims for breach of contract and forustjenrichment, including claims for
unspecified additional damages for work allegedyffgrmed by one of its subcontractors. On Marck03,1, TSI, LLC amended its compla
against Ajilon to add new allegations and claims fo
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fraudulent inducement, negligent misrepresentafiaud, and breach of the implied covenant of giaitth and fair dealing (the “additional
claims”). On March 28, 2011, Ajilon moved to dissithe additional claims. The motion is still pergdi®n February 3, 2012, TSI, LLC filed
a motion for partial summary judgment. The motiepénding. Other than these pending motions, tigation is in the discovery phase. We
believe at this time the likelihood of an unfavdeabutcome is not probable. TSI, LLC intends toga@aute vigorously its claims against
Ajilon and defend against Ajilon’s counterclaims.

On February 7, 2007, in an action styl#thite Plains Plaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et,d@he landlord of one of TSI, LLC’s former
health and fitness clubs filed a lawsuit in statartagainst it and two of its health club subsidmalleging, among other things, breach of
lease in connection with the decision to closecthb located in a building owned by the plaintifictaleased to a subsidiary of TSI, LLC, and
take additional space in the nearby facility leasgdnother subsidiary of TSI, LLC. The trial cogranted the landlord damages against TSI
White Plains, LLC (the “Tenant”) in the amount g@ipgoximately $700 including interest and costs i(féh Award”). TSI, LLC was held to b
jointly liable with the Tenant for the amount ofpepximately $488, under a limited guarantee offteaan’s lease obligations. The landlord
subsequently appealed the trial court’s award ofatges, and on December 21, 2010, the appellatérewersed, in part, the trial court’s
decision and ordered the case remanded to thetnat for an assessment of additional damagespmfoximately $750 plus interest and
costs (the “Additional Award”). On February 7, 201He landlord moved for re-argument of the appeltaurt’s decision, seeking additional
damages plus attorneys’ fees. On April 8, 2011 afhyeellate court denied the landlord’s motion. Qugést 29, 2011, the Additional Award
(amounting to approximately $900), was enteredrejdhe Tenant, who has recorded a liability. TEIC does not believe it is probable that
it will be held liable to pay for any amount of tAdditional Award. Separately, TSI, LLC is partyda agreement with a third-party
developer, which by its terms provides indemnifmafor the full amount of any liability of any nat arising out of the lease described
above, including attorneys’ fees incurred to erddite indemnity. In connection with the Initial Asda(and in furtherance of the
indemnification agreement), TSI, LLC and the depelohave entered into an agreement pursuant tchwhédeveloper has agreed to pay the
amount of the Initial Award in installments oveng. The indemnification agreement also covers ttditlonal Award, and therefore the
Tenant has recorded a receivable related to theindication. The developer to date has not pagdattmount of the Additional Award to the
landlord, and the landlord has commenced a sppakeding in the Supreme Court of the State of Mevk, Westchester County, to collect
the Additional Award directly from the developer.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amdoggedings incidental to the ordinary
course of business, including personal injury amgleyee relations claims. The results of litigatame inherently unpredictable. Any claims
against us, whether meritorious or not, could betconsuming, result in costly litigation, requsignificant amounts of management time
and result in diversion of significant resourcelse Tesults of these other lawsuits, claims andgadings cannot be predicted with certainty.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) defined contribuptam and is subject to the provisions of the EmpéoRetirement Income Security
Act of 1974 (“ERISA"). The Plan provides for the @pany to make discretionary contributions. The Rlas amended, effective January 1,
2001, to provide for an employer matching contiitruin an amount equal to 25% of the participsugbntribution with a limit of five hundre
dollars per individual, per annum. Employer matghéentributions totaling $225 and $221 were maddanch 2011 and March 2010,
respectively, for the Plan years ended Decembe2@l0 and 2009, respectively. The Company expeatsake an employer matching
contribution of approximately $246 in March 2012 fiee Plan year ended December 31, 2011.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited’

2011
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(b) (c)
Net revenue $116,70! $118,28! $116,13¢ $115,81:
Operating incom: 6,92¢ 10,51¢ 8,57¢ 9,59:
Net income (loss 1,53: (410) 1,94: 3,25(
Earnings (loss) per share!
Basic $ (0.07) $ (0.02 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.14
Diluted $ (0.07) $ (0.02) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1
2010
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(d) (e) (®
Net revenu $117,75¢ $117,43t $113,12° $114,06"
Operating incom: 2,79¢ 2,46: 4,06 9,117
Net income (loss (732) (81%) (18) 1,27¢
Earnings (loss) per share!
Basic $ (0.03 $ (0.09 $ (0.00 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ (0.03 $ (0.09 $ (0.00 $ 0.0¢

Basic and diluted earnings per share are cadgotependently for each quarter presented. Aauglsd the sum of the quarterly
earnings per share may not agree with the calcufateyear earnings per sha

Net loss and loss per share for the second quafr®911 include $4,173 and ($0.18), respectiveingosed of the following: $2,7€
loss on extinguishment of debt, net of tax in caioa with the Company’s debt refinancing in Mayl20$855, net of tax, of
incremental interest expense in connection withGbepan’s debt refinancing in May 2011; and $549 of diseietome tax charge
Net income and earnings per share for the fourétrtguof 2011 include $343 and $0.01, respectivfelythe correction of an accounti
error that resulted in an increase in benefit foporate income taxes. Refer to note 2, Correcifaan Accounting Error, for further
details.

Net income and earnings per share for the firsttquaf 2010 include $220 and ($0.01), respectiviglythe effect of impairment
fixed assets, net of ta

Net loss and loss per share for the second quafr910 include $1,619 and ($0.07), respectivehitfie effect of impairment of fixe
assets, net of ta

Net revenue, net income and earnings per shateddourth quarter of 2010 include $2,593, $1,44@ $0.06, respectively for tt
effect of the recognition of unused and expiredspeal training sessions in three of our jurisditsic
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The following is a list of all exhibits filed or @orporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit
No.
3.1
3.2
4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

*10.9
*10.10

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohawn Sports International Holdings, Inc. (the ‘tigrant”) (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Regist’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 201

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Regigirecorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Registrant’s Current
Report on Form-K, filed on May 19, 2008)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s Registn Statement on
Form &1, File No. 33-126428 (thé‘S-1 Registration Stateme”)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®004, by and among Town Sports Internationdtlidgs, Inc., Town
Sports International, Inc., Bruckmann, Rosser, @hé&rCo., L.P. the individuals and entities list®n the BRS Co-Investor
Signature Pages thereto, Farallon Capital Parthdps, Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L IRR Capital Partners, L.P.,
and Farallon Capital Institutional Partners Il, L.@anterbury Detroit Partners, L.P., Canterburygiémine Capital, L.P.,
Rosewood Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV, LRRasewood Capital IV Associates, L.P., CapitalSouiollings LLC, Keitr
Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stockholders ef @ompany listed on the Executive Signature Pdgaetb (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the-4 Registration Statemen

Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreeindeted as of March 23, 2006 (incorporated by ezfee to Exhibit 10.21
of the Registral's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2005 “2005 Form 1-K")).

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Rights Agreeindated as of May 30, 2006 (incorporated by refegen Exhibit 10.9.1
of the -1 Registration Statemen

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2011, amangriTSports International, LLC, the Registrant, &uarantor, the lenders
party thereto, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Amerizag\dministrative Agent, and Keybanc National dation, as
Documentation Agent (incorporated by referencexbilfit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on F@iK filed on May

11, 2011)

Subsidiaries Guaranty, dated as of May 11, 201bnaneach of the Guarantors party thereto, and Pleet8ank Trust
Company Americas, as Administrative Agent (incogted by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compa@usrent Report on
Form &K filed on May 11, 2011)

Pledge Agreement dated as of May 11, 2011 amon@dh& Sports International, LLC, the Registrantheatthe Pledgors
party thereto, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Aagras Collateral Agent (incorporated by refeeiocExhibit 10.3 of th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 11, 2011)

Security Agreement dated as of May 11, 2011 ambedbwn Sports International, LLC, the Registraagh of the Assignors
party thereto, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Aagras Collateral Agent (incorporated by refeeiocExhibit 10.4 of th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 11, 2011)

Interest Rate Swap Agreement, dated July 8, 2Cdtilyden Town Sports International, LLC and Deutdapk AG.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of tregRtrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for teeigd ended September
30, 2011)

2004 Common Stock Option Plan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.7 of the-4 Registration Statemen

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 2004 CommomlS@ption Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2 of the
Registrar’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C
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Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Planrfiocated herein by reference to Appendix A ofGlmanpany’s definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March22d.,1).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuarthe 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeeeincExhibit 10.1 of the
Registrar’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursua the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated byneriee to Exhibit 10.2
of the Registral's Current Report on Forn-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementfmn-Employee Directors pursuant to the 2006 ItigerPlan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thegRtran’s Current Report on Forn-K filed April 2, 2007).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursua the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated byneriee to Exhibit 10.3
of the Registral's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant t®0@6 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexibiltit 10.2 of the
Registrar’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Amended and Restated 2006 Annual Performance Belaus(incorporated by reference to Appendix A & Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filedvarch 30, 2010)

Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compiens@lan Summary Effective May 25, 2011 (incorgiedaby
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Regist’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20.

Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, Senior Vice Presid — General Counsel, dated July 23, 2007 (inaattpd by reference to
Exhibit 10.35 of the Registre’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Amendment to Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, dat@dcember 23, 2008 (incorporated by reference tol#x10.35 of the
Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Offer Letter, dated March 18, 2010, between theifemt and Robert Giardina (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.1 to tf
Registrar’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended March 31, 201

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between #lggsRant and each of Daniel Gallagher, Martin Asenand David Kasti
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 of Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeaded December 31,
2007).

Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreeretween the Registrant and each of Daniel Gallaghartin Annese
and David Kastin (incorporated by reference to BitHi0.39 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on FA®rK for the year
ended December 31, 200

Form of Amended and Restated Executive Severanoeefitent between the Registrant and each of RolemdiGa, Paul
Barron and Scott Milford (incorporated by referemedxhibit 10.28 of the Registrant’s Annual RepamtForm 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 20C

Amendment dated March 1, 2011 to Executive Severdgreement between the Registrant and Robert @afthcorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regist’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended March 31, 201

Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2%hef S-1 Registration
Statement)

Subsidiaries of the Registra
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers L
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State of

Company Incorporation
Parent

Town Sports International, LL NY
Subsidiaries

TSI 217 Broadway, LLC DE
TSI Alexandria, LLC DE
TSI Alexandria West, LLC DE
TSI Allston, LLC DE
TSI Andover, LLC DE
TSI Ardmore, LLC DE
TSI Arthrc-Fitness Services, LL! DE
TSI Astoria, LLC DE
TSI Battery Park, LLC DE
TSI Bay Ridge 86th Street, LL DE
TSI Bayridge, LLC DE
TSI Bensonhurst, LL( DE
TSI Bethesda, LL( DE
TSI Boylston, LLC DE
TSI Broadway, LLC DE
TSI Brooklyn Belt, LLC DE
TSI Brunswick, LLC DE
TSI Bulfinch, LLC DE
TSI Butler, LLC DE
TSI Carmel, LLC DE
TSI Cash Management, LL DE
TSI Central Square, LL! DE
TSI Cherry Hill, LLC DE
TSI Chevy Chase, LL! DE
TSI Clarendon, LLC DE
TSI Clifton, LLC DE
TSI Cobble Hill, LLC DE
TSI Colonia, LLC DE
TSI Columbia Heights, LL( DE
TSI Commack, LLC DE
TSI Connecticut Avenue, LL! DE
TSI Court Street, LLC DE
TSI Croton, LLC DE
TSI Danbury, LLC DE
TSI Davis Square, LL( DE
TSI Deer Park, LLC DE
TSI Dobbs Ferry, LLC DE
TSI Downtown Crossing, LL( DE
TSI Dupont Circle, Inc DE
TSI Dupont Il, Inc. DE
TSI East Brunswick, LLC DE
TSI East Meadow, LL( DE
TSI East 23, LLC DE
TSI East 31, LLC DE
TSI East 34, LLC DE
TSI East 36, LLC DE
TSI East 41, LLC DE

Doing Business
As

n/a

New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul

Exhibit 21



Company
TSI East 48, LLC

TSI East 51, LLC

TSI East 59, LLC

TSI East 76, LLC

TSI East 86, LLC

TSI East 91, LLC

TSI Englewood, LLC
TSI F Street, LLC

TSI Fairfax, LLC

TSI Fenway, LLC

TSI First Avenue, LLC
TSI Forest Hills, LLC
TSI Fort Lee, LLC

TSI Framingham, LLC
TSI Franklin (MA), LLC
TSI Franklin Park, LLC
TSI Freehold, LLC

TSI Gallery Place, LL(C
TSI Garden City, LLC
TSI Garnerville, LLC
TSI Georgetown, LLC
TSI Germantown, LLC
TSI Glendale, LLC

TSI Glover, LLC

TSI Grand Central, LL(C
TSI Great Neck, LLC
TSI Greenwich, LLC
TSI Hartsdale, LLC

TSI Hawthorne, LLC
TSI Herald, LLC

TSI Hicksville, LLC

TSI Highpoint, LLC

TSI Hoboken, LLC

TSI Hoboken North, LLC
TSI Holdings (CIP), LLC
TSI Holdings (DC), LLC
TSI Holdings (IP), LLC
TSI Holdings (MA), LLC
TSI Holdings (MD), LLC
TSI Holdings (NJ), LLC
TSI Holdings (PA), LLC
TSI Holdings (VA), LLC
TSI Huntington, LLC
TSI Insurance, Inc

TSI International, Inc
TSI Irving Place, LLC
TSI Jamaica Estates, LL
TSI Jersey City, LLC
TSI K Street, LLC

TSI Larchmont, LLC
TSI Lexington (MA), LLC

State of
Incorporation
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
NY
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Doing Business

As

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu




Company
TSI Lincoln, LLC

TSI Livingston, LLC

TSI Long Beach, LLC
TSI Lynnfield, LLC

TSI M Street, LLC

TSI Mahwabh, LLC

TSI Mamaroneck, LL(
TSI Market Street, LL(C
TSI Marlboro, LLC

TSI Matawan, LLC

TSI Mercer Street, LL(
TSI Midwood, LLC

TSI Montclair, LLC

TSI Morris Park, LLC
TSI Murray Hill, LLC
TSI Nanuet, LLC

TSI Natick, LLC

TSI New Rochelle, LLC
TSI Newark, LLC

TSI Newbury Street, LL(
TSI Newton, LLC

TSI No Sweat, LLC

TSI North Bethesda, LL¢
TSI Norwalk, LLC

TSI Oceanside, LL(

TSI Old Bridge, LLC
TSI Parsippany, LL(
TSI Plainsboro, LLC

TSI Port Jefferson, LL(
TSI Princeton, LLC

TSI Princeton North, LLC
TSI Providence Downtown, LL!
TSI Providence Eastside, LL
TSI Radnor, LLC

TSI Ramsey, LLC

TSI Reade Street, LL
TSI Rego Park, LL(C

TSI Ridgewood, LLC
TSI Rodin Place, LLC
TSI Scarsdale, LL(

TSI Seaport, LLC

TSI Sheridan, LLC

TSI Silver Spring, LLC
TSI Smithtown, LLC
TSI Society Hill, LLC
TSI Soho, LLC

TSI Somers, LLC

TSI Somerset, LL(C

TSI South Bethesda, LL
TSI South End, LLC

TSI South Park Slope, LL
TSI South Station, LL(

State of
Incorporation
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Doing Business

As

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu

No Swea

Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu




Company
TSI Springdfield, LLC

TSI Stamford Downtown, LL(

TSI Stamford Post, LL(
TSI Stamford Rinks, LLC
TSI Staten Island, LL(
TSI Sterling, LLC

TSI Sunnyside, LLC

TSI Syosset, LLC

TSI University Management, LL

TSI Varick Street, LLC
TSI Wall Street, LLC

TSI Waltham, LLC

TSI Washington, Inc

TSI Water Street, LL(C
TSI Watertown, LLC

TSI Wellesley, LLC

TSI Wellington Circle, LLC
TSI West 14, LLC

TSI West 16, LLC

TSI West 23, LLC

TSI West 38, LLC

TSI West 41, LLC

TSI West 44, LLC

TSI West 48, LLC

TSI West 52, LLC

TSI West 73, LLC

TSI West 76, LLC

TSI West 80, LLC

TSI West 94, LLC

TSI West 115th Street, LL
TSI West 125, LLC

TSI West 145th Street, LL
TSI West Caldwell, LLC
TSI West Hartford, LLC
TSI West Newton, LLC
TSI West Nyack, LLC
TSI West Springfield, LLC
TSI Westbhorough, LL(
TSI Westport, LLC

TSI Westwood, LLC

TSI Weymouth, LLC

TSI White Plains City Center, LL!

TSI White Plains, LLC
TSI Whitestone, LLC
TSI Williamsburg, LLC
TSI Woburn, LLC

TSI Woodmere, LLC

State of
Incorporation

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Doing Business

As

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B36048, 333-151965 and 333-
175884) and Form S-3 (No. 333-167377) of Town Splmtiernational Holdings, Inc. of our report daksbruary 27, 2012 relating to the
financial statements and the effectiveness ofiatierontrol over financial reporting, which appeiarshis Form 10-K.

/sl PRICEWATERHOUSEC OOPERY.LP

New York, NY
February 27, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert Giardina, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16Kthe year ended December 31, 2011 of Town Spatesnational Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamdsother financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of angdtfar periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteaisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the itgant’s internal control over financial reportiremd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Robert Giardin
Robert Giardin:
Chief Executive Office

Date: February 27, 2012



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Daniel Gallagher, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16Kthe year ended December 31, 2011 of Town Spatesnational Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamdsother financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of angdtfar periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteaisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the itgant’s internal control over financial reportiremd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Daniel Gallaghe
Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officel

Date: February 27, 2012



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdnternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) onrfp10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2011 filed with the Securities andiange Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtRpbert Giardina, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@iteoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExajeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ Robert Giardin
Robert Giardina
Chief Executive Office

February 27, 2012



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdnternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) onrfp10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2011 filed with the Securities andiange Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtDaniel Gallagher, certify, pursuz
to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906ecBtrbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExajeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sl Daniel Gallaghe
Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officel

February 27, 201



